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I. SCHOOL INFORMATION AND COVER PAGE
Created Monday, July 08, 2013
Updated Wednesday, July 31, 2013

Page 1

1. SCHOOL NAME

(Select School name from dropdown menu; BEDS # appears first)

662300860862 CS-EDUC EXCELLENCE

2. CHARTER AUTHORIZER

Regents-Authorized Charter School

3. DISTRICT / CSD OF LOCATION

Yonkers

4. SCHOOL INFORMATION
PRIMARY ADDRESS PHONE NUMBER FAX NUMBER EMAIL ADDRESS

260 Warburton Avenue
Yonkers, New York 10701

914-476-5070 914-476-2858 ccastillo@cseeschool.
org

4a. PHONE CONTACT NUMBER FOR AFTER HOURS EMERGENCIES
4a. PHONE CONTACT NUMBER FOR AFTER HOURS EMERGENCIES | Contact Name Catalina Castillo, Ed.D.

4a. PHONE CONTACT NUMBER FOR AFTER HOURS EMERGENCIES | Title Principal

4a. PHONE CONTACT NUMBER FOR AFTER HOURS EMERGENCIES | Emergency Phone
Number (###-###-####)

5. SCHOOL WEB ADDRESS (URL)

www.charterschoolofeducationalexcellence.org

6. DATE OF INITIAL CHARTER

2004-01-01 00:00:00

7. DATE FIRST OPENED FOR INSTRUCTION

2005-09-01 00:00:00

8. TOTAL NUMBER OF STUDENTS ENROLLED IN 2012-13 (as reported on BEDS Day)

(as reported on BEDS Day)
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642

9. GRADES SERVED IN SCHOOL YEAR 2012-13

Check all that apply

•  K

•  1

•  2

•  3

•  4

•  5

•  6

•  7

•  8

10. DOES THE SCHOOL CONTRACT WITH A CHARTER OR EDUCATIONAL
MANAGEMENT ORGANIZATION?
 

Yes/No Name of CMO/EMO

Yes Victory Education Partners

10a. Please provide the name and contact information for each of the following individuals
who are management level personnel associated with the CMO.

Name Work Phone Alternate
Phone

Email Address Contact this individual also
in emergencies

CEO (e.g., network
superintendent)

James Stovall No

CFO (e.g., network
CFO)

Paul Augello Yes

Compliance Contact Mary Cordero Yes

Complaint Contact Mary Cordero No
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11. FACILITIES

Will the School maintain or operate multiple sites?

No, just one site.

12. SCHOOL SITES

Please list the sites where the school will operate in 2013-14.

Physical Address Phone
Number

District/CSD Grades
Served at
Site

School at Full
Capacity at Site

Facilities
Agreement

Site 1 (same as
primary site)

260 Warburton Avenue
Yonkers, New York 10701

914-476-50
70

YONKERS
CITY SD

K-8 Yes Rent/Lease

Site 2

Site 3

12a. Please provide the contact information for Site 1 (same as the primary site).
Name Work Phone Alternate Phone Email Address

School Leader Catalina Castillo

Operational Leader Stephan Henriquez

Compliance Contact Mary Cordero

Complaint Contact Catalina Castillo

13. Are the School sites co-located?

No
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14. Were there any revisions to the school’s charter during the 2012-2013 school year? (Please
include both those that required authorizer approval and those that did not require authorizer
approval).

No

16. Our signatures below attest that all of the information contained herein is truthful and
accurate and that this charter school is in compliance with all aspects of its charter, and with all
pertinent Federal, State, and local laws, regulations, and rules. We understand that if any
information in any part of this report is found to have been deliberately misrepresented, that will
constitute grounds for the revocation of our charter. Check YES if you agree and use the mouse
on your PC or the stylist on your mobile device to sign your name).

•  Yes

Signature, Head of Charter School

Signature, President of the Board of Trustees

Thank you.
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Signature Page for President of Board of Trustees
Created Tuesday, July 30, 2013

Page 1

16. My signature below attest that all of the information contained herein is truthful and accurate
and that this charter school is in compliance with all aspects of its charter, and with all pertinent
Federal, State, and local laws, regulations, and rules. We understand that if any information in
any part of this report is found to have been deliberately misrepresented, that will constitute
grounds for the revocation of our charter. Check YES if you agree and use the mouse on your
PC or the stylist on your mobile device to sign your name).

•  Yes

Signature, Board President

Thank you.
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Appendix A: Progress Toward Goals
Created Thursday, July 11, 2013
Updated Friday, November 01, 2013
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Charter School Name: 662300860862 CS-EDUC EXCELLENCE

1. NEW YORK STATE REPORT CARD

Provide a direct URL or web link to the most recent New York State School Report Card for the
charter school (See https://reportcards.nysed.gov/).

(Charter schools completing year one will not yet have a School Report Card or link to one. Please type "URL is not available" in the
space provided).

https://reportcards.nysed.gov/schools.php?year=2012&instid;=800000057455

2. APPENDIX A: PROGRESS TOWARD CHARTER GOALS 

2a. ACADEMIC STUDENT PERFORMANCE GOALS

If the Progress Toward Charter Goals are based on student performance data that the school will not have access to by August 1, 2013
(e.g., the NYS Assessment results), please the list goals and explain this in the "Progress Towards Attainment" column. This
information can be updated for Appendix A when available but no later than November 1, 2013. Board of Regents-authorized charter
schools that opened for instruction in the fall of 2012 or that were renewed in 2012-13 will be held to the same charter-specific
academic goals. Board of Regents-authorized charter schools will also be held accountable to Student Performance Benchmark 1 of the
Performance Framework.

2012-13 Progress Toward Attainment of Academic Goals
Academic Student
Performance Goal

Measure Used
to Evaluate
Progress

2012-2013 Progress Toward
Attainment

If Not Met, Describe Efforts to
be Taken

Academic
Goal 1

GOAL 1: All students at the
school will become proficient
in reading and writing of the
English language.

Measure 1: Absolute
Proficiency
Each year, 75% of students in
each assessed grade who have
been continuously enrolled in
the school for two or more
years will perform at or above
Level 3 on the New York State
English Language Arts (ELA)
Assessment.

New York State
English
Language Arts
(ELA)
Assessment.

46.3% of students enrolled at 
CSEE for at least their second 
year performed at or above 
Level 3 on the NY State ELA 
exam. 
In addition, the individual 
grades performed at the 
following levels: 
Percentage of Students in at 
least their Second Year at 
Levels 3 and 4 (ELA Measure 
1 >=75%) 
Grade Percentage achieving 
proficiency Number of 2nd 
Year Students Taking 
Assessment 
3 52.2% 67

The goal was not met. 
 
In 2013, New York State 
Assessments changed. Due to 
this change, most of the 
schools throughout the state 
experienced a decrease in the 
number of students who are 
performing at proficient levels 
in reading. Although CSEE 
did not meet 75% of its 
continuously enrolled students 
performing at or above Level 
3, 46.3% of students enrolled 
at CSEE for at least their 
second year performed at or 
above Level 3 on the NY State
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4 51.8% 56 
5 51.5% 66 
6 60.0% 40 
7 32.6% 46 
8 21.1% 38 
Total 46.3% 313

ELA exam. 
 
Efforts Taken: 
CSEE has restructured its ELA
program by hiring 3 certified
literacy and special education
specialists as Academic
Intervention Specialists (AIS
specialists) who provide small
group support in reading to all
students who did not achieve a
passing score on the NYS
ELA exam in grades 3-8. 
 
A Student Support
Coordinator (seasoned teacher)
has been assigned to support
the development of new
teachers by providing peer
coaching/mentoring,
demonstration lessons, etc. 
 
The ELA consultant continues
to provide ELA coaching to
ensure instruction is aligned to
new common core standards,
teachers are progress
monitoring, using data to
inform instruction and meeting
regularly on a weekly basis to
discuss programming strengths
and weaknesses. 
 
An early childhood literacy
consultant is now working on
a bi-monthly basis to support
teacher development and
curriculum alignment to the
new CCLS. 
 
CSEE has adopted a new
progress monitoring ELA
Mock Test, I-Ready, that is
aligned to the new CCLS and
state tests. These data will help
inform instruction. These
mocks will be given 3 times a
year.

Academic
Goal 2

GOAL 1: All students at the 
school will become proficient 
in reading and writing of the 
English language. 
 
Measure 3: Value Added to 
Student Learning 
Each year, grade-level cohorts 
of the school’s students will 
reduce by one-half the gap 
between their baseline 
performance and 75 percent of

New York State
English
Language Arts
(ELA)
Assessment

Grade Cohort (2012-13 Grade) 
Percent Performing At or 
Above Level 3 Target 
Achieved? 
2011-12 Target 2012-13 
4 85.2 >85.2 51.9 NO 
5 96.7 >96.7 50.0 NO 
6 82.5 >82.5 60.0 NO 
7 93.5 >93.5 32.6 NO 
8 68.4 >71.7 21.1 NO 
All 86.6 >86.6 44.1 NO 
Please see following chart for

The goal was not met. 
 
CSEE has restructured its ELA 
program by hiring 3 certified 
literacy and special education 
specialists as Academic 
Intervention Specialists (AIS 
specialists) who provide small 
group support in reading to all 
students who did not achieve a 
passing score on the NYS 
ELA exam in grades 3-8.
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students scoring at or above
Level3 on the State ELA
Assessment. If a cohort’s
baseline performance was
above the objective, the cohort
will maintain or increase its
performance on the next
administration.

results:  
A Student Support
Coordinator (seasoned teacher)
has been assigned to support
the development of new
teachers by providing peer
coaching/mentoring,
demonstration lessons, etc. 
 
The ELA consultant continues
to provide ELA coaching to
ensure instruction is aligned to
new common core standards,
teachers are progress
monitoring, using data to
inform instruction and meeting
regularly on a weekly basis to
discuss programming strengths
and weaknesses. 
 
An early childhood literacy
consultant is now working on
a bi-monthly basis to support
teacher development and
curriculum alignment to the
new CCLS. 
 
CSEE has adopted a new
progress monitoring ELA
Mock Test, I-Ready, that is
aligned to the new CCLS and
state tests. These data will help
inform instruction. These
mocks will be given 3 times a
year.

Academic
Goal 3

GOAL 2: All students at the
school will demonstrate
competency in the
understanding and application
of mathematics computation
and problem solving.

Measure 1: Absolute
Proficiency
Each year, 75% of students in
each assessed grade who have
been continuously enrolled in
the school for two or more
years will perform at or above
Level 3 on the New York State
Mathematics Assessment.

New York State
Mathematics
Assessment.

44.4% of students enrolled at
CSEE for at least their second
year performed at or above
Level 3 on the NY State Math
exam.
In addition, the individual
grades performed at the
following levels: Percentage of
Students in at least their
Second Year at Levels 3 and 4
(Math Measure 1 >=75%)
Grade Percentage achieving
proficiency Number of 2nd
Year Students Taking
Assessment
3 37.9% 66
4 60.7% 56
5 38.8% 67
6 70.0% 40
7 21.7% 46
8 42.1% 38
Total 44.4% 313

The goal was not met. 
 
In 2013, New York State 
Assessments changed. Due to 
this change, most of the 
students throughout the state 
experienced a decrease in the 
number of students performing 
at proficient levels in math. 
Although CSEE did not meet 
75% of its continuously 
enrolled students performing 
at or above Level 3, 44.4% of 
students enrolled at CSEE for 
at least their second year 
performed at or above Level 3 
on the NY State Math exam. 
 
Efforts Taken to Improve: 
 
CSEE has restructured its math 
program by adopting a new 
mathematics program for 
grades K-5 by Houghton 
Mifflin Harcourt, Go Math!
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GO Math! is a focused 
program designed to meet the 
objectives and intent of the 
Common Core State Standards 
for Mathematics. GO Math! 
was specifically written to 
provide thorough coverage of 
the CCSS with an emphasis on 
depth of instruction. Particular 
attention is given to providing 
support for teachers as they 
transition to a focused, 
rigorous curriculum. These 
efforts are apparent in the way 
lessons begin with 
context‐based situations and 
progress toward more abstract 
problems. Students and 
teachers are supported as they 
advance from concrete to 
abstract content through the 
use of models and math talk 
prompts presented in the 
Student Editions, and sample 
questions provided in the 
Teachers Editions. The 
program is designed so that 
teachers can easily create the 
environments necessary for 
teaching the Common Core 
State Standards for 
Mathematics with depth 
without having to develop new 
materials. 
 
CSEE has hired 3 Academic 
Intervention Specialists (AIS 
specialists) who provide small 
group support in math to all 
students who did not achieve a 
passing score on the NYS 
math exam in grades 3-8. 
 
A Student Support 
Coordinator (seasoned teacher) 
has been assigned to support 
the development of new 
teachers by providing peer 
coaching/mentoring, 
demonstration lessons, etc. 
 
A math consultant was hired to 
work with teachers across all 
grades to increase teacher 
competency in math 
instruction. In addition to 
providing PD on a monthly 
basis to all grade level teams, 
he ensures instruction is 
aligned to the new CCLS,
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teachers are progress
monitoring and using data to
inform instruction. 
 
The consultant also works two
days a week specifically with
the 7th and 8th grade teachers
to provide coaching/mentoring
to the new middle school math
teacher to promote improved
test scores on NYS math
exams this year. 
 
CSEE has adopted a new
progress monitoring math
Mock Test, I-Ready, that is
aligned to the new CCLS and
state tests. These data will help
inform instruction. These
mocks will be given 3 times a
year.

Academic
Goal 4

GOAL 2: All students at the
school will demonstrate
competency in the
understanding and application
of mathematics computation
and problem solving.

Measure 3: Value Added to
Student Learning
Each year, grade-level cohorts
of the school’s students will
reduce by one-half the gap
between their baseline
performance and 75 percent of
students scoring at or above
Level 3 on the State
Mathematics Assessment. If a
cohort’s baseline performance
was above the objective, the
cohort will maintain or
increase its performance on the
next administration.

New York State
Mathematics
Assessment

Grade Cohort (2012-13 Grade)
Percent Performing At or
Above Level 3 Target
Achieved
2011-12 Target 2012-13
4 79.6 >79.6 59.3 NO
5 95.1 >95.1 39.3 NO
6 92.5 >92.5 70.0 NO
7 93.5 >93.5 21.7 NO
8 78.9 >78.9 42.1 NO
All 88.3 >88.3 46.0 NO
Please see following chart for
results:

The goal was not met. 
 
CSEE has restructured its math 
program by adopting a new 
mathematics program for 
grades K-5 by Houghton 
Mifflin Harcourt, Go Math! 
GO Math! is a focused 
program designed to meet the 
objectives and intent of the 
Common Core State Standards 
for Mathematics. GO Math! 
was specifically written to 
provide thorough coverage of 
the CCSS with an emphasis on 
depth of instruction. Particular 
attention is given to providing 
support for teachers as they 
transition to a focused, 
rigorous curriculum. These 
efforts are apparent in the way 
lessons begin with 
context‐based situations and 
progress toward more abstract 
problems. Students and 
teachers are supported as they 
advance from concrete to 
abstract content through the 
use of models and math talk 
prompts presented in the 
Student Editions, and sample 
questions provided in the 
Teachers Editions. The 
program is designed so that 
teachers can easily create the 
environments necessary for 
teaching the Common Core 
State Standards for 
Mathematics with depth
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without having to develop new
materials. 
 
CSEE has hired 3 Academic
Intervention Specialists (AIS
specialists) who provide small
group support in math to all
students that did not achieve a
passing score on the NYS
math exam in grades 3-8. 
 
A Student Support
Coordinator (seasoned teacher)
has been assigned to support
the development of new
teachers by providing peer
coaching/mentoring,
demonstration lessons, etc. 
 
A math consultant was hired to
work with teachers across all
grades to increase teacher
competency in math
instruction. In addition to
providing PD on a monthly
basis to all grade level teams,
he ensures instruction is
aligned to the new CCLS,
teachers are progress
monitoring and using data to
inform instruction. 
 
The consultant also works two
days a week specifically with
the 7th and 8th grade teachers
to provide coaching/mentoring
to the new middle school math
teacher to promote improved
test scores on NYS math
exams this year. 
 
CSEE has adopted a new
progress monitoring math
Mock Test, I-Ready, that is
aligned to the new CCLS and
state tests. These data will help
inform instruction. These
mocks will be given 3 times a
year.

2a1. Do have more academic goals to add?

(No response)

2012-13 Progress Toward Attainment of Academic Goals
Academic Student
Performance Goal

Measure Used to
Evaluate Progress

2012-2013 Progress
Toward Attainment

If Not Met, Describe Efforts
to be Taken
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2a2. Do have more academic goals to add?

(No response)

2012-13 Progress Toward Attainment of Academic Goals
Academic Student
Performance Goal

Measure Used to
Evaluate Progress

2012-2013 Progress
Toward Attainment

If Not Met, Describe Efforts
to be Taken
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2b. ORGANIZATIONAL GOALS

2012-13 Progress Toward Attainment of Organizational Goals
Organizational
Goal

Measure Used to Evaluate
Progress

2012-2013 Progress Toward
Attainment

If Not Met, Describe Efforts
to be Taken

2b.1 Do you have more organizational goals to add?

No

2c. FINANCIAL GOALS

2012-13 Progress Toward Attainment of Financial Goals
Financial Goals Measure Used to Evaluate

Progress
2012-2013 Progress Toward
Attainment

If Not Met, Describe Efforts to
be Taken



Admin Expenses Per Student: $5,760

Total Expenses Per Student: $14,848



Financial Audit Supplemental Data Request Form
for Regents-Authorized Charter Schools

School Name: Charter School of Educational Excellence

Date: July 31, 2013

School Fiscal Contact Name: Paul J. Augello Jr.
School Fiscal Contact Email:
School Fiscal Contact Phone:
District of Location: Yonkers
Authorizer: SED
Years of Operation: 9
Facility: Private
Grades Currently Served: K-8
Planned Grades at Full Capacity: K-8
Enrollment: 636
Max Enrollment: 669
Year of Most Recent Data 2013
School Fiscal Contact Phone: 212-786-7913

School Audit Firm Name: Vargas, Rivera
School Audit Contact Name: Luis Rivera
School Audit Contact Email:
School Audit Contact Phone: 845-638-3113

Latest Audit Period (through June 30): 2012
Do Not Use this Box Charter School of Educational Excellence2012

Luis@cpatrust.com

mailto:Luis@cpatrust.com


FILL IN GRAY CELLS

Charter School of Educational Excellence
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30,

2013 2012
ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents  $27,323  $182,556 
Grants and contracts receivable  116,065  - 
Accounts receivables  1,331,734  531,223 
Inventory  -  - 
Prepaid Expenses  29,172  24,528 
Contributions and other receivables  -  - 

Other  803,712  832,241 
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS  $2,308,006  $1,570,548 

OTHER ASSETS
Investments  $-  $- 
Property, Plant and Equipment, Net  12,529,770  13,136,313 

Restricted Cash  1,892,186  1,762,343 
OTHER ASSETS  $14,421,956  $14,898,656 

TOTAL ASSETS  $16,729,962  $16,469,204 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued expenses  $471,289  $509,928 
Accrued payroll and benefits  926,140  658,032 
Refundable Advances  -  - 
Dreferred Revenue  60,761  7,492 
Current maturities of long-term debt  -  122,851 
Short Term Debt - Bonds, Notes Payable  677,200  674,039 

Other  -  - 
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES  $2,135,390  $1,972,342 

LONG-TERM DEBT, net current maturities  $13,267,989  $13,729,863 

TOTAL LIABILITIES  $15,403,379  $15,702,205 

NET ASSETS
Unrestricted  $1,326,583  $766,999 

Temporarily restricted  -  - 
TOTAL NET ASSETS  $1,326,583  $766,999 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS  $16,729,962  $16,469,204 

Check  -  - 



 FILL IN GRAY CELLS 

Charter School of Educational Excellence
STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30,

2013 2012

 Unrestricted  Total  Total 

 REVENUE, GAINS AND OTHER SUPPORT 
 State & Local Operating Revenue  $9,112,931  $-  $9,112,931  $8,052,507 
 Federal - Title and IDEA  392,178  -  392,178  334,147 
 Federal - Other  14,249  -  14,249  75,404 
 State and City Grants  8,000  -  8,000  40,380 
 Contributions and private grants  -  -  -  - 
 After school revenue  -  -  -  - 
 Other  -  -  -  - 

 Food Service/Child Nutrition Program  463,739  -  463,739  422,591 
 TOTAL REVENUE, GAINS AND OTHER SUPPORT  $9,991,097  $-  $9,991,097  $8,925,029 

 EXPENSES 
 Program Services 

 Regular Education  $8,224,683  $-  $8,224,683  $6,598,549 
 Special Education  215,795  -  215,795  208,495 

 Other Programs  -  -  -  - 
 Total Program Services  $8,440,478  $-  $8,440,478  $6,807,044  
 Supporting Services 

 Management and general  $1,002,951  $-  $1,002,951  $1,250,358 

 Fundraising  -  -  -  - 
 TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES  $9,443,429  $-  $9,443,429  $8,057,402 

 SURPLUS / (DEFICIT) FROM SCHOOL OPERATIONS  $547,668  $-  $547,668  $867,627 

 Contributions 
 Foundations  $-  $-  $-  $- 
 Individuals  10,318  -  10,318  23,375 
 Corporations  -  -  -  - 

 Fundraising  -  -  -  - 
 Interest income  779  -  779  1,378 
 Miscellaneous income  823  -  823  935 

 Net assets released from restriction  -  -  -  - 
 TOTAL SUPPORT AND OTHER REVENUE  $11,920  $-  $11,920  $25,688 

 CHANGE IN NET ASSETS  $559,588  $-  $559,588  $893,315 

 NET ASSETS BEGINNING OF YEAR  $-  $-  $-  $- 

 PRIOR YEAR/PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS  -  -  -  - 

 NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR  $559,588  $-  $559,588  $893,315 

 Temporarily 
Restricted 
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Audited Financial Statement Checklist
Created Monday, November 04, 2013

Page 1

Charter School Name: 

1. Please check each item that is included in the 2012-13 Audited Financial Statement submitted
for your charter school.

Yes No NA

Audited Financial Statements (including report on compliance and report on
internal control over financial reporting)

True False False

Single Audit (if applicable) True False False

CSP Agreed Upon Procedures (if applicable) False False True

Management Letter False False True

Report on Extracurricular Student Activity Accounts (if applicable) False False True

Corrective Action Plans for any Findings False False True

2. Please indicated if there is a finding(s) noted in any of the following sections of your charter
school's 2012-13 Audited Financial Statement.

Yes No

Report on Compliance False True

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting False True

Single Audit False True

CSP Agreed Upon Procedures Report False True

Management Letter False True

Thank you Catalina .
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To the Board of Trustees of

Charter School of Educational Excellence

Yonkers, New York

Independent Auditors' Report

586 Route 304, New City, NY 10956
845-638-3113 |       845-638-4817

445 Park Ave, 9th Fl, New York, NY 10022
212-734-0395 |       212-734-0954

Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Charter School of Educational Excellence (a nonprofit organization),
which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2013, and the related statements of activities and cash flows for
the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements .

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America ; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of
internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards , issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement .

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements .
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control . Accordingly, we express no such opinion . An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements .

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion .

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Charter
School of Educational Excellence as of June 30, 2013 , and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America .

w w w . c p a t r u s t . c o m

Other Matters
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. The schedule of
functional expenses is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements . The
accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133,
Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations , is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a
required part of the financial statements . Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements . The information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial
statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America . In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in
relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards , we have also issued our report dated October 31, 2013, on our consideration
of Charter School of Educational Excellence’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters . The purpose of that report is to
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and
not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance . That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Charter School of Educational Excellence’s internal
control over financial reporting and compliance .
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Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Charter School of Educational Excellence (a nonprofit organization),
which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2013, and the related statements of activities and cash flows for
the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements .

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America ; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of
internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards , issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement .

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements .
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control . Accordingly, we express no such opinion . An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements .

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion .

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Charter
School of Educational Excellence as of June 30, 2013 , and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America .
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Other Matters
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. The schedule of
functional expenses is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements . The
accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133,
Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations , is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a
required part of the financial statements . Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements . The information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial
statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America . In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in
relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards , we have also issued our report dated October 31, 2013, on our consideration
of Charter School of Educational Excellence’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters . The purpose of that report is to
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and
not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance . That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Charter School of Educational Excellence’s internal
control over financial reporting and compliance .
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relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards , we have also issued our report dated October 31, 2013, on our consideration
of Charter School of Educational Excellence’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters . The purpose of that report is to
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and
not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance . That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Charter School of Educational Excellence’s internal
control over financial reporting and compliance .
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Report on the Financial StatementsWe have audited the accompanying financial statements of Charter School of Educational Excellence (a nonprofit organization),which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2013, and the related statements of activities and cash flows forthe year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements .Management’s Responsibility for the Financial StatementsManagement is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with accountingprinciples generally accepted in the United States of America ; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance ofinternal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from materialmisstatement, whether due to fraud or error.Auditor’s ResponsibilityOur responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit inaccordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financialaudits contained in Government Auditing Standards , issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standardsrequire that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free frommaterial misstatement .An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements .The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of thefinancial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal controlrelevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that areappropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internalcontrol . Accordingly, we express no such opinion . An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policiesused and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overallpresentation of the financial statements .We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion .OpinionIn our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of CharterSchool of Educational Excellence as of June 30, 2013 , and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then endedin accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America .

Other Matters
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. The schedule of
functional expenses is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements . The
accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133,
Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations , is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a
required part of the financial statements . Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements . The information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial
statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America . In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in
relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards , we have also issued our report dated October 31, 2013, on our consideration
of Charter School of Educational Excellence’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters . The purpose of that report is to
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and
not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance . That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Charter School of Educational Excellence’s internal
control over financial reporting and compliance .

New City, New York
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586 Route 304, New City, NY 10956845-638-3113 |       845-638-4817445 Park Ave, 9th Fl, New York, NY 10022212-734-0395 |       212-734-0954Report on the Financial StatementsWe have audited the accompanying financial statements of Charter School of Educational Excellence (a nonprofit organization),which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2013, and the related statements of activities and cash flows forthe year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements .Management’s Responsibility for the Financial StatementsManagement is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with accountingprinciples generally accepted in the United States of America ; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance ofinternal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from materialmisstatement, whether due to fraud or error.Auditor’s ResponsibilityOur responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit inaccordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financialaudits contained in Government Auditing Standards , issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standardsrequire that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free frommaterial misstatement .An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements .The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of thefinancial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal controlrelevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that areappropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internalcontrol . Accordingly, we express no such opinion . An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policiesused and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overallpresentation of the financial statements .We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion .OpinionIn our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of CharterSchool of Educational Excellence as of June 30, 2013 , and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then endedin accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America .
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ASSETS

Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 28,005$          
Cash - Construction, Restricted and Debt Service Accounts 1,817,053       
Due from Government Agencies (Note 3) 1,451,512       
Prepaid Expenses 34,032             

Total Current Assets 3,330,602       

Fixed Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation of $2,585,809) (Note 4) 12,531,994     

Other Assets
Escrow Deposits 75,133             
Security Deposits 24,567             
Deferred Financing Cost, Net (Note 5) 779,146          

Total Other Assets 878,846          

Total Assets 16,741,442$   

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses 604,275$        
Accrued Payroll and Related Expenses 935,444          
Unearned Revenue 60,761             
Accrued Interest Bond Interest 155,861          
Line of Credit (Note 8) 119,633          
Capital Leases Payable, Current Portion (Note 9) 142,430          
Loan Payable, Current Portion (Note 10) 132,850          

Total Current Liabilities 2,151,254       

Long-Term Liabilities
Capital Leases Payable, Net of Current Portion (Note 9) 152,675          
Loan Payable, Net of Current Portion (Note 10) 845,139          
Bonds Payable (Note 11) 12,290,000     

Total Long-Term Liabilities 13,287,814     

Total Liabilities 15,439,068     

Net Assets
Unrestricted Net Assets 1,302,374       

Total Net Assets 1,302,374       

Total Liabilities and Net Assets 16,741,442$   

Charter School of Educational Excellence

Statement of Financial Position

June 30, 2013

(3)

See accompanying notes and independent auditors' report.



Temporarily
PUBLIC SUPPORT AND REVENUE Unrestricted  Restricted  Total

 Resident Student Enrollment 9,112,931$     -$                     9,112,931$     
Food Service -                       467,452          467,452          
Federal Funding -                       401,669          401,669          
State Funding -                       8,000               8,000               
Grant / Contributions 15,898             -                       15,898             
Interest Income 779                  -                       779                  

Total Public Support and Revenue 9,129,608       877,121          10,006,729     

Net Assets Released From Restrictions 877,121          (877,121)         -                       

Total Support and Revenue 10,006,729     -                       10,006,729     

EXPENSES

Program Services
Regular Education 8,264,627       -                       8,264,627       
Special Education 211,591          -                       211,591          

8,476,218       -                       8,476,218       
Supporting Services

Management and General 995,136          -                       995,136          

Total Expenses 9,471,354       -                       9,471,354       

Change in Net Assets 535,375          -                       535,375          

Net Assets, Beginning of Year 766,999          -                       766,999          
  
Net Assets, End of Year                                 1,302,374$     -$                     1,302,374$     

Charter School of Educational Excellence

Statement of Activities

For the year ended June 30, 2013

(4)

See accompanying notes and independent auditors' report.



CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Change in Net Assets 535,375$           
Adjustments to Reconcile Change in Net Assets to

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities:
Depreciation and Amortization 839,485             

Changes in Assets and Liabilities
(Increase) / Decrease in:

Due from Government Agencies (920,289)            
Prepaid Expenses (9,504)                
Escrow Deposit (75,133)              

Increase / (Decrease) in:
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses 94,345               
Accrued Payroll and Related Expenses 277,412             
Unearned Revenue 53,269               
Accrued Interest (6,199)                

Total Adjustments 253,386             
 
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 788,761             

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Charter School of Educational Excellence

Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended June 30, 2013

(5)

See accompanying notes and independent auditors' report.

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of Fixed Assets (206,636)            

Net Cash Used In Investing Activities (206,636)            

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Advances on Line of Credit 187,666             
Payments of Line of Credit (418,095)            
Payments of Capital Lease Obligation (173,686)            
Payments of Bond Payable (155,000)            
Payments of Loans Payable (122,851)            

Net Cash Used In Financing Activities (681,966)            

NET DECREASE IN CASH (99,841)              

CASH - BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,944,899          

CASH - END OF YEAR 1,845,058$       

Supplemental Disclosures:
Cash paid during the year for interest 918,281$           

(5)

See accompanying notes and independent auditors' report.



Charter School of Educational Excellence

Notes to the Financial Statements

June 30, 2013

NOTE 5 – DEFERRED FINANCING COST

The school incurred cost of $853,506 related to the Bond offering (See Note 8). The cost are amortized over the
term of the related debt (30 Years) using a straight -line method. Accumulated amortization at June 30, 2013 was
$74,360. Amortization expense costs charged to operations was $28,528 for 2013.

NOTE 6 – RETIREMENT PLANS

Retirement Savings Plan
The School offers a 401(k) plan (the "Plan”) for substantially all of its employees . Employees are eligible for the
plan immediately upon employment and participation in the Plan is voluntary . Employees may contribute up to
15% of their annual compensation to the Plan, limited to a maximum annual amount as set periodically by the
Internal Revenue Service . The School matches the employee contribution 100% up to 4% of the employee’s total
annual compensation . The School’s contribution recognized in the statement of activities was $10,962 for 2013.
The Plan assets are held in a separate trust and are not included in the accompanying financial statements . All
plan assets are held for the exclusive benefit of the Plan’s participants and beneficiaries . The Plan assets are held
in a separate trust and are not included in the accompanying financial statements . All plan assets are held for the
exclusive benefit of the Plan’s participants and beneficiaries . The Principal Financial Group administers the plan
and is the acting custodian of the plan assets .

New York State Teachers' Retirement System
Employees of the School are eligible to participate in the New York State Teachers' Retirement System (NYSTRS) .
The NYSTRS is a defined benefit plan covering teachers in New York State, with pensions calculated based
primarily on the member's years of service and final average salary . Contributions for the year ended June 30,
2013, was based on 11.84%, of participant salaries . The benefits provided to members of the plan are established
by New York State Law and may be amended only by the State Legislature . Pension expense was $380,961 for the
year ended June 30, 2013.

NOTE 3 – PUPIL ENROLLMENT AND OTHER REVENUES FROM GOVERMENT

Under the School’s Charter School Agreement and the Charter School Act, the School is entitled to receive funding
from both State and Federal sources that are available to public schools . These funds include State pupil
enrollment funds and Federal food subsidies and Title I, IIA, IID, IV and V funds. The calculation of the amounts to
be paid to the School under these programs is determined by the State, and is based on complex laws and
regulations, enrollment levels, and economic information related to the home school district of the children
enrolled in the school . If these regulations, some of which are relatively new in the State of New York, were to
change, or other factors included in the calculations were to change, the level of funding that the School receives
could vary significantly .

Amount due from government agencies and included as revenues in the statement of activities, consist of the
following as of June 30, 2013:

AuditsbyFundingSources
TheSchoolparticipatesinanumberofFederalandStateprograms.TheseprogramsrequirethattheSchool
complieswithcertainrequirementoflaws,regulations,contracts,andagreementsapplicabletotheprogramin
whichitparticipates.Allfundsexpendedinconnectionwithgovernmentgrantsandcontractsaresubjecttoaudit
bygovernmentagencies.Whiletheultimateliability,ifany,fromsuchauditsofgovernmentandcontractsby
governmentagenciesispresentlynotdeterminable,itshouldnot,intheopinionofthemanagement,havea
materialeffectonthefinancialpositionorresultofoperations.Accordingly,noprovisionforanysuchliabilitythat
mayresulthasbeenmadeintheaccompanyingfinancialstatements.

NOTE 12 – COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Occupancy Lease
The School has entered into a non-cancelable operating lease for its classroom facilities that expires on June 30,
2019. Future monthly minimum lease payments as of June 30 are as follows :

NOTE 1 – ORGANIZATION

Charter School of Educational Excellence (the “School”) is a New York education corporation incorporated by the
Board of Regents of the University of the State of New York (the "Board of Regents") under Article 56 of the
New York Education Law. The School a non-profit corporation operating from 260 Warburton Avenue, in
Yonkers, New York. The School educates children in a completely nondiscriminatory and secular basis. The
founders and supporters of the School believe that access to a public education of high quality for all children is
the foremost issue. The School was originally chartered during April 2004 and opened with students from
Kindergarten through 4th graders and thereafter added a grade per year through 6th graders . In January 2013,
the School successfully received a full five-year charter renewal from its charter authorizer, the New York State
Education Department that expires in June 2018, with a maximum enrollment of 669 students in grades
Kindergarten through 8th.

NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Accounting
The financial statements have been prepared using the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America . Revenues are recognized when
earned and expenses are recognized when incurred .

Financial Statement Presentation
The net assets of the School and changes therein are classified and reported as follows :

Unrestricted Net Assets - Net assets that are not subject to donor imposed restrictions .

Temporarily Restricted Net Assets - Net assets subject to donor-imposed restrictions that may or will be met,
either by actions of the School and/or the passage of time.

Use of Estimates in the Preparation of Financial Statements
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in The
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported
amounts and disclosures . Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates .

Contributions
The School records contributions received as unrestricted, temporarily restricted, or permanently restricted
support, depending on the existence and/or nature of any donor restrictions . Support that is restricted by the
donor is reported as an increase in unrestricted net assets if the restriction expires in the reporting period in
which the support is recognized . All other donor restricted support is reported as an increase in temporarily or
permanently restricted net assets, depending on the nature of the restriction . When a restriction expires, that
is, when a stipulation time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished, temporarily restricted net
assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the statement of activities as net assets
released from restrictions . All contributions received in the year ended 2013 were unrestricted .

Recognition of Revenue
Government contract revenue is recognized as earned in the period services are provided and costs are
incurred .

Cash and Cash Equivalents
For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, the School considers all highly liquid investments available for
current use with an initial period of three months or less to be cash equivalents .

Audits by Funding Sources
The School participates in a number of Federal and State programs . These programs require the School comply
with certain requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and agreements applicable to the program in which it
participates . All funds expended in connection with government grants and contracts are subject to audit by
government agencies . While the ultimate liability, if any, from such audits of government and contracts by
government agencies is presently not determinable, it should not, in the opinion of the management, have a
material effect on the financial position or results of operations . Accordingly, no provision for such liability that
may result has been made in the accompanying financial statements .

NOTE 13 – CONCENTRATION OF RISK

The School is dependent on various government agencies for funding, and is responsible for meeting the
requirements of such agencies . If the school was to lose students or the related government funding, it could have
a substantial effect on its ability to continue operations .

NOTE 14 – PENDING LITIGATION, CLAIMS, AND ASSESSMENTS

In November of 2011, lawsuits were commenced against the Charter School of Educational Excellence to foreclose
liens filed by subcontractors and material men who were not paid by the Kullman Building Corporation, the
general contractor awarded the contract to construct the Middle School . The lien foreclosure actions, most of
which additionally alleged claims for equitable relief arising out of the identical circumstances were commenced
by two Plaintiffs and six Defendant Lienors seeking damages of $719,826. It is the opinion of management that the
School has defenses against the liens and equitable causes of action, and the School intends to vigorously defend
these lawsuits . As of October 26, 2013, the case is currently pending in Westchester County Supreme Court of
New York State. No amount has been accrued in these financial statements since the outcome of this matter is
uncertain and the amount of liability, if any, cannot be determined .

NOTE 15 – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The School evaluates events occurring after the date of the financial statements to consider whether or not the
impact of such events needs to be reflected or disclosed in the financial statements . Such evaluation is performed
through the date the financial statements are available for issuance, which was October 31, 2013, for these
financial statements .

NOTE 7 – MANAGEMENT FEE

Victory Schools, Inc. ("VSI") d/b/a Victory Education Partners (VEP) manages the operations of the School under a
management agreement entered into by the School and VSI. The agreement was executed on March 30, 2004.
Per the term of the agreement, VSI assumes responsibility for task and functions associated with the educational
services to be provided to the children enrolled as student at the School in accordance with the term of the
Charter and the Charter of Schools Act, subject to the appropriate oversight from the school’s Board of Trustees .

In providing the above services as per the original agreement, VSI was to be paid a management fee in the
amount equal to product of the total full-time equivalent enrollment of students in the Charter School as defined
under Section 119.1 of New York State Commissioner of Education Regulations multiplied . The Per Pupil Fee shall
be increased or decreased each year by the percentage increase or decrease in the Final Adjusted Expense Per
Pupil for charter schools in the Yonkers City school district as calculated by the New York State Education
Department annually .

VSI is entitled to receive the management fees on a bi-monthly basis. Any VSI Fee, or portion thereof, not paid
within (30) days of its due date shall bear interest at an annualized rate of 7.5% per annum on the outstanding
past due amount, provided such past due payments are not as a result of the Yonkers School District’s failure to
timely remit the Adjusted Expense Per Pupil to the Charter School .

Effective July 1, 2010, the School and VSI have formally agreed to amend the management agreement . The new
fee will be $500,000 per year and will increase 4% each year until it expires at the end of the 2013/2014 school
year.

NOTE 8 – LINE OF CREDIT

The School has secured a revolving line of credit from a financial institution in the amount of $350,000. The
interest rate is the financial institution's index rate plus 1% (4.250% as of June 30, 2013). As of June 30, 2013, the
School had drawn down $119,633 on this line.

NOTE 9 – CAPITAL LEASES PAYABLE

On June 24, 2011 and November 8, 2011, the School entered into two capital lease agreements for certain
equipment, furniture and fixtures . The lease payments relating to the equipment, furniture and fixtures have been
capitalized and included as fixed assets on the accompanying financial statements . The leased assets have a cost
of $468,791 and have a thirty -six month terms.

NOTE3–INVESTMENTS

PursuanttotheprovisionsdescribedinStatementofFinancialAccountingStandards("SFAS")No.157,FairValue
Measurements,theSchoolcategorizesitsfinancialinstrumentsintoathree-levelfairvaluehierarchythat
prioritizestheinputstovaluationtechniquesusedtomeasurefairvalueintothreeboardlevels.Thefairvalue
hierarchygivesthehighestprioritytoquotedpricesinactivemarketsforidenticalassetsorliabilities(Level1)and
thelowestprioritytounobservableinputs(Level3).Valuationofassetsandliabilitiestradedinlessactivedealer
orbrokermarketsthathavesignificantobservableinputsareclassifiedasLevel2.Level2valuationsareusually
obtainedfromthird-partypricingservicevaluationsforidenticalorsimilarassets.Iftheinputsusedtomeasure
fairvaluefallwithindifferentlevelsofthehierarchy,thecategorylevelisbasedonthelowestprioritylevelinput
thatissignificanttothefairvaluemeasurementoftheinstrument.

TheSchool'sinvestmentsatJune30,2010consistsofmoneymarketaccounttotaling$7,130,whichisclassifiedas
Level2inthefairvaluehierarchy.

NOTE 11 – BONDS PAYABLE

On November 1, 2010, The Yonkers Economic Development Corporation provided financing through the issuance
of $11,735,000 Tax-Exempt Educational Revenue Bonds (Charter School of Educational Excellence Project) (the
"Series 2010A Bonds") . The Series 2010A Bonds of $4,940,000 bear interest at 6.00% per annum and principal due
at maturity on October 15, 2030. The balance of the Series 2010A Bonds of $6,795,000, bear interest at 6.25% per
annum and principal due at maturity on October 15, 2040.

On November 1, 2010, The Yonkers Economic Development Corporation provided financing through the issuance
of $710,000 in Taxable Educational Revenue Bonds (Charter School of Educational Excellence Project (the "Series
2010B Bonds"), bearing interest rate at 8.00% per annum and principal due at maturity on October 15, 2016.

The proceeds of the Series 2010 bonds are to be used for the following purposes :

1) the construction of educational facilities .
2) paying certain prior indebtedness (NCB Capital Impact Loans I and II)
3) paying certain capital expenditures and capitalized interest during construction .
4) paying Series 2010 Bond issuance costs.
5) fund of a Bond Fund Deposit and Reserve Fund Deposit .

NOTE14–SUBSEQUENTEVENTS

TheSchoolevaluateseventsoccurringafterthedateofthefinancialstatementstoconsiderwhetherornotthe
impactofsucheventsneedstobereflectedordisclosedinthefinancialstatements.Suchevaluationisperformed
throughthedatethefinancialstatementsareavailableforissuance,whichwasOctoberxx,2013,forthese
financialstatements.

NOTE7–LOANSPAYABLE

LOANI-InJuly2005,theSchoolenteredintoa$1,500,000loanpayablewithNCBCapitalImpactfortherenovation,
rehabilitationandconstructionofleaseholdimprovementstothefacilitieswheretheschoolislocated.Theloantermis
forfifteenyearsandbearsinterestat8%perannumandmaturesonApril30,2021.ThebalanceoutstandingatJune
30,2010was$1,239,153.

LOANII-InOctober2006,anothersimilarloanwiththesameinstitutionwasobtained.Theloanwasfor$480,000and
hadatermthatexpiredonDecember31,2009.NCBCapitalImpacthasextendedthetermonamonthtomonthbasis
withinterestonlypaymentsbearinganinterestrateof8.25%.ThebalanceoutstandingasofJune30,2010was
$427,130.

LOANIII-InJuly2007,theSchoolconvertedthemanagementfeepayable,loanpayableandtheaccruedinteresttoa
termloanwithVSI(SeeNote7fordetails).Theloanwasfor$1,493,186andhadatermof120months,withinterest
payablemonthlyat7.5%perannumandmaturesonJune2017.

Theleaseholdimprovementsandequipment,servedascollateralfortheNCBCapitalImpactloans.LoansIandIIwere
paidinfullonNovember19,2010.

NOTE 10 – LOAN PAYABLE

In July 2007, the School converted the management fee payable, loan payable and the accrued interest to a term
loan with VSI (See Note 7 for details) . The loan was for $1,493,186 and had a term of 120 months, with interest
payable monthly at 7.5% per annum and matures on June 2019.

Principal maturities of long-term debt are as follows :

(6)NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income Tax Status
The Organization is a not-for-profit corporation organized under the laws of the State of New York. It is exempt
from federal income taxes under Section 501 (c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code.

Fixed Assets
Fixed assets consist of building, leasehold improvements, furniture and equipment and are valued at cost less
accumulated depreciation . Depreciation is computed on a straight line basis over the estimated useful lives of the
related assets or the term of the lease agreement . Normal replacement and maintenance costs are charged to
earnings as incurred, and major renewals and improvements are capitalized . Upon disposition, the cost and
related accumulated depreciation is removed from the accounts and the resulting gain or loss for the period . The
School capitalizes assets with cost of $500 and over. Depreciation is calculated based on the useful lives of the
assets as follows : Building and Leasehold Improvements 20 Years, Equipment, Furniture and Fixtures 3 - 10 Years.

Functional Allocation of Expenses
Expenses relating to more than one function are allocated to program service and management and general based
on employee time estimates or other appropriate usage factors .

Contributed Services
Contributed services that create or enhance nonfinancial assets, or that require specialized skills, are provided by
individuals possessing those skills, and would typically need to be purchased if not provided by donation, are
recorded at fair value in the period received .

A number of volunteers have made a contribution of their time to the School to develop academic and other
programs and to serve on the board of trustees . The value of this contributed time is not reflected in the financial
statements as such services either do not require specialized skills or would not typically be purchased had they
not been provided as donations .

NOTE 5 – DEFERRED FINANCING COST

The school incurred cost of $853,506 related to the Bond offering (See Note 8). The cost are amortized over the
term of the related debt (30 Years) using a straight -line method. Accumulated amortization at June 30, 2013 was
$74,360. Amortization expense costs charged to operations was $28,528 for 2013.

NOTE 6 – RETIREMENT PLANS

Retirement Savings Plan
The School offers a 401(k) plan (the "Plan”) for substantially all of its employees . Employees are eligible for the
plan immediately upon employment and participation in the Plan is voluntary . Employees may contribute up to
15% of their annual compensation to the Plan, limited to a maximum annual amount as set periodically by the
Internal Revenue Service . The School matches the employee contribution 100% up to 4% of the employee’s total
annual compensation . The School’s contribution recognized in the statement of activities was $10,962 for 2013.
The Plan assets are held in a separate trust and are not included in the accompanying financial statements . All
plan assets are held for the exclusive benefit of the Plan’s participants and beneficiaries . The Plan assets are held
in a separate trust and are not included in the accompanying financial statements . All plan assets are held for the
exclusive benefit of the Plan’s participants and beneficiaries . The Principal Financial Group administers the plan
and is the acting custodian of the plan assets .

New York State Teachers' Retirement System
Employees of the School are eligible to participate in the New York State Teachers' Retirement System (NYSTRS) .
The NYSTRS is a defined benefit plan covering teachers in New York State, with pensions calculated based
primarily on the member's years of service and final average salary . Contributions for the year ended June 30,
2013, was based on 11.84%, of participant salaries . The benefits provided to members of the plan are established
by New York State Law and may be amended only by the State Legislature . Pension expense was $380,961 for the
year ended June 30, 2013.

NOTE 3 – PUPIL ENROLLMENT AND OTHER REVENUES FROM GOVERMENT

Under the School’s Charter School Agreement and the Charter School Act, the School is entitled to receive funding
from both State and Federal sources that are available to public schools . These funds include State pupil
enrollment funds and Federal food subsidies and Title I, IIA, IID, IV and V funds. The calculation of the amounts to
be paid to the School under these programs is determined by the State, and is based on complex laws and
regulations, enrollment levels, and economic information related to the home school district of the children
enrolled in the school . If these regulations, some of which are relatively new in the State of New York, were to
change, or other factors included in the calculations were to change, the level of funding that the School receives
could vary significantly .

Amount due from government agencies and included as revenues in the statement of activities, consist of the
following as of June 30, 2013:

AuditsbyFundingSources
TheSchoolparticipatesinanumberofFederalandStateprograms.TheseprogramsrequirethattheSchool
complieswithcertainrequirementoflaws,regulations,contracts,andagreementsapplicabletotheprogramin
whichitparticipates.Allfundsexpendedinconnectionwithgovernmentgrantsandcontractsaresubjecttoaudit
bygovernmentagencies.Whiletheultimateliability,ifany,fromsuchauditsofgovernmentandcontractsby
governmentagenciesispresentlynotdeterminable,itshouldnot,intheopinionofthemanagement,havea
materialeffectonthefinancialpositionorresultofoperations.Accordingly,noprovisionforanysuchliabilitythat
mayresulthasbeenmadeintheaccompanyingfinancialstatements.

NOTE 12 – COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Occupancy Lease
The School has entered into a non-cancelable operating lease for its classroom facilities that expires on June 30,
2019. Future monthly minimum lease payments as of June 30 are as follows :

NOTE 1 – ORGANIZATION

Charter School of Educational Excellence (the “School”) is a New York education corporation incorporated by the
Board of Regents of the University of the State of New York (the "Board of Regents") under Article 56 of the
New York Education Law. The School a non-profit corporation operating from 260 Warburton Avenue, in
Yonkers, New York. The School educates children in a completely nondiscriminatory and secular basis. The
founders and supporters of the School believe that access to a public education of high quality for all children is
the foremost issue. The School was originally chartered during April 2004 and opened with students from
Kindergarten through 4th graders and thereafter added a grade per year through 6th graders . In January 2013,
the School successfully received a full five-year charter renewal from its charter authorizer, the New York State
Education Department that expires in June 2018, with a maximum enrollment of 669 students in grades
Kindergarten through 8th.

NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Accounting
The financial statements have been prepared using the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America . Revenues are recognized when
earned and expenses are recognized when incurred .

Financial Statement Presentation
The net assets of the School and changes therein are classified and reported as follows :

Unrestricted Net Assets - Net assets that are not subject to donor imposed restrictions .

Temporarily Restricted Net Assets - Net assets subject to donor-imposed restrictions that may or will be met,
either by actions of the School and/or the passage of time.

Use of Estimates in the Preparation of Financial Statements
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in The
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported
amounts and disclosures . Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates .

Contributions
The School records contributions received as unrestricted, temporarily restricted, or permanently restricted
support, depending on the existence and/or nature of any donor restrictions . Support that is restricted by the
donor is reported as an increase in unrestricted net assets if the restriction expires in the reporting period in
which the support is recognized . All other donor restricted support is reported as an increase in temporarily or
permanently restricted net assets, depending on the nature of the restriction . When a restriction expires, that
is, when a stipulation time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished, temporarily restricted net
assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the statement of activities as net assets
released from restrictions . All contributions received in the year ended 2013 were unrestricted .

Recognition of Revenue
Government contract revenue is recognized as earned in the period services are provided and costs are
incurred .

Cash and Cash Equivalents
For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, the School considers all highly liquid investments available for
current use with an initial period of three months or less to be cash equivalents .

Audits by Funding Sources
The School participates in a number of Federal and State programs . These programs require the School comply
with certain requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and agreements applicable to the program in which it
participates . All funds expended in connection with government grants and contracts are subject to audit by
government agencies . While the ultimate liability, if any, from such audits of government and contracts by
government agencies is presently not determinable, it should not, in the opinion of the management, have a
material effect on the financial position or results of operations . Accordingly, no provision for such liability that
may result has been made in the accompanying financial statements .

NOTE 13 – CONCENTRATION OF RISK

The School is dependent on various government agencies for funding, and is responsible for meeting the
requirements of such agencies . If the school was to lose students or the related government funding, it could have
a substantial effect on its ability to continue operations .

NOTE 14 – PENDING LITIGATION, CLAIMS, AND ASSESSMENTS

In November of 2011, lawsuits were commenced against the Charter School of Educational Excellence to foreclose
liens filed by subcontractors and material men who were not paid by the Kullman Building Corporation, the
general contractor awarded the contract to construct the Middle School . The lien foreclosure actions, most of
which additionally alleged claims for equitable relief arising out of the identical circumstances were commenced
by two Plaintiffs and six Defendant Lienors seeking damages of $719,826. It is the opinion of management that the
School has defenses against the liens and equitable causes of action, and the School intends to vigorously defend
these lawsuits . As of October 26, 2013, the case is currently pending in Westchester County Supreme Court of
New York State. No amount has been accrued in these financial statements since the outcome of this matter is
uncertain and the amount of liability, if any, cannot be determined .

NOTE 15 – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The School evaluates events occurring after the date of the financial statements to consider whether or not the
impact of such events needs to be reflected or disclosed in the financial statements . Such evaluation is performed
through the date the financial statements are available for issuance, which was October 31, 2013, for these
financial statements .

NOTE 7 – MANAGEMENT FEE

Victory Schools, Inc. ("VSI") d/b/a Victory Education Partners (VEP) manages the operations of the School under a
management agreement entered into by the School and VSI. The agreement was executed on March 30, 2004.
Per the term of the agreement, VSI assumes responsibility for task and functions associated with the educational
services to be provided to the children enrolled as student at the School in accordance with the term of the
Charter and the Charter of Schools Act, subject to the appropriate oversight from the school’s Board of Trustees .

In providing the above services as per the original agreement, VSI was to be paid a management fee in the
amount equal to product of the total full-time equivalent enrollment of students in the Charter School as defined
under Section 119.1 of New York State Commissioner of Education Regulations multiplied . The Per Pupil Fee shall
be increased or decreased each year by the percentage increase or decrease in the Final Adjusted Expense Per
Pupil for charter schools in the Yonkers City school district as calculated by the New York State Education
Department annually .

VSI is entitled to receive the management fees on a bi-monthly basis. Any VSI Fee, or portion thereof, not paid
within (30) days of its due date shall bear interest at an annualized rate of 7.5% per annum on the outstanding
past due amount, provided such past due payments are not as a result of the Yonkers School District’s failure to
timely remit the Adjusted Expense Per Pupil to the Charter School .

Effective July 1, 2010, the School and VSI have formally agreed to amend the management agreement . The new
fee will be $500,000 per year and will increase 4% each year until it expires at the end of the 2013/2014 school
year.

NOTE 8 – LINE OF CREDIT

The School has secured a revolving line of credit from a financial institution in the amount of $350,000. The
interest rate is the financial institution's index rate plus 1% (4.250% as of June 30, 2013). As of June 30, 2013, the
School had drawn down $119,633 on this line.

NOTE 9 – CAPITAL LEASES PAYABLE

On June 24, 2011 and November 8, 2011, the School entered into two capital lease agreements for certain
equipment, furniture and fixtures . The lease payments relating to the equipment, furniture and fixtures have been
capitalized and included as fixed assets on the accompanying financial statements . The leased assets have a cost
of $468,791 and have a thirty -six month terms.

NOTE3–INVESTMENTS

PursuanttotheprovisionsdescribedinStatementofFinancialAccountingStandards("SFAS")No.157,FairValue
Measurements,theSchoolcategorizesitsfinancialinstrumentsintoathree-levelfairvaluehierarchythat
prioritizestheinputstovaluationtechniquesusedtomeasurefairvalueintothreeboardlevels.Thefairvalue
hierarchygivesthehighestprioritytoquotedpricesinactivemarketsforidenticalassetsorliabilities(Level1)and
thelowestprioritytounobservableinputs(Level3).Valuationofassetsandliabilitiestradedinlessactivedealer
orbrokermarketsthathavesignificantobservableinputsareclassifiedasLevel2.Level2valuationsareusually
obtainedfromthird-partypricingservicevaluationsforidenticalorsimilarassets.Iftheinputsusedtomeasure
fairvaluefallwithindifferentlevelsofthehierarchy,thecategorylevelisbasedonthelowestprioritylevelinput
thatissignificanttothefairvaluemeasurementoftheinstrument.

TheSchool'sinvestmentsatJune30,2010consistsofmoneymarketaccounttotaling$7,130,whichisclassifiedas
Level2inthefairvaluehierarchy.

NOTE 11 – BONDS PAYABLE

On November 1, 2010, The Yonkers Economic Development Corporation provided financing through the issuance
of $11,735,000 Tax-Exempt Educational Revenue Bonds (Charter School of Educational Excellence Project) (the
"Series 2010A Bonds") . The Series 2010A Bonds of $4,940,000 bear interest at 6.00% per annum and principal due
at maturity on October 15, 2030. The balance of the Series 2010A Bonds of $6,795,000, bear interest at 6.25% per
annum and principal due at maturity on October 15, 2040.

On November 1, 2010, The Yonkers Economic Development Corporation provided financing through the issuance
of $710,000 in Taxable Educational Revenue Bonds (Charter School of Educational Excellence Project (the "Series
2010B Bonds"), bearing interest rate at 8.00% per annum and principal due at maturity on October 15, 2016.

The proceeds of the Series 2010 bonds are to be used for the following purposes :

1) the construction of educational facilities .
2) paying certain prior indebtedness (NCB Capital Impact Loans I and II)
3) paying certain capital expenditures and capitalized interest during construction .
4) paying Series 2010 Bond issuance costs.
5) fund of a Bond Fund Deposit and Reserve Fund Deposit .

NOTE14–SUBSEQUENTEVENTS

TheSchoolevaluateseventsoccurringafterthedateofthefinancialstatementstoconsiderwhetherornotthe
impactofsucheventsneedstobereflectedordisclosedinthefinancialstatements.Suchevaluationisperformed
throughthedatethefinancialstatementsareavailableforissuance,whichwasOctoberxx,2013,forthese
financialstatements.

NOTE7–LOANSPAYABLE

LOANI-InJuly2005,theSchoolenteredintoa$1,500,000loanpayablewithNCBCapitalImpactfortherenovation,
rehabilitationandconstructionofleaseholdimprovementstothefacilitieswheretheschoolislocated.Theloantermis
forfifteenyearsandbearsinterestat8%perannumandmaturesonApril30,2021.ThebalanceoutstandingatJune
30,2010was$1,239,153.

LOANII-InOctober2006,anothersimilarloanwiththesameinstitutionwasobtained.Theloanwasfor$480,000and
hadatermthatexpiredonDecember31,2009.NCBCapitalImpacthasextendedthetermonamonthtomonthbasis
withinterestonlypaymentsbearinganinterestrateof8.25%.ThebalanceoutstandingasofJune30,2010was
$427,130.

LOANIII-InJuly2007,theSchoolconvertedthemanagementfeepayable,loanpayableandtheaccruedinteresttoa
termloanwithVSI(SeeNote7fordetails).Theloanwasfor$1,493,186andhadatermof120months,withinterest
payablemonthlyat7.5%perannumandmaturesonJune2017.

Theleaseholdimprovementsandequipment,servedascollateralfortheNCBCapitalImpactloans.LoansIandIIwere
paidinfullonNovember19,2010.

NOTE 10 – LOAN PAYABLE

In July 2007, the School converted the management fee payable, loan payable and the accrued interest to a term
loan with VSI (See Note 7 for details) . The loan was for $1,493,186 and had a term of 120 months, with interest
payable monthly at 7.5% per annum and matures on June 2019.

Principal maturities of long-term debt are as follows :
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NOTE 5 – DEFERRED FINANCING COST

The school incurred cost of $853,506 related to the Bond offering (See Note 8). The cost are amortized over the
term of the related debt (30 Years) using a straight -line method. Accumulated amortization at June 30, 2013 was
$74,360. Amortization expense costs charged to operations was $28,528 for 2013.

NOTE 6 – RETIREMENT PLANS

Retirement Savings Plan
The School offers a 401(k) plan (the "Plan”) for substantially all of its employees . Employees are eligible for the
plan immediately upon employment and participation in the Plan is voluntary . Employees may contribute up to
15% of their annual compensation to the Plan, limited to a maximum annual amount as set periodically by the
Internal Revenue Service . The School matches the employee contribution 100% up to 4% of the employee’s total
annual compensation . The School’s contribution recognized in the statement of activities was $10,962 for 2013.
The Plan assets are held in a separate trust and are not included in the accompanying financial statements . All
plan assets are held for the exclusive benefit of the Plan’s participants and beneficiaries . The Plan assets are held
in a separate trust and are not included in the accompanying financial statements . All plan assets are held for the
exclusive benefit of the Plan’s participants and beneficiaries . The Principal Financial Group administers the plan
and is the acting custodian of the plan assets .

New York State Teachers' Retirement System
Employees of the School are eligible to participate in the New York State Teachers' Retirement System (NYSTRS) .
The NYSTRS is a defined benefit plan covering teachers in New York State, with pensions calculated based
primarily on the member's years of service and final average salary . Contributions for the year ended June 30,
2013, was based on 11.84%, of participant salaries . The benefits provided to members of the plan are established
by New York State Law and may be amended only by the State Legislature . Pension expense was $380,961 for the
year ended June 30, 2013.

NOTE 3 – PUPIL ENROLLMENT AND OTHER REVENUES FROM GOVERMENT

Under the School’s Charter School Agreement and the Charter School Act, the School is entitled to receive funding
from both State and Federal sources that are available to public schools . These funds include State pupil
enrollment funds and Federal food subsidies and Title I, IIA, IID, IV and V funds. The calculation of the amounts to
be paid to the School under these programs is determined by the State, and is based on complex laws and
regulations, enrollment levels, and economic information related to the home school district of the children
enrolled in the school . If these regulations, some of which are relatively new in the State of New York, were to
change, or other factors included in the calculations were to change, the level of funding that the School receives
could vary significantly .

Amount due from government agencies and included as revenues in the statement of activities, consist of the
following as of June 30, 2013:

AuditsbyFundingSources
TheSchoolparticipatesinanumberofFederalandStateprograms.TheseprogramsrequirethattheSchool
complieswithcertainrequirementoflaws,regulations,contracts,andagreementsapplicabletotheprogramin
whichitparticipates.Allfundsexpendedinconnectionwithgovernmentgrantsandcontractsaresubjecttoaudit
bygovernmentagencies.Whiletheultimateliability,ifany,fromsuchauditsofgovernmentandcontractsby
governmentagenciesispresentlynotdeterminable,itshouldnot,intheopinionofthemanagement,havea
materialeffectonthefinancialpositionorresultofoperations.Accordingly,noprovisionforanysuchliabilitythat
mayresulthasbeenmadeintheaccompanyingfinancialstatements.

NOTE 12 – COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Occupancy Lease
The School has entered into a non-cancelable operating lease for its classroom facilities that expires on June 30,
2019. Future monthly minimum lease payments as of June 30 are as follows :

NOTE 1 – ORGANIZATION

Charter School of Educational Excellence (the “School”) is a New York education corporation incorporated by the
Board of Regents of the University of the State of New York (the "Board of Regents") under Article 56 of the
New York Education Law. The School a non-profit corporation operating from 260 Warburton Avenue, in
Yonkers, New York. The School educates children in a completely nondiscriminatory and secular basis. The
founders and supporters of the School believe that access to a public education of high quality for all children is
the foremost issue. The School was originally chartered during April 2004 and opened with students from
Kindergarten through 4th graders and thereafter added a grade per year through 6th graders . In January 2013,
the School successfully received a full five-year charter renewal from its charter authorizer, the New York State
Education Department that expires in June 2018, with a maximum enrollment of 669 students in grades
Kindergarten through 8th.

NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Accounting
The financial statements have been prepared using the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America . Revenues are recognized when
earned and expenses are recognized when incurred .

Financial Statement Presentation
The net assets of the School and changes therein are classified and reported as follows :

Unrestricted Net Assets - Net assets that are not subject to donor imposed restrictions .

Temporarily Restricted Net Assets - Net assets subject to donor-imposed restrictions that may or will be met,
either by actions of the School and/or the passage of time.

Use of Estimates in the Preparation of Financial Statements
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in The
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported
amounts and disclosures . Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates .

Contributions
The School records contributions received as unrestricted, temporarily restricted, or permanently restricted
support, depending on the existence and/or nature of any donor restrictions . Support that is restricted by the
donor is reported as an increase in unrestricted net assets if the restriction expires in the reporting period in
which the support is recognized . All other donor restricted support is reported as an increase in temporarily or
permanently restricted net assets, depending on the nature of the restriction . When a restriction expires, that
is, when a stipulation time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished, temporarily restricted net
assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the statement of activities as net assets
released from restrictions . All contributions received in the year ended 2013 were unrestricted .

Recognition of Revenue
Government contract revenue is recognized as earned in the period services are provided and costs are
incurred .

Cash and Cash Equivalents
For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, the School considers all highly liquid investments available for
current use with an initial period of three months or less to be cash equivalents .

Audits by Funding Sources
The School participates in a number of Federal and State programs . These programs require the School comply
with certain requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and agreements applicable to the program in which it
participates . All funds expended in connection with government grants and contracts are subject to audit by
government agencies . While the ultimate liability, if any, from such audits of government and contracts by
government agencies is presently not determinable, it should not, in the opinion of the management, have a
material effect on the financial position or results of operations . Accordingly, no provision for such liability that
may result has been made in the accompanying financial statements .

NOTE 13 – CONCENTRATION OF RISK

The School is dependent on various government agencies for funding, and is responsible for meeting the
requirements of such agencies . If the school was to lose students or the related government funding, it could have
a substantial effect on its ability to continue operations .

NOTE 14 – PENDING LITIGATION, CLAIMS, AND ASSESSMENTS

In November of 2011, lawsuits were commenced against the Charter School of Educational Excellence to foreclose
liens filed by subcontractors and material men who were not paid by the Kullman Building Corporation, the
general contractor awarded the contract to construct the Middle School . The lien foreclosure actions, most of
which additionally alleged claims for equitable relief arising out of the identical circumstances were commenced
by two Plaintiffs and six Defendant Lienors seeking damages of $719,826. It is the opinion of management that the
School has defenses against the liens and equitable causes of action, and the School intends to vigorously defend
these lawsuits . As of October 26, 2013, the case is currently pending in Westchester County Supreme Court of
New York State. No amount has been accrued in these financial statements since the outcome of this matter is
uncertain and the amount of liability, if any, cannot be determined .

NOTE 15 – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The School evaluates events occurring after the date of the financial statements to consider whether or not the
impact of such events needs to be reflected or disclosed in the financial statements . Such evaluation is performed
through the date the financial statements are available for issuance, which was October 31, 2013, for these
financial statements .

NOTE 7 – MANAGEMENT FEE

Victory Schools, Inc. ("VSI") d/b/a Victory Education Partners (VEP) manages the operations of the School under a
management agreement entered into by the School and VSI. The agreement was executed on March 30, 2004.
Per the term of the agreement, VSI assumes responsibility for task and functions associated with the educational
services to be provided to the children enrolled as student at the School in accordance with the term of the
Charter and the Charter of Schools Act, subject to the appropriate oversight from the school’s Board of Trustees .

In providing the above services as per the original agreement, VSI was to be paid a management fee in the
amount equal to product of the total full-time equivalent enrollment of students in the Charter School as defined
under Section 119.1 of New York State Commissioner of Education Regulations multiplied . The Per Pupil Fee shall
be increased or decreased each year by the percentage increase or decrease in the Final Adjusted Expense Per
Pupil for charter schools in the Yonkers City school district as calculated by the New York State Education
Department annually .

VSI is entitled to receive the management fees on a bi-monthly basis. Any VSI Fee, or portion thereof, not paid
within (30) days of its due date shall bear interest at an annualized rate of 7.5% per annum on the outstanding
past due amount, provided such past due payments are not as a result of the Yonkers School District’s failure to
timely remit the Adjusted Expense Per Pupil to the Charter School .

Effective July 1, 2010, the School and VSI have formally agreed to amend the management agreement . The new
fee will be $500,000 per year and will increase 4% each year until it expires at the end of the 2013/2014 school
year.

NOTE 8 – LINE OF CREDIT

The School has secured a revolving line of credit from a financial institution in the amount of $350,000. The
interest rate is the financial institution's index rate plus 1% (4.250% as of June 30, 2013). As of June 30, 2013, the
School had drawn down $119,633 on this line.

NOTE 9 – CAPITAL LEASES PAYABLE

On June 24, 2011 and November 8, 2011, the School entered into two capital lease agreements for certain
equipment, furniture and fixtures . The lease payments relating to the equipment, furniture and fixtures have been
capitalized and included as fixed assets on the accompanying financial statements . The leased assets have a cost
of $468,791 and have a thirty -six month terms.

NOTE3–INVESTMENTS

PursuanttotheprovisionsdescribedinStatementofFinancialAccountingStandards("SFAS")No.157,FairValue
Measurements,theSchoolcategorizesitsfinancialinstrumentsintoathree-levelfairvaluehierarchythat
prioritizestheinputstovaluationtechniquesusedtomeasurefairvalueintothreeboardlevels.Thefairvalue
hierarchygivesthehighestprioritytoquotedpricesinactivemarketsforidenticalassetsorliabilities(Level1)and
thelowestprioritytounobservableinputs(Level3).Valuationofassetsandliabilitiestradedinlessactivedealer
orbrokermarketsthathavesignificantobservableinputsareclassifiedasLevel2.Level2valuationsareusually
obtainedfromthird-partypricingservicevaluationsforidenticalorsimilarassets.Iftheinputsusedtomeasure
fairvaluefallwithindifferentlevelsofthehierarchy,thecategorylevelisbasedonthelowestprioritylevelinput
thatissignificanttothefairvaluemeasurementoftheinstrument.

TheSchool'sinvestmentsatJune30,2010consistsofmoneymarketaccounttotaling$7,130,whichisclassifiedas
Level2inthefairvaluehierarchy.

NOTE 11 – BONDS PAYABLE

On November 1, 2010, The Yonkers Economic Development Corporation provided financing through the issuance
of $11,735,000 Tax-Exempt Educational Revenue Bonds (Charter School of Educational Excellence Project) (the
"Series 2010A Bonds") . The Series 2010A Bonds of $4,940,000 bear interest at 6.00% per annum and principal due
at maturity on October 15, 2030. The balance of the Series 2010A Bonds of $6,795,000, bear interest at 6.25% per
annum and principal due at maturity on October 15, 2040.

On November 1, 2010, The Yonkers Economic Development Corporation provided financing through the issuance
of $710,000 in Taxable Educational Revenue Bonds (Charter School of Educational Excellence Project (the "Series
2010B Bonds"), bearing interest rate at 8.00% per annum and principal due at maturity on October 15, 2016.

The proceeds of the Series 2010 bonds are to be used for the following purposes :

1) the construction of educational facilities .
2) paying certain prior indebtedness (NCB Capital Impact Loans I and II)
3) paying certain capital expenditures and capitalized interest during construction .
4) paying Series 2010 Bond issuance costs.
5) fund of a Bond Fund Deposit and Reserve Fund Deposit .

NOTE14–SUBSEQUENTEVENTS

TheSchoolevaluateseventsoccurringafterthedateofthefinancialstatementstoconsiderwhetherornotthe
impactofsucheventsneedstobereflectedordisclosedinthefinancialstatements.Suchevaluationisperformed
throughthedatethefinancialstatementsareavailableforissuance,whichwasOctoberxx,2013,forthese
financialstatements.

NOTE7–LOANSPAYABLE

LOANI-InJuly2005,theSchoolenteredintoa$1,500,000loanpayablewithNCBCapitalImpactfortherenovation,
rehabilitationandconstructionofleaseholdimprovementstothefacilitieswheretheschoolislocated.Theloantermis
forfifteenyearsandbearsinterestat8%perannumandmaturesonApril30,2021.ThebalanceoutstandingatJune
30,2010was$1,239,153.

LOANII-InOctober2006,anothersimilarloanwiththesameinstitutionwasobtained.Theloanwasfor$480,000and
hadatermthatexpiredonDecember31,2009.NCBCapitalImpacthasextendedthetermonamonthtomonthbasis
withinterestonlypaymentsbearinganinterestrateof8.25%.ThebalanceoutstandingasofJune30,2010was
$427,130.

LOANIII-InJuly2007,theSchoolconvertedthemanagementfeepayable,loanpayableandtheaccruedinteresttoa
termloanwithVSI(SeeNote7fordetails).Theloanwasfor$1,493,186andhadatermof120months,withinterest
payablemonthlyat7.5%perannumandmaturesonJune2017.

Theleaseholdimprovementsandequipment,servedascollateralfortheNCBCapitalImpactloans.LoansIandIIwere
paidinfullonNovember19,2010.

NOTE 10 – LOAN PAYABLE

In July 2007, the School converted the management fee payable, loan payable and the accrued interest to a term
loan with VSI (See Note 7 for details) . The loan was for $1,493,186 and had a term of 120 months, with interest
payable monthly at 7.5% per annum and matures on June 2019.

Principal maturities of long-term debt are as follows :

NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income Tax Status
The Organization is a not-for-profit corporation organized under the laws of the State of New York. It is exempt
from federal income taxes under Section 501 (c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code.

Fixed Assets
Fixed assets consist of building, leasehold improvements, furniture and equipment and are valued at cost less
accumulated depreciation . Depreciation is computed on a straight line basis over the estimated useful lives of the
related assets or the term of the lease agreement . Normal replacement and maintenance costs are charged to
earnings as incurred, and major renewals and improvements are capitalized . Upon disposition, the cost and
related accumulated depreciation is removed from the accounts and the resulting gain or loss for the period . The
School capitalizes assets with cost of $500 and over. Depreciation is calculated based on the useful lives of the
assets as follows : Building and Leasehold Improvements 20 Years, Equipment, Furniture and Fixtures 3 - 10 Years.

Functional Allocation of Expenses
Expenses relating to more than one function are allocated to program service and management and general based
on employee time estimates or other appropriate usage factors .

Contributed Services
Contributed services that create or enhance nonfinancial assets, or that require specialized skills, are provided by
individuals possessing those skills, and would typically need to be purchased if not provided by donation, are
recorded at fair value in the period received .

A number of volunteers have made a contribution of their time to the School to develop academic and other
programs and to serve on the board of trustees . The value of this contributed time is not reflected in the financial
statements as such services either do not require specialized skills or would not typically be purchased had they
not been provided as donations .

NOTE 5 – DEFERRED FINANCING COST

The school incurred cost of $853,506 related to the Bond offering (See Note 8). The cost are amortized over the
term of the related debt (30 Years) using a straight -line method. Accumulated amortization at June 30, 2013 was
$74,360. Amortization expense costs charged to operations was $28,528 for 2013.

NOTE 6 – RETIREMENT PLANS

Retirement Savings Plan
The School offers a 401(k) plan (the "Plan”) for substantially all of its employees . Employees are eligible for the
plan immediately upon employment and participation in the Plan is voluntary . Employees may contribute up to
15% of their annual compensation to the Plan, limited to a maximum annual amount as set periodically by the
Internal Revenue Service . The School matches the employee contribution 100% up to 4% of the employee’s total
annual compensation . The School’s contribution recognized in the statement of activities was $10,962 for 2013.
The Plan assets are held in a separate trust and are not included in the accompanying financial statements . All
plan assets are held for the exclusive benefit of the Plan’s participants and beneficiaries . The Plan assets are held
in a separate trust and are not included in the accompanying financial statements . All plan assets are held for the
exclusive benefit of the Plan’s participants and beneficiaries . The Principal Financial Group administers the plan
and is the acting custodian of the plan assets .

New York State Teachers' Retirement System
Employees of the School are eligible to participate in the New York State Teachers' Retirement System (NYSTRS) .
The NYSTRS is a defined benefit plan covering teachers in New York State, with pensions calculated based
primarily on the member's years of service and final average salary . Contributions for the year ended June 30,
2013, was based on 11.84%, of participant salaries . The benefits provided to members of the plan are established
by New York State Law and may be amended only by the State Legislature . Pension expense was $380,961 for the
year ended June 30, 2013.

AuditsbyFundingSources
TheSchoolparticipatesinanumberofFederalandStateprograms.TheseprogramsrequirethattheSchool
complieswithcertainrequirementoflaws,regulations,contracts,andagreementsapplicabletotheprogramin
whichitparticipates.Allfundsexpendedinconnectionwithgovernmentgrantsandcontractsaresubjecttoaudit
bygovernmentagencies.Whiletheultimateliability,ifany,fromsuchauditsofgovernmentandcontractsby
governmentagenciesispresentlynotdeterminable,itshouldnot,intheopinionofthemanagement,havea
materialeffectonthefinancialpositionorresultofoperations.Accordingly,noprovisionforanysuchliabilitythat
mayresulthasbeenmadeintheaccompanyingfinancialstatements.

NOTE 12 – COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Occupancy Lease
The School has entered into a non-cancelable operating lease for its classroom facilities that expires on June 30,
2019. Future monthly minimum lease payments as of June 30 are as follows :

NOTE 1 – ORGANIZATIONCharter School of Educational Excellence (the “School”) is a New York education corporation incorporated by theBoard of Regents of the University of the State of New York (the "Board of Regents") under Article 56 of theNew York Education Law. The School a non-profit corporation operating from 260 Warburton Avenue, inYonkers, New York. The School educates children in a completely nondiscriminatory and secular basis. Thefounders and supporters of the School believe that access to a public education of high quality for all children isthe foremost issue. The School was originally chartered during April 2004 and opened with students fromKindergarten through 4th graders and thereafter added a grade per year through 6th graders . In January 2013,the School successfully received a full five-year charter renewal from its charter authorizer, the New York StateEducation Department that expires in June 2018, with a maximum enrollment of 669 students in gradesKindergarten through 8th.NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIESBasis of AccountingThe financial statements have been prepared using the accrual basis of accounting in accordance withaccounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America . Revenues are recognized whenearned and expenses are recognized when incurred .Financial Statement PresentationThe net assets of the School and changes therein are classified and reported as follows :Unrestricted Net Assets - Net assets that are not subject to donor imposed restrictions .Temporarily Restricted Net Assets - Net assets subject to donor-imposed restrictions that may or will be met,either by actions of the School and/or the passage of time.Use of Estimates in the Preparation of Financial StatementsThe preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in TheUnited States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reportedamounts and disclosures . Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates .ContributionsThe School records contributions received as unrestricted, temporarily restricted, or permanently restrictedsupport, depending on the existence and/or nature of any donor restrictions . Support that is restricted by thedonor is reported as an increase in unrestricted net assets if the restriction expires in the reporting period inwhich the support is recognized . All other donor restricted support is reported as an increase in temporarily orpermanently restricted net assets, depending on the nature of the restriction . When a restriction expires, thatis, when a stipulation time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished, temporarily restricted netassets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the statement of activities as net assetsreleased from restrictions . All contributions received in the year ended 2013 were unrestricted .Recognition of Revenue
Government contract revenue is recognized as earned in the period services are provided and costs are
incurred .

Cash and Cash Equivalents
For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, the School considers all highly liquid investments available for
current use with an initial period of three months or less to be cash equivalents .

Audits by Funding Sources
The School participates in a number of Federal and State programs . These programs require the School comply
with certain requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and agreements applicable to the program in which it
participates . All funds expended in connection with government grants and contracts are subject to audit by
government agencies . While the ultimate liability, if any, from such audits of government and contracts by
government agencies is presently not determinable, it should not, in the opinion of the management, have a
material effect on the financial position or results of operations . Accordingly, no provision for such liability that
may result has been made in the accompanying financial statements .

NOTE 13 – CONCENTRATION OF RISK

The School is dependent on various government agencies for funding, and is responsible for meeting the
requirements of such agencies . If the school was to lose students or the related government funding, it could have
a substantial effect on its ability to continue operations .

NOTE 14 – PENDING LITIGATION, CLAIMS, AND ASSESSMENTS

In November of 2011, lawsuits were commenced against the Charter School of Educational Excellence to foreclose
liens filed by subcontractors and material men who were not paid by the Kullman Building Corporation, the
general contractor awarded the contract to construct the Middle School . The lien foreclosure actions, most of
which additionally alleged claims for equitable relief arising out of the identical circumstances were commenced
by two Plaintiffs and six Defendant Lienors seeking damages of $719,826. It is the opinion of management that the
School has defenses against the liens and equitable causes of action, and the School intends to vigorously defend
these lawsuits . As of October 26, 2013, the case is currently pending in Westchester County Supreme Court of
New York State. No amount has been accrued in these financial statements since the outcome of this matter is
uncertain and the amount of liability, if any, cannot be determined .

NOTE 15 – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The School evaluates events occurring after the date of the financial statements to consider whether or not the
impact of such events needs to be reflected or disclosed in the financial statements . Such evaluation is performed
through the date the financial statements are available for issuance, which was October 31, 2013, for these
financial statements .

NOTE 7 – MANAGEMENT FEE

Victory Schools, Inc. ("VSI") d/b/a Victory Education Partners (VEP) manages the operations of the School under a
management agreement entered into by the School and VSI. The agreement was executed on March 30, 2004.
Per the term of the agreement, VSI assumes responsibility for task and functions associated with the educational
services to be provided to the children enrolled as student at the School in accordance with the term of the
Charter and the Charter of Schools Act, subject to the appropriate oversight from the school’s Board of Trustees .

In providing the above services as per the original agreement, VSI was to be paid a management fee in the
amount equal to product of the total full-time equivalent enrollment of students in the Charter School as defined
under Section 119.1 of New York State Commissioner of Education Regulations multiplied . The Per Pupil Fee shall
be increased or decreased each year by the percentage increase or decrease in the Final Adjusted Expense Per
Pupil for charter schools in the Yonkers City school district as calculated by the New York State Education
Department annually .

VSI is entitled to receive the management fees on a bi-monthly basis. Any VSI Fee, or portion thereof, not paid
within (30) days of its due date shall bear interest at an annualized rate of 7.5% per annum on the outstanding
past due amount, provided such past due payments are not as a result of the Yonkers School District’s failure to
timely remit the Adjusted Expense Per Pupil to the Charter School .

Effective July 1, 2010, the School and VSI have formally agreed to amend the management agreement . The new
fee will be $500,000 per year and will increase 4% each year until it expires at the end of the 2013/2014 school
year.

NOTE 8 – LINE OF CREDIT

The School has secured a revolving line of credit from a financial institution in the amount of $350,000. The
interest rate is the financial institution's index rate plus 1% (4.250% as of June 30, 2013). As of June 30, 2013, the
School had drawn down $119,633 on this line.

NOTE 9 – CAPITAL LEASES PAYABLE

On June 24, 2011 and November 8, 2011, the School entered into two capital lease agreements for certain
equipment, furniture and fixtures . The lease payments relating to the equipment, furniture and fixtures have been
capitalized and included as fixed assets on the accompanying financial statements . The leased assets have a cost
of $468,791 and have a thirty -six month terms.

NOTE3–INVESTMENTS

PursuanttotheprovisionsdescribedinStatementofFinancialAccountingStandards("SFAS")No.157,FairValue
Measurements,theSchoolcategorizesitsfinancialinstrumentsintoathree-levelfairvaluehierarchythat
prioritizestheinputstovaluationtechniquesusedtomeasurefairvalueintothreeboardlevels.Thefairvalue
hierarchygivesthehighestprioritytoquotedpricesinactivemarketsforidenticalassetsorliabilities(Level1)and
thelowestprioritytounobservableinputs(Level3).Valuationofassetsandliabilitiestradedinlessactivedealer
orbrokermarketsthathavesignificantobservableinputsareclassifiedasLevel2.Level2valuationsareusually
obtainedfromthird-partypricingservicevaluationsforidenticalorsimilarassets.Iftheinputsusedtomeasure
fairvaluefallwithindifferentlevelsofthehierarchy,thecategorylevelisbasedonthelowestprioritylevelinput
thatissignificanttothefairvaluemeasurementoftheinstrument.

TheSchool'sinvestmentsatJune30,2010consistsofmoneymarketaccounttotaling$7,130,whichisclassifiedas
Level2inthefairvaluehierarchy.

NOTE 11 – BONDS PAYABLE

On November 1, 2010, The Yonkers Economic Development Corporation provided financing through the issuance
of $11,735,000 Tax-Exempt Educational Revenue Bonds (Charter School of Educational Excellence Project) (the
"Series 2010A Bonds") . The Series 2010A Bonds of $4,940,000 bear interest at 6.00% per annum and principal due
at maturity on October 15, 2030. The balance of the Series 2010A Bonds of $6,795,000, bear interest at 6.25% per
annum and principal due at maturity on October 15, 2040.

On November 1, 2010, The Yonkers Economic Development Corporation provided financing through the issuance
of $710,000 in Taxable Educational Revenue Bonds (Charter School of Educational Excellence Project (the "Series
2010B Bonds"), bearing interest rate at 8.00% per annum and principal due at maturity on October 15, 2016.

The proceeds of the Series 2010 bonds are to be used for the following purposes :

1) the construction of educational facilities .
2) paying certain prior indebtedness (NCB Capital Impact Loans I and II)
3) paying certain capital expenditures and capitalized interest during construction .
4) paying Series 2010 Bond issuance costs.
5) fund of a Bond Fund Deposit and Reserve Fund Deposit .

NOTE14–SUBSEQUENTEVENTS

TheSchoolevaluateseventsoccurringafterthedateofthefinancialstatementstoconsiderwhetherornotthe
impactofsucheventsneedstobereflectedordisclosedinthefinancialstatements.Suchevaluationisperformed
throughthedatethefinancialstatementsareavailableforissuance,whichwasOctoberxx,2013,forthese
financialstatements.

NOTE7–LOANSPAYABLE

LOANI-InJuly2005,theSchoolenteredintoa$1,500,000loanpayablewithNCBCapitalImpactfortherenovation,
rehabilitationandconstructionofleaseholdimprovementstothefacilitieswheretheschoolislocated.Theloantermis
forfifteenyearsandbearsinterestat8%perannumandmaturesonApril30,2021.ThebalanceoutstandingatJune
30,2010was$1,239,153.

LOANII-InOctober2006,anothersimilarloanwiththesameinstitutionwasobtained.Theloanwasfor$480,000and
hadatermthatexpiredonDecember31,2009.NCBCapitalImpacthasextendedthetermonamonthtomonthbasis
withinterestonlypaymentsbearinganinterestrateof8.25%.ThebalanceoutstandingasofJune30,2010was
$427,130.

LOANIII-InJuly2007,theSchoolconvertedthemanagementfeepayable,loanpayableandtheaccruedinteresttoa
termloanwithVSI(SeeNote7fordetails).Theloanwasfor$1,493,186andhadatermof120months,withinterest
payablemonthlyat7.5%perannumandmaturesonJune2017.

Theleaseholdimprovementsandequipment,servedascollateralfortheNCBCapitalImpactloans.LoansIandIIwere
paidinfullonNovember19,2010.

NOTE 10 – LOAN PAYABLE

In July 2007, the School converted the management fee payable, loan payable and the accrued interest to a term
loan with VSI (See Note 7 for details) . The loan was for $1,493,186 and had a term of 120 months, with interest
payable monthly at 7.5% per annum and matures on June 2019.

Principal maturities of long-term debt are as follows :

(7)

Resident Student Enrollment 1,281,232$     
Federal Funding 121,105          
State Funding 49,175             

1,451,512$     

NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income Tax Status
The Organization is a not-for-profit corporation organized under the laws of the State of New York. It is exempt
from federal income taxes under Section 501 (c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code.

Fixed Assets
Fixed assets consist of building, leasehold improvements, furniture and equipment and are valued at cost less
accumulated depreciation . Depreciation is computed on a straight line basis over the estimated useful lives of the
related assets or the term of the lease agreement . Normal replacement and maintenance costs are charged to
earnings as incurred, and major renewals and improvements are capitalized . Upon disposition, the cost and
related accumulated depreciation is removed from the accounts and the resulting gain or loss for the period . The
School capitalizes assets with cost of $500 and over. Depreciation is calculated based on the useful lives of the
assets as follows : Building and Leasehold Improvements 20 Years, Equipment, Furniture and Fixtures 3 - 10 Years.

Functional Allocation of Expenses
Expenses relating to more than one function are allocated to program service and management and general based
on employee time estimates or other appropriate usage factors .

Contributed Services
Contributed services that create or enhance nonfinancial assets, or that require specialized skills, are provided by
individuals possessing those skills, and would typically need to be purchased if not provided by donation, are
recorded at fair value in the period received .

A number of volunteers have made a contribution of their time to the School to develop academic and other
programs and to serve on the board of trustees . The value of this contributed time is not reflected in the financial
statements as such services either do not require specialized skills or would not typically be purchased had they
not been provided as donations .

NOTE 5 – DEFERRED FINANCING COST

The school incurred cost of $853,506 related to the Bond offering (See Note 8). The cost are amortized over the
term of the related debt (30 Years) using a straight -line method. Accumulated amortization at June 30, 2013 was
$74,360. Amortization expense costs charged to operations was $28,528 for 2013.

NOTE 6 – RETIREMENT PLANS

Retirement Savings Plan
The School offers a 401(k) plan (the "Plan”) for substantially all of its employees . Employees are eligible for the
plan immediately upon employment and participation in the Plan is voluntary . Employees may contribute up to
15% of their annual compensation to the Plan, limited to a maximum annual amount as set periodically by the
Internal Revenue Service . The School matches the employee contribution 100% up to 4% of the employee’s total
annual compensation . The School’s contribution recognized in the statement of activities was $10,962 for 2013.
The Plan assets are held in a separate trust and are not included in the accompanying financial statements . All
plan assets are held for the exclusive benefit of the Plan’s participants and beneficiaries . The Plan assets are held
in a separate trust and are not included in the accompanying financial statements . All plan assets are held for the
exclusive benefit of the Plan’s participants and beneficiaries . The Principal Financial Group administers the plan
and is the acting custodian of the plan assets .

New York State Teachers' Retirement System
Employees of the School are eligible to participate in the New York State Teachers' Retirement System (NYSTRS) .
The NYSTRS is a defined benefit plan covering teachers in New York State, with pensions calculated based
primarily on the member's years of service and final average salary . Contributions for the year ended June 30,
2013, was based on 11.84%, of participant salaries . The benefits provided to members of the plan are established
by New York State Law and may be amended only by the State Legislature . Pension expense was $380,961 for the
year ended June 30, 2013.

NOTE 3 – PUPIL ENROLLMENT AND OTHER REVENUES FROM GOVERMENT

Under the School’s Charter School Agreement and the Charter School Act, the School is entitled to receive funding
from both State and Federal sources that are available to public schools . These funds include State pupil
enrollment funds and Federal food subsidies and Title I, IIA, IID, IV and V funds. The calculation of the amounts to
be paid to the School under these programs is determined by the State, and is based on complex laws and
regulations, enrollment levels, and economic information related to the home school district of the children
enrolled in the school . If these regulations, some of which are relatively new in the State of New York, were to
change, or other factors included in the calculations were to change, the level of funding that the School receives
could vary significantly .

Amount due from government agencies and included as revenues in the statement of activities, consist of the
following as of June 30, 2013:

AuditsbyFundingSources
TheSchoolparticipatesinanumberofFederalandStateprograms.TheseprogramsrequirethattheSchool
complieswithcertainrequirementoflaws,regulations,contracts,andagreementsapplicabletotheprogramin
whichitparticipates.Allfundsexpendedinconnectionwithgovernmentgrantsandcontractsaresubjecttoaudit
bygovernmentagencies.Whiletheultimateliability,ifany,fromsuchauditsofgovernmentandcontractsby
governmentagenciesispresentlynotdeterminable,itshouldnot,intheopinionofthemanagement,havea
materialeffectonthefinancialpositionorresultofoperations.Accordingly,noprovisionforanysuchliabilitythat
mayresulthasbeenmadeintheaccompanyingfinancialstatements.

NOTE 12 – COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Occupancy Lease
The School has entered into a non-cancelable operating lease for its classroom facilities that expires on June 30,
2019. Future monthly minimum lease payments as of June 30 are as follows :

Audits by Funding Sources
The School participates in a number of Federal and State programs . These programs require the School comply
with certain requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and agreements applicable to the program in which it
participates . All funds expended in connection with government grants and contracts are subject to audit by
government agencies . While the ultimate liability, if any, from such audits of government and contracts by
government agencies is presently not determinable, it should not, in the opinion of the management, have a
material effect on the financial position or results of operations . Accordingly, no provision for such liability that
may result has been made in the accompanying financial statements .

NOTE 13 – CONCENTRATION OF RISK

The School is dependent on various government agencies for funding, and is responsible for meeting the
requirements of such agencies . If the school was to lose students or the related government funding, it could have
a substantial effect on its ability to continue operations .

NOTE 14 – PENDING LITIGATION, CLAIMS, AND ASSESSMENTS

In November of 2011, lawsuits were commenced against the Charter School of Educational Excellence to foreclose
liens filed by subcontractors and material men who were not paid by the Kullman Building Corporation, the
general contractor awarded the contract to construct the Middle School . The lien foreclosure actions, most of
which additionally alleged claims for equitable relief arising out of the identical circumstances were commenced
by two Plaintiffs and six Defendant Lienors seeking damages of $719,826. It is the opinion of management that the
School has defenses against the liens and equitable causes of action, and the School intends to vigorously defend
these lawsuits . As of October 26, 2013, the case is currently pending in Westchester County Supreme Court of
New York State. No amount has been accrued in these financial statements since the outcome of this matter is
uncertain and the amount of liability, if any, cannot be determined .

NOTE 15 – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The School evaluates events occurring after the date of the financial statements to consider whether or not the
impact of such events needs to be reflected or disclosed in the financial statements . Such evaluation is performed
through the date the financial statements are available for issuance, which was October 31, 2013, for these
financial statements .

NOTE 7 – MANAGEMENT FEE

Victory Schools, Inc. ("VSI") d/b/a Victory Education Partners (VEP) manages the operations of the School under a
management agreement entered into by the School and VSI. The agreement was executed on March 30, 2004.
Per the term of the agreement, VSI assumes responsibility for task and functions associated with the educational
services to be provided to the children enrolled as student at the School in accordance with the term of the
Charter and the Charter of Schools Act, subject to the appropriate oversight from the school’s Board of Trustees .

In providing the above services as per the original agreement, VSI was to be paid a management fee in the
amount equal to product of the total full-time equivalent enrollment of students in the Charter School as defined
under Section 119.1 of New York State Commissioner of Education Regulations multiplied . The Per Pupil Fee shall
be increased or decreased each year by the percentage increase or decrease in the Final Adjusted Expense Per
Pupil for charter schools in the Yonkers City school district as calculated by the New York State Education
Department annually .

VSI is entitled to receive the management fees on a bi-monthly basis. Any VSI Fee, or portion thereof, not paid
within (30) days of its due date shall bear interest at an annualized rate of 7.5% per annum on the outstanding
past due amount, provided such past due payments are not as a result of the Yonkers School District’s failure to
timely remit the Adjusted Expense Per Pupil to the Charter School .

Effective July 1, 2010, the School and VSI have formally agreed to amend the management agreement . The new
fee will be $500,000 per year and will increase 4% each year until it expires at the end of the 2013/2014 school
year.

NOTE 8 – LINE OF CREDIT

The School has secured a revolving line of credit from a financial institution in the amount of $350,000. The
interest rate is the financial institution's index rate plus 1% (4.250% as of June 30, 2013). As of June 30, 2013, the
School had drawn down $119,633 on this line.

NOTE 9 – CAPITAL LEASES PAYABLE

On June 24, 2011 and November 8, 2011, the School entered into two capital lease agreements for certain
equipment, furniture and fixtures . The lease payments relating to the equipment, furniture and fixtures have been
capitalized and included as fixed assets on the accompanying financial statements . The leased assets have a cost
of $468,791 and have a thirty -six month terms.

NOTE3–INVESTMENTS

PursuanttotheprovisionsdescribedinStatementofFinancialAccountingStandards("SFAS")No.157,FairValue
Measurements,theSchoolcategorizesitsfinancialinstrumentsintoathree-levelfairvaluehierarchythat
prioritizestheinputstovaluationtechniquesusedtomeasurefairvalueintothreeboardlevels.Thefairvalue
hierarchygivesthehighestprioritytoquotedpricesinactivemarketsforidenticalassetsorliabilities(Level1)and
thelowestprioritytounobservableinputs(Level3).Valuationofassetsandliabilitiestradedinlessactivedealer
orbrokermarketsthathavesignificantobservableinputsareclassifiedasLevel2.Level2valuationsareusually
obtainedfromthird-partypricingservicevaluationsforidenticalorsimilarassets.Iftheinputsusedtomeasure
fairvaluefallwithindifferentlevelsofthehierarchy,thecategorylevelisbasedonthelowestprioritylevelinput
thatissignificanttothefairvaluemeasurementoftheinstrument.

TheSchool'sinvestmentsatJune30,2010consistsofmoneymarketaccounttotaling$7,130,whichisclassifiedas
Level2inthefairvaluehierarchy.

NOTE 11 – BONDS PAYABLE

On November 1, 2010, The Yonkers Economic Development Corporation provided financing through the issuance
of $11,735,000 Tax-Exempt Educational Revenue Bonds (Charter School of Educational Excellence Project) (the
"Series 2010A Bonds") . The Series 2010A Bonds of $4,940,000 bear interest at 6.00% per annum and principal due
at maturity on October 15, 2030. The balance of the Series 2010A Bonds of $6,795,000, bear interest at 6.25% per
annum and principal due at maturity on October 15, 2040.

On November 1, 2010, The Yonkers Economic Development Corporation provided financing through the issuance
of $710,000 in Taxable Educational Revenue Bonds (Charter School of Educational Excellence Project (the "Series
2010B Bonds"), bearing interest rate at 8.00% per annum and principal due at maturity on October 15, 2016.

The proceeds of the Series 2010 bonds are to be used for the following purposes :

1) the construction of educational facilities .
2) paying certain prior indebtedness (NCB Capital Impact Loans I and II)
3) paying certain capital expenditures and capitalized interest during construction .
4) paying Series 2010 Bond issuance costs.
5) fund of a Bond Fund Deposit and Reserve Fund Deposit .

NOTE14–SUBSEQUENTEVENTS

TheSchoolevaluateseventsoccurringafterthedateofthefinancialstatementstoconsiderwhetherornotthe
impactofsucheventsneedstobereflectedordisclosedinthefinancialstatements.Suchevaluationisperformed
throughthedatethefinancialstatementsareavailableforissuance,whichwasOctoberxx,2013,forthese
financialstatements.

NOTE7–LOANSPAYABLE

LOANI-InJuly2005,theSchoolenteredintoa$1,500,000loanpayablewithNCBCapitalImpactfortherenovation,
rehabilitationandconstructionofleaseholdimprovementstothefacilitieswheretheschoolislocated.Theloantermis
forfifteenyearsandbearsinterestat8%perannumandmaturesonApril30,2021.ThebalanceoutstandingatJune
30,2010was$1,239,153.

LOANII-InOctober2006,anothersimilarloanwiththesameinstitutionwasobtained.Theloanwasfor$480,000and
hadatermthatexpiredonDecember31,2009.NCBCapitalImpacthasextendedthetermonamonthtomonthbasis
withinterestonlypaymentsbearinganinterestrateof8.25%.ThebalanceoutstandingasofJune30,2010was
$427,130.

LOANIII-InJuly2007,theSchoolconvertedthemanagementfeepayable,loanpayableandtheaccruedinteresttoa
termloanwithVSI(SeeNote7fordetails).Theloanwasfor$1,493,186andhadatermof120months,withinterest
payablemonthlyat7.5%perannumandmaturesonJune2017.

Theleaseholdimprovementsandequipment,servedascollateralfortheNCBCapitalImpactloans.LoansIandIIwere
paidinfullonNovember19,2010.

NOTE 10 – LOAN PAYABLE

In July 2007, the School converted the management fee payable, loan payable and the accrued interest to a term
loan with VSI (See Note 7 for details) . The loan was for $1,493,186 and had a term of 120 months, with interest
payable monthly at 7.5% per annum and matures on June 2019.

Principal maturities of long-term debt are as follows :
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NOTE 5 – DEFERRED FINANCING COST

The school incurred cost of $853,506 related to the Bond offering (See Note 8). The cost are amortized over the
term of the related debt (30 Years) using a straight -line method. Accumulated amortization at June 30, 2013 was
$74,360. Amortization expense costs charged to operations was $28,528 for 2013.

NOTE 6 – RETIREMENT PLANS

Retirement Savings Plan
The School offers a 401(k) plan (the "Plan”) for substantially all of its employees . Employees are eligible for the
plan immediately upon employment and participation in the Plan is voluntary . Employees may contribute up to
15% of their annual compensation to the Plan, limited to a maximum annual amount as set periodically by the
Internal Revenue Service . The School matches the employee contribution 100% up to 4% of the employee’s total
annual compensation . The School’s contribution recognized in the statement of activities was $10,962 for 2013.
The Plan assets are held in a separate trust and are not included in the accompanying financial statements . All
plan assets are held for the exclusive benefit of the Plan’s participants and beneficiaries . The Plan assets are held
in a separate trust and are not included in the accompanying financial statements . All plan assets are held for the
exclusive benefit of the Plan’s participants and beneficiaries . The Principal Financial Group administers the plan
and is the acting custodian of the plan assets .

New York State Teachers' Retirement System
Employees of the School are eligible to participate in the New York State Teachers' Retirement System (NYSTRS) .
The NYSTRS is a defined benefit plan covering teachers in New York State, with pensions calculated based
primarily on the member's years of service and final average salary . Contributions for the year ended June 30,
2013, was based on 11.84%, of participant salaries . The benefits provided to members of the plan are established
by New York State Law and may be amended only by the State Legislature . Pension expense was $380,961 for the
year ended June 30, 2013.

NOTE 3 – PUPIL ENROLLMENT AND OTHER REVENUES FROM GOVERMENT

Under the School’s Charter School Agreement and the Charter School Act, the School is entitled to receive funding
from both State and Federal sources that are available to public schools . These funds include State pupil
enrollment funds and Federal food subsidies and Title I, IIA, IID, IV and V funds. The calculation of the amounts to
be paid to the School under these programs is determined by the State, and is based on complex laws and
regulations, enrollment levels, and economic information related to the home school district of the children
enrolled in the school . If these regulations, some of which are relatively new in the State of New York, were to
change, or other factors included in the calculations were to change, the level of funding that the School receives
could vary significantly .

Amount due from government agencies and included as revenues in the statement of activities, consist of the
following as of June 30, 2013:

AuditsbyFundingSources
TheSchoolparticipatesinanumberofFederalandStateprograms.TheseprogramsrequirethattheSchool
complieswithcertainrequirementoflaws,regulations,contracts,andagreementsapplicabletotheprogramin
whichitparticipates.Allfundsexpendedinconnectionwithgovernmentgrantsandcontractsaresubjecttoaudit
bygovernmentagencies.Whiletheultimateliability,ifany,fromsuchauditsofgovernmentandcontractsby
governmentagenciesispresentlynotdeterminable,itshouldnot,intheopinionofthemanagement,havea
materialeffectonthefinancialpositionorresultofoperations.Accordingly,noprovisionforanysuchliabilitythat
mayresulthasbeenmadeintheaccompanyingfinancialstatements.

NOTE 12 – COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Occupancy Lease
The School has entered into a non-cancelable operating lease for its classroom facilities that expires on June 30,
2019. Future monthly minimum lease payments as of June 30 are as follows :

NOTE 1 – ORGANIZATION

Charter School of Educational Excellence (the “School”) is a New York education corporation incorporated by the
Board of Regents of the University of the State of New York (the "Board of Regents") under Article 56 of the
New York Education Law. The School a non-profit corporation operating from 260 Warburton Avenue, in
Yonkers, New York. The School educates children in a completely nondiscriminatory and secular basis. The
founders and supporters of the School believe that access to a public education of high quality for all children is
the foremost issue. The School was originally chartered during April 2004 and opened with students from
Kindergarten through 4th graders and thereafter added a grade per year through 6th graders . In January 2013,
the School successfully received a full five-year charter renewal from its charter authorizer, the New York State
Education Department that expires in June 2018, with a maximum enrollment of 669 students in grades
Kindergarten through 8th.

NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Accounting
The financial statements have been prepared using the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America . Revenues are recognized when
earned and expenses are recognized when incurred .

Financial Statement Presentation
The net assets of the School and changes therein are classified and reported as follows :

Unrestricted Net Assets - Net assets that are not subject to donor imposed restrictions .

Temporarily Restricted Net Assets - Net assets subject to donor-imposed restrictions that may or will be met,
either by actions of the School and/or the passage of time.

Use of Estimates in the Preparation of Financial Statements
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in The
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported
amounts and disclosures . Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates .

Contributions
The School records contributions received as unrestricted, temporarily restricted, or permanently restricted
support, depending on the existence and/or nature of any donor restrictions . Support that is restricted by the
donor is reported as an increase in unrestricted net assets if the restriction expires in the reporting period in
which the support is recognized . All other donor restricted support is reported as an increase in temporarily or
permanently restricted net assets, depending on the nature of the restriction . When a restriction expires, that
is, when a stipulation time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished, temporarily restricted net
assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the statement of activities as net assets
released from restrictions . All contributions received in the year ended 2013 were unrestricted .

Recognition of Revenue
Government contract revenue is recognized as earned in the period services are provided and costs are
incurred .

Cash and Cash Equivalents
For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, the School considers all highly liquid investments available for
current use with an initial period of three months or less to be cash equivalents .

Audits by Funding Sources
The School participates in a number of Federal and State programs . These programs require the School comply
with certain requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and agreements applicable to the program in which it
participates . All funds expended in connection with government grants and contracts are subject to audit by
government agencies . While the ultimate liability, if any, from such audits of government and contracts by
government agencies is presently not determinable, it should not, in the opinion of the management, have a
material effect on the financial position or results of operations . Accordingly, no provision for such liability that
may result has been made in the accompanying financial statements .

NOTE 13 – CONCENTRATION OF RISK

The School is dependent on various government agencies for funding, and is responsible for meeting the
requirements of such agencies . If the school was to lose students or the related government funding, it could have
a substantial effect on its ability to continue operations .

NOTE 14 – PENDING LITIGATION, CLAIMS, AND ASSESSMENTS

In November of 2011, lawsuits were commenced against the Charter School of Educational Excellence to foreclose
liens filed by subcontractors and material men who were not paid by the Kullman Building Corporation, the
general contractor awarded the contract to construct the Middle School . The lien foreclosure actions, most of
which additionally alleged claims for equitable relief arising out of the identical circumstances were commenced
by two Plaintiffs and six Defendant Lienors seeking damages of $719,826. It is the opinion of management that the
School has defenses against the liens and equitable causes of action, and the School intends to vigorously defend
these lawsuits . As of October 26, 2013, the case is currently pending in Westchester County Supreme Court of
New York State. No amount has been accrued in these financial statements since the outcome of this matter is
uncertain and the amount of liability, if any, cannot be determined .

NOTE 15 – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The School evaluates events occurring after the date of the financial statements to consider whether or not the
impact of such events needs to be reflected or disclosed in the financial statements . Such evaluation is performed
through the date the financial statements are available for issuance, which was October 31, 2013, for these
financial statements .

NOTE 7 – MANAGEMENT FEE

Victory Schools, Inc. ("VSI") d/b/a Victory Education Partners (VEP) manages the operations of the School under a
management agreement entered into by the School and VSI. The agreement was executed on March 30, 2004.
Per the term of the agreement, VSI assumes responsibility for task and functions associated with the educational
services to be provided to the children enrolled as student at the School in accordance with the term of the
Charter and the Charter of Schools Act, subject to the appropriate oversight from the school’s Board of Trustees .

In providing the above services as per the original agreement, VSI was to be paid a management fee in the
amount equal to product of the total full-time equivalent enrollment of students in the Charter School as defined
under Section 119.1 of New York State Commissioner of Education Regulations multiplied . The Per Pupil Fee shall
be increased or decreased each year by the percentage increase or decrease in the Final Adjusted Expense Per
Pupil for charter schools in the Yonkers City school district as calculated by the New York State Education
Department annually .

VSI is entitled to receive the management fees on a bi-monthly basis. Any VSI Fee, or portion thereof, not paid
within (30) days of its due date shall bear interest at an annualized rate of 7.5% per annum on the outstanding
past due amount, provided such past due payments are not as a result of the Yonkers School District’s failure to
timely remit the Adjusted Expense Per Pupil to the Charter School .

Effective July 1, 2010, the School and VSI have formally agreed to amend the management agreement . The new
fee will be $500,000 per year and will increase 4% each year until it expires at the end of the 2013/2014 school
year.

NOTE 8 – LINE OF CREDIT

The School has secured a revolving line of credit from a financial institution in the amount of $350,000. The
interest rate is the financial institution's index rate plus 1% (4.250% as of June 30, 2013). As of June 30, 2013, the
School had drawn down $119,633 on this line.

NOTE 9 – CAPITAL LEASES PAYABLE

On June 24, 2011 and November 8, 2011, the School entered into two capital lease agreements for certain
equipment, furniture and fixtures . The lease payments relating to the equipment, furniture and fixtures have been
capitalized and included as fixed assets on the accompanying financial statements . The leased assets have a cost
of $468,791 and have a thirty -six month terms.

NOTE3–INVESTMENTS

PursuanttotheprovisionsdescribedinStatementofFinancialAccountingStandards("SFAS")No.157,FairValue
Measurements,theSchoolcategorizesitsfinancialinstrumentsintoathree-levelfairvaluehierarchythat
prioritizestheinputstovaluationtechniquesusedtomeasurefairvalueintothreeboardlevels.Thefairvalue
hierarchygivesthehighestprioritytoquotedpricesinactivemarketsforidenticalassetsorliabilities(Level1)and
thelowestprioritytounobservableinputs(Level3).Valuationofassetsandliabilitiestradedinlessactivedealer
orbrokermarketsthathavesignificantobservableinputsareclassifiedasLevel2.Level2valuationsareusually
obtainedfromthird-partypricingservicevaluationsforidenticalorsimilarassets.Iftheinputsusedtomeasure
fairvaluefallwithindifferentlevelsofthehierarchy,thecategorylevelisbasedonthelowestprioritylevelinput
thatissignificanttothefairvaluemeasurementoftheinstrument.

TheSchool'sinvestmentsatJune30,2010consistsofmoneymarketaccounttotaling$7,130,whichisclassifiedas
Level2inthefairvaluehierarchy.

NOTE 11 – BONDS PAYABLE

On November 1, 2010, The Yonkers Economic Development Corporation provided financing through the issuance
of $11,735,000 Tax-Exempt Educational Revenue Bonds (Charter School of Educational Excellence Project) (the
"Series 2010A Bonds") . The Series 2010A Bonds of $4,940,000 bear interest at 6.00% per annum and principal due
at maturity on October 15, 2030. The balance of the Series 2010A Bonds of $6,795,000, bear interest at 6.25% per
annum and principal due at maturity on October 15, 2040.

On November 1, 2010, The Yonkers Economic Development Corporation provided financing through the issuance
of $710,000 in Taxable Educational Revenue Bonds (Charter School of Educational Excellence Project (the "Series
2010B Bonds"), bearing interest rate at 8.00% per annum and principal due at maturity on October 15, 2016.

The proceeds of the Series 2010 bonds are to be used for the following purposes :

1) the construction of educational facilities .
2) paying certain prior indebtedness (NCB Capital Impact Loans I and II)
3) paying certain capital expenditures and capitalized interest during construction .
4) paying Series 2010 Bond issuance costs.
5) fund of a Bond Fund Deposit and Reserve Fund Deposit .

NOTE14–SUBSEQUENTEVENTS

TheSchoolevaluateseventsoccurringafterthedateofthefinancialstatementstoconsiderwhetherornotthe
impactofsucheventsneedstobereflectedordisclosedinthefinancialstatements.Suchevaluationisperformed
throughthedatethefinancialstatementsareavailableforissuance,whichwasOctoberxx,2013,forthese
financialstatements.

NOTE7–LOANSPAYABLE

LOANI-InJuly2005,theSchoolenteredintoa$1,500,000loanpayablewithNCBCapitalImpactfortherenovation,
rehabilitationandconstructionofleaseholdimprovementstothefacilitieswheretheschoolislocated.Theloantermis
forfifteenyearsandbearsinterestat8%perannumandmaturesonApril30,2021.ThebalanceoutstandingatJune
30,2010was$1,239,153.

LOANII-InOctober2006,anothersimilarloanwiththesameinstitutionwasobtained.Theloanwasfor$480,000and
hadatermthatexpiredonDecember31,2009.NCBCapitalImpacthasextendedthetermonamonthtomonthbasis
withinterestonlypaymentsbearinganinterestrateof8.25%.ThebalanceoutstandingasofJune30,2010was
$427,130.

LOANIII-InJuly2007,theSchoolconvertedthemanagementfeepayable,loanpayableandtheaccruedinteresttoa
termloanwithVSI(SeeNote7fordetails).Theloanwasfor$1,493,186andhadatermof120months,withinterest
payablemonthlyat7.5%perannumandmaturesonJune2017.

Theleaseholdimprovementsandequipment,servedascollateralfortheNCBCapitalImpactloans.LoansIandIIwere
paidinfullonNovember19,2010.

NOTE 10 – LOAN PAYABLE

In July 2007, the School converted the management fee payable, loan payable and the accrued interest to a term
loan with VSI (See Note 7 for details) . The loan was for $1,493,186 and had a term of 120 months, with interest
payable monthly at 7.5% per annum and matures on June 2019.

Principal maturities of long-term debt are as follows :

NOTE 4 – FIXED ASSETS

Fixed assets consist of the following:

Building 11,047,940$   
Leasehold Improvements 3,148,787       
Construction in Progress 200                  
Equipment, Furniture and Fixtures 920,876          

15,117,803
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (2,585,809)      

Total Fixed Assets 12,531,994$   

NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)Income Tax StatusThe Organization is a not-for-profit corporation organized under the laws of the State of New York. It is exemptfrom federal income taxes under Section 501 (c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code.Fixed AssetsFixed assets consist of building, leasehold improvements, furniture and equipment and are valued at cost lessaccumulated depreciation . Depreciation is computed on a straight line basis over the estimated useful lives of therelated assets or the term of the lease agreement . Normal replacement and maintenance costs are charged toearnings as incurred, and major renewals and improvements are capitalized . Upon disposition, the cost andrelated accumulated depreciation is removed from the accounts and the resulting gain or loss for the period . TheSchool capitalizes assets with cost of $500 and over. Depreciation is calculated based on the useful lives of theassets as follows : Building and Leasehold Improvements 20 Years, Equipment, Furniture and Fixtures 3 - 10 Years.Functional Allocation of ExpensesExpenses relating to more than one function are allocated to program service and management and general basedon employee time estimates or other appropriate usage factors .Contributed ServicesContributed services that create or enhance nonfinancial assets, or that require specialized skills, are provided byindividuals possessing those skills, and would typically need to be purchased if not provided by donation, arerecorded at fair value in the period received .A number of volunteers have made a contribution of their time to the School to develop academic and otherprograms and to serve on the board of trustees . The value of this contributed time is not reflected in the financialstatements as such services either do not require specialized skills or would not typically be purchased had theynot been provided as donations .

NOTE 5 – DEFERRED FINANCING COST

The school incurred cost of $853,506 related to the Bond offering (See Note 8). The cost are amortized over the
term of the related debt (30 Years) using a straight -line method. Accumulated amortization at June 30, 2013 was
$74,360. Amortization expense costs charged to operations was $28,528 for 2013.

NOTE 6 – RETIREMENT PLANS

Retirement Savings Plan
The School offers a 401(k) plan (the "Plan”) for substantially all of its employees . Employees are eligible for the
plan immediately upon employment and participation in the Plan is voluntary . Employees may contribute up to
15% of their annual compensation to the Plan, limited to a maximum annual amount as set periodically by the
Internal Revenue Service . The School matches the employee contribution 100% up to 4% of the employee’s total
annual compensation . The School’s contribution recognized in the statement of activities was $10,962 for 2013.
The Plan assets are held in a separate trust and are not included in the accompanying financial statements . All
plan assets are held for the exclusive benefit of the Plan’s participants and beneficiaries . The Plan assets are held
in a separate trust and are not included in the accompanying financial statements . All plan assets are held for the
exclusive benefit of the Plan’s participants and beneficiaries . The Principal Financial Group administers the plan
and is the acting custodian of the plan assets .

New York State Teachers' Retirement System
Employees of the School are eligible to participate in the New York State Teachers' Retirement System (NYSTRS) .
The NYSTRS is a defined benefit plan covering teachers in New York State, with pensions calculated based
primarily on the member's years of service and final average salary . Contributions for the year ended June 30,
2013, was based on 11.84%, of participant salaries . The benefits provided to members of the plan are established
by New York State Law and may be amended only by the State Legislature . Pension expense was $380,961 for the
year ended June 30, 2013.

NOTE 3 – PUPIL ENROLLMENT AND OTHER REVENUES FROM GOVERMENTUnder the School’s Charter School Agreement and the Charter School Act, the School is entitled to receive fundingfrom both State and Federal sources that are available to public schools . These funds include State pupilenrollment funds and Federal food subsidies and Title I, IIA, IID, IV and V funds. The calculation of the amounts tobe paid to the School under these programs is determined by the State, and is based on complex laws andregulations, enrollment levels, and economic information related to the home school district of the childrenenrolled in the school . If these regulations, some of which are relatively new in the State of New York, were tochange, or other factors included in the calculations were to change, the level of funding that the School receivescould vary significantly .Amount due from government agencies and included as revenues in the statement of activities, consist of thefollowing as of June 30, 2013:

AuditsbyFundingSources
TheSchoolparticipatesinanumberofFederalandStateprograms.TheseprogramsrequirethattheSchool
complieswithcertainrequirementoflaws,regulations,contracts,andagreementsapplicabletotheprogramin
whichitparticipates.Allfundsexpendedinconnectionwithgovernmentgrantsandcontractsaresubjecttoaudit
bygovernmentagencies.Whiletheultimateliability,ifany,fromsuchauditsofgovernmentandcontractsby
governmentagenciesispresentlynotdeterminable,itshouldnot,intheopinionofthemanagement,havea
materialeffectonthefinancialpositionorresultofoperations.Accordingly,noprovisionforanysuchliabilitythat
mayresulthasbeenmadeintheaccompanyingfinancialstatements.

NOTE 12 – COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Occupancy Lease
The School has entered into a non-cancelable operating lease for its classroom facilities that expires on June 30,
2019. Future monthly minimum lease payments as of June 30 are as follows :

NOTE 1 – ORGANIZATIONCharter School of Educational Excellence (the “School”) is a New York education corporation incorporated by theBoard of Regents of the University of the State of New York (the "Board of Regents") under Article 56 of theNew York Education Law. The School a non-profit corporation operating from 260 Warburton Avenue, inYonkers, New York. The School educates children in a completely nondiscriminatory and secular basis. Thefounders and supporters of the School believe that access to a public education of high quality for all children isthe foremost issue. The School was originally chartered during April 2004 and opened with students fromKindergarten through 4th graders and thereafter added a grade per year through 6th graders . In January 2013,the School successfully received a full five-year charter renewal from its charter authorizer, the New York StateEducation Department that expires in June 2018, with a maximum enrollment of 669 students in gradesKindergarten through 8th.NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIESBasis of AccountingThe financial statements have been prepared using the accrual basis of accounting in accordance withaccounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America . Revenues are recognized whenearned and expenses are recognized when incurred .Financial Statement PresentationThe net assets of the School and changes therein are classified and reported as follows :Unrestricted Net Assets - Net assets that are not subject to donor imposed restrictions .Temporarily Restricted Net Assets - Net assets subject to donor-imposed restrictions that may or will be met,either by actions of the School and/or the passage of time.Use of Estimates in the Preparation of Financial StatementsThe preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in TheUnited States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reportedamounts and disclosures . Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates .ContributionsThe School records contributions received as unrestricted, temporarily restricted, or permanently restrictedsupport, depending on the existence and/or nature of any donor restrictions . Support that is restricted by thedonor is reported as an increase in unrestricted net assets if the restriction expires in the reporting period inwhich the support is recognized . All other donor restricted support is reported as an increase in temporarily orpermanently restricted net assets, depending on the nature of the restriction . When a restriction expires, thatis, when a stipulation time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished, temporarily restricted netassets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the statement of activities as net assetsreleased from restrictions . All contributions received in the year ended 2013 were unrestricted .Recognition of RevenueGovernment contract revenue is recognized as earned in the period services are provided and costs areincurred .Cash and Cash EquivalentsFor the purposes of the statement of cash flows, the School considers all highly liquid investments available forcurrent use with an initial period of three months or less to be cash equivalents .

Audits by Funding Sources
The School participates in a number of Federal and State programs . These programs require the School comply
with certain requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and agreements applicable to the program in which it
participates . All funds expended in connection with government grants and contracts are subject to audit by
government agencies . While the ultimate liability, if any, from such audits of government and contracts by
government agencies is presently not determinable, it should not, in the opinion of the management, have a
material effect on the financial position or results of operations . Accordingly, no provision for such liability that
may result has been made in the accompanying financial statements .

NOTE 13 – CONCENTRATION OF RISK

The School is dependent on various government agencies for funding, and is responsible for meeting the
requirements of such agencies . If the school was to lose students or the related government funding, it could have
a substantial effect on its ability to continue operations .

NOTE 14 – PENDING LITIGATION, CLAIMS, AND ASSESSMENTS

In November of 2011, lawsuits were commenced against the Charter School of Educational Excellence to foreclose
liens filed by subcontractors and material men who were not paid by the Kullman Building Corporation, the
general contractor awarded the contract to construct the Middle School . The lien foreclosure actions, most of
which additionally alleged claims for equitable relief arising out of the identical circumstances were commenced
by two Plaintiffs and six Defendant Lienors seeking damages of $719,826. It is the opinion of management that the
School has defenses against the liens and equitable causes of action, and the School intends to vigorously defend
these lawsuits . As of October 26, 2013, the case is currently pending in Westchester County Supreme Court of
New York State. No amount has been accrued in these financial statements since the outcome of this matter is
uncertain and the amount of liability, if any, cannot be determined .

NOTE 15 – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The School evaluates events occurring after the date of the financial statements to consider whether or not the
impact of such events needs to be reflected or disclosed in the financial statements . Such evaluation is performed
through the date the financial statements are available for issuance, which was October 31, 2013, for these
financial statements .

NOTE3–INVESTMENTSPursuanttotheprovisionsdescribedinStatementofFinancialAccountingStandards("SFAS")No.157,FairValueMeasurements,theSchoolcategorizesitsfinancialinstrumentsintoathree-levelfairvaluehierarchythatprioritizestheinputstovaluationtechniquesusedtomeasurefairvalueintothreeboardlevels.Thefairvaluehierarchygivesthehighestprioritytoquotedpricesinactivemarketsforidenticalassetsorliabilities(Level1)andthelowestprioritytounobservableinputs(Level3).ValuationofassetsandliabilitiestradedinlessactivedealerorbrokermarketsthathavesignificantobservableinputsareclassifiedasLevel2.Level2valuationsareusuallyobtainedfromthird-partypricingservicevaluationsforidenticalorsimilarassets.Iftheinputsusedtomeasurefairvaluefallwithindifferentlevelsofthehierarchy,thecategorylevelisbasedonthelowestprioritylevelinputthatissignificanttothefairvaluemeasurementoftheinstrument.TheSchool'sinvestmentsatJune30,2010consistsofmoneymarketaccounttotaling$7,130,whichisclassifiedasLevel2inthefairvaluehierarchy.

NOTE 11 – BONDS PAYABLE

On November 1, 2010, The Yonkers Economic Development Corporation provided financing through the issuance
of $11,735,000 Tax-Exempt Educational Revenue Bonds (Charter School of Educational Excellence Project) (the
"Series 2010A Bonds") . The Series 2010A Bonds of $4,940,000 bear interest at 6.00% per annum and principal due
at maturity on October 15, 2030. The balance of the Series 2010A Bonds of $6,795,000, bear interest at 6.25% per
annum and principal due at maturity on October 15, 2040.

On November 1, 2010, The Yonkers Economic Development Corporation provided financing through the issuance
of $710,000 in Taxable Educational Revenue Bonds (Charter School of Educational Excellence Project (the "Series
2010B Bonds"), bearing interest rate at 8.00% per annum and principal due at maturity on October 15, 2016.

The proceeds of the Series 2010 bonds are to be used for the following purposes :

1) the construction of educational facilities .
2) paying certain prior indebtedness (NCB Capital Impact Loans I and II)
3) paying certain capital expenditures and capitalized interest during construction .
4) paying Series 2010 Bond issuance costs.
5) fund of a Bond Fund Deposit and Reserve Fund Deposit .

NOTE14–SUBSEQUENTEVENTS

TheSchoolevaluateseventsoccurringafterthedateofthefinancialstatementstoconsiderwhetherornotthe
impactofsucheventsneedstobereflectedordisclosedinthefinancialstatements.Suchevaluationisperformed
throughthedatethefinancialstatementsareavailableforissuance,whichwasOctoberxx,2013,forthese
financialstatements.

NOTE7–LOANSPAYABLE

LOANI-InJuly2005,theSchoolenteredintoa$1,500,000loanpayablewithNCBCapitalImpactfortherenovation,
rehabilitationandconstructionofleaseholdimprovementstothefacilitieswheretheschoolislocated.Theloantermis
forfifteenyearsandbearsinterestat8%perannumandmaturesonApril30,2021.ThebalanceoutstandingatJune
30,2010was$1,239,153.

LOANII-InOctober2006,anothersimilarloanwiththesameinstitutionwasobtained.Theloanwasfor$480,000and
hadatermthatexpiredonDecember31,2009.NCBCapitalImpacthasextendedthetermonamonthtomonthbasis
withinterestonlypaymentsbearinganinterestrateof8.25%.ThebalanceoutstandingasofJune30,2010was
$427,130.

LOANIII-InJuly2007,theSchoolconvertedthemanagementfeepayable,loanpayableandtheaccruedinteresttoa
termloanwithVSI(SeeNote7fordetails).Theloanwasfor$1,493,186andhadatermof120months,withinterest
payablemonthlyat7.5%perannumandmaturesonJune2017.

Theleaseholdimprovementsandequipment,servedascollateralfortheNCBCapitalImpactloans.LoansIandIIwere
paidinfullonNovember19,2010.

NOTE 10 – LOAN PAYABLE

In July 2007, the School converted the management fee payable, loan payable and the accrued interest to a term
loan with VSI (See Note 7 for details) . The loan was for $1,493,186 and had a term of 120 months, with interest
payable monthly at 7.5% per annum and matures on June 2019.

Principal maturities of long-term debt are as follows :
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NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)Income Tax StatusThe Organization is a not-for-profit corporation organized under the laws of the State of New York. It is exemptfrom federal income taxes under Section 501 (c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code.Fixed AssetsFixed assets consist of building, leasehold improvements, furniture and equipment and are valued at cost lessaccumulated depreciation . Depreciation is computed on a straight line basis over the estimated useful lives of therelated assets or the term of the lease agreement . Normal replacement and maintenance costs are charged toearnings as incurred, and major renewals and improvements are capitalized . Upon disposition, the cost andrelated accumulated depreciation is removed from the accounts and the resulting gain or loss for the period . TheSchool capitalizes assets with cost of $500 and over. Depreciation is calculated based on the useful lives of theassets as follows : Building and Leasehold Improvements 20 Years, Equipment, Furniture and Fixtures 3 - 10 Years.Functional Allocation of ExpensesExpenses relating to more than one function are allocated to program service and management and general basedon employee time estimates or other appropriate usage factors .Contributed ServicesContributed services that create or enhance nonfinancial assets, or that require specialized skills, are provided byindividuals possessing those skills, and would typically need to be purchased if not provided by donation, arerecorded at fair value in the period received .A number of volunteers have made a contribution of their time to the School to develop academic and otherprograms and to serve on the board of trustees . The value of this contributed time is not reflected in the financialstatements as such services either do not require specialized skills or would not typically be purchased had theynot been provided as donations .

NOTE 5 – DEFERRED FINANCING COST

The school incurred cost of $853,506 related to the Bond offering (See Note 8). The cost are amortized over the
term of the related debt (30 Years) using a straight -line method. Accumulated amortization at June 30, 2013 was
$74,360. Amortization expense costs charged to operations was $28,528 for 2013.

NOTE 6 – RETIREMENT PLANS

Retirement Savings Plan
The School offers a 401(k) plan (the "Plan”) for substantially all of its employees . Employees are eligible for the
plan immediately upon employment and participation in the Plan is voluntary . Employees may contribute up to
15% of their annual compensation to the Plan, limited to a maximum annual amount as set periodically by the
Internal Revenue Service . The School matches the employee contribution 100% up to 4% of the employee’s total
annual compensation . The School’s contribution recognized in the statement of activities was $10,962 for 2013.
The Plan assets are held in a separate trust and are not included in the accompanying financial statements . All
plan assets are held for the exclusive benefit of the Plan’s participants and beneficiaries . The Plan assets are held
in a separate trust and are not included in the accompanying financial statements . All plan assets are held for the
exclusive benefit of the Plan’s participants and beneficiaries . The Principal Financial Group administers the plan
and is the acting custodian of the plan assets .

New York State Teachers' Retirement System
Employees of the School are eligible to participate in the New York State Teachers' Retirement System (NYSTRS) .
The NYSTRS is a defined benefit plan covering teachers in New York State, with pensions calculated based
primarily on the member's years of service and final average salary . Contributions for the year ended June 30,
2013, was based on 11.84%, of participant salaries . The benefits provided to members of the plan are established
by New York State Law and may be amended only by the State Legislature . Pension expense was $380,961 for the
year ended June 30, 2013.

NOTE 3 – PUPIL ENROLLMENT AND OTHER REVENUES FROM GOVERMENTUnder the School’s Charter School Agreement and the Charter School Act, the School is entitled to receive fundingfrom both State and Federal sources that are available to public schools . These funds include State pupilenrollment funds and Federal food subsidies and Title I, IIA, IID, IV and V funds. The calculation of the amounts tobe paid to the School under these programs is determined by the State, and is based on complex laws andregulations, enrollment levels, and economic information related to the home school district of the childrenenrolled in the school . If these regulations, some of which are relatively new in the State of New York, were tochange, or other factors included in the calculations were to change, the level of funding that the School receivescould vary significantly .Amount due from government agencies and included as revenues in the statement of activities, consist of thefollowing as of June 30, 2013:

AuditsbyFundingSources
TheSchoolparticipatesinanumberofFederalandStateprograms.TheseprogramsrequirethattheSchool
complieswithcertainrequirementoflaws,regulations,contracts,andagreementsapplicabletotheprogramin
whichitparticipates.Allfundsexpendedinconnectionwithgovernmentgrantsandcontractsaresubjecttoaudit
bygovernmentagencies.Whiletheultimateliability,ifany,fromsuchauditsofgovernmentandcontractsby
governmentagenciesispresentlynotdeterminable,itshouldnot,intheopinionofthemanagement,havea
materialeffectonthefinancialpositionorresultofoperations.Accordingly,noprovisionforanysuchliabilitythat
mayresulthasbeenmadeintheaccompanyingfinancialstatements.

NOTE 12 – COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Occupancy Lease
The School has entered into a non-cancelable operating lease for its classroom facilities that expires on June 30,
2019. Future monthly minimum lease payments as of June 30 are as follows :

NOTE 1 – ORGANIZATIONCharter School of Educational Excellence (the “School”) is a New York education corporation incorporated by theBoard of Regents of the University of the State of New York (the "Board of Regents") under Article 56 of theNew York Education Law. The School a non-profit corporation operating from 260 Warburton Avenue, inYonkers, New York. The School educates children in a completely nondiscriminatory and secular basis. Thefounders and supporters of the School believe that access to a public education of high quality for all children isthe foremost issue. The School was originally chartered during April 2004 and opened with students fromKindergarten through 4th graders and thereafter added a grade per year through 6th graders . In January 2013,the School successfully received a full five-year charter renewal from its charter authorizer, the New York StateEducation Department that expires in June 2018, with a maximum enrollment of 669 students in gradesKindergarten through 8th.NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIESBasis of AccountingThe financial statements have been prepared using the accrual basis of accounting in accordance withaccounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America . Revenues are recognized whenearned and expenses are recognized when incurred .Financial Statement PresentationThe net assets of the School and changes therein are classified and reported as follows :Unrestricted Net Assets - Net assets that are not subject to donor imposed restrictions .Temporarily Restricted Net Assets - Net assets subject to donor-imposed restrictions that may or will be met,either by actions of the School and/or the passage of time.Use of Estimates in the Preparation of Financial StatementsThe preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in TheUnited States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reportedamounts and disclosures . Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates .ContributionsThe School records contributions received as unrestricted, temporarily restricted, or permanently restrictedsupport, depending on the existence and/or nature of any donor restrictions . Support that is restricted by thedonor is reported as an increase in unrestricted net assets if the restriction expires in the reporting period inwhich the support is recognized . All other donor restricted support is reported as an increase in temporarily orpermanently restricted net assets, depending on the nature of the restriction . When a restriction expires, thatis, when a stipulation time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished, temporarily restricted netassets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the statement of activities as net assetsreleased from restrictions . All contributions received in the year ended 2013 were unrestricted .Recognition of RevenueGovernment contract revenue is recognized as earned in the period services are provided and costs areincurred .Cash and Cash EquivalentsFor the purposes of the statement of cash flows, the School considers all highly liquid investments available forcurrent use with an initial period of three months or less to be cash equivalents .

Audits by Funding Sources
The School participates in a number of Federal and State programs . These programs require the School comply
with certain requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and agreements applicable to the program in which it
participates . All funds expended in connection with government grants and contracts are subject to audit by
government agencies . While the ultimate liability, if any, from such audits of government and contracts by
government agencies is presently not determinable, it should not, in the opinion of the management, have a
material effect on the financial position or results of operations . Accordingly, no provision for such liability that
may result has been made in the accompanying financial statements .

NOTE 13 – CONCENTRATION OF RISK

The School is dependent on various government agencies for funding, and is responsible for meeting the
requirements of such agencies . If the school was to lose students or the related government funding, it could have
a substantial effect on its ability to continue operations .

NOTE 14 – PENDING LITIGATION, CLAIMS, AND ASSESSMENTS

In November of 2011, lawsuits were commenced against the Charter School of Educational Excellence to foreclose
liens filed by subcontractors and material men who were not paid by the Kullman Building Corporation, the
general contractor awarded the contract to construct the Middle School . The lien foreclosure actions, most of
which additionally alleged claims for equitable relief arising out of the identical circumstances were commenced
by two Plaintiffs and six Defendant Lienors seeking damages of $719,826. It is the opinion of management that the
School has defenses against the liens and equitable causes of action, and the School intends to vigorously defend
these lawsuits . As of October 26, 2013, the case is currently pending in Westchester County Supreme Court of
New York State. No amount has been accrued in these financial statements since the outcome of this matter is
uncertain and the amount of liability, if any, cannot be determined .

NOTE 15 – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The School evaluates events occurring after the date of the financial statements to consider whether or not the
impact of such events needs to be reflected or disclosed in the financial statements . Such evaluation is performed
through the date the financial statements are available for issuance, which was October 31, 2013, for these
financial statements .

NOTE 7 – MANAGEMENT FEE

Victory Schools, Inc. ("VSI") d/b/a Victory Education Partners (VEP) manages the operations of the School under a
management agreement entered into by the School and VSI. The agreement was executed on March 30, 2004.
Per the term of the agreement, VSI assumes responsibility for task and functions associated with the educational
services to be provided to the children enrolled as student at the School in accordance with the term of the
Charter and the Charter of Schools Act, subject to the appropriate oversight from the school’s Board of Trustees .

In providing the above services as per the original agreement, VSI was to be paid a management fee in the
amount equal to product of the total full-time equivalent enrollment of students in the Charter School as defined
under Section 119.1 of New York State Commissioner of Education Regulations multiplied . The Per Pupil Fee shall
be increased or decreased each year by the percentage increase or decrease in the Final Adjusted Expense Per
Pupil for charter schools in the Yonkers City school district as calculated by the New York State Education
Department annually .

VSI is entitled to receive the management fees on a bi-monthly basis. Any VSI Fee, or portion thereof, not paid
within (30) days of its due date shall bear interest at an annualized rate of 7.5% per annum on the outstanding
past due amount, provided such past due payments are not as a result of the Yonkers School District’s failure to
timely remit the Adjusted Expense Per Pupil to the Charter School .

Effective July 1, 2010, the School and VSI have formally agreed to amend the management agreement . The new
fee will be $500,000 per year and will increase 4% each year until it expires at the end of the 2013/2014 school
year.

NOTE 8 – LINE OF CREDIT

The School has secured a revolving line of credit from a financial institution in the amount of $350,000. The
interest rate is the financial institution's index rate plus 1% (4.250% as of June 30, 2013). As of June 30, 2013, the
School had drawn down $119,633 on this line.

NOTE 9 – CAPITAL LEASES PAYABLE

On June 24, 2011 and November 8, 2011, the School entered into two capital lease agreements for certain
equipment, furniture and fixtures . The lease payments relating to the equipment, furniture and fixtures have been
capitalized and included as fixed assets on the accompanying financial statements . The leased assets have a cost
of $468,791 and have a thirty -six month terms.

NOTE3–INVESTMENTSPursuanttotheprovisionsdescribedinStatementofFinancialAccountingStandards("SFAS")No.157,FairValueMeasurements,theSchoolcategorizesitsfinancialinstrumentsintoathree-levelfairvaluehierarchythatprioritizestheinputstovaluationtechniquesusedtomeasurefairvalueintothreeboardlevels.Thefairvaluehierarchygivesthehighestprioritytoquotedpricesinactivemarketsforidenticalassetsorliabilities(Level1)andthelowestprioritytounobservableinputs(Level3).ValuationofassetsandliabilitiestradedinlessactivedealerorbrokermarketsthathavesignificantobservableinputsareclassifiedasLevel2.Level2valuationsareusuallyobtainedfromthird-partypricingservicevaluationsforidenticalorsimilarassets.Iftheinputsusedtomeasurefairvaluefallwithindifferentlevelsofthehierarchy,thecategorylevelisbasedonthelowestprioritylevelinputthatissignificanttothefairvaluemeasurementoftheinstrument.TheSchool'sinvestmentsatJune30,2010consistsofmoneymarketaccounttotaling$7,130,whichisclassifiedasLevel2inthefairvaluehierarchy.

NOTE 11 – BONDS PAYABLE

On November 1, 2010, The Yonkers Economic Development Corporation provided financing through the issuance
of $11,735,000 Tax-Exempt Educational Revenue Bonds (Charter School of Educational Excellence Project) (the
"Series 2010A Bonds") . The Series 2010A Bonds of $4,940,000 bear interest at 6.00% per annum and principal due
at maturity on October 15, 2030. The balance of the Series 2010A Bonds of $6,795,000, bear interest at 6.25% per
annum and principal due at maturity on October 15, 2040.

On November 1, 2010, The Yonkers Economic Development Corporation provided financing through the issuance
of $710,000 in Taxable Educational Revenue Bonds (Charter School of Educational Excellence Project (the "Series
2010B Bonds"), bearing interest rate at 8.00% per annum and principal due at maturity on October 15, 2016.

The proceeds of the Series 2010 bonds are to be used for the following purposes :

1) the construction of educational facilities .
2) paying certain prior indebtedness (NCB Capital Impact Loans I and II)
3) paying certain capital expenditures and capitalized interest during construction .
4) paying Series 2010 Bond issuance costs.
5) fund of a Bond Fund Deposit and Reserve Fund Deposit .

NOTE14–SUBSEQUENTEVENTS

TheSchoolevaluateseventsoccurringafterthedateofthefinancialstatementstoconsiderwhetherornotthe
impactofsucheventsneedstobereflectedordisclosedinthefinancialstatements.Suchevaluationisperformed
throughthedatethefinancialstatementsareavailableforissuance,whichwasOctoberxx,2013,forthese
financialstatements.

NOTE7–LOANSPAYABLE

LOANI-InJuly2005,theSchoolenteredintoa$1,500,000loanpayablewithNCBCapitalImpactfortherenovation,
rehabilitationandconstructionofleaseholdimprovementstothefacilitieswheretheschoolislocated.Theloantermis
forfifteenyearsandbearsinterestat8%perannumandmaturesonApril30,2021.ThebalanceoutstandingatJune
30,2010was$1,239,153.

LOANII-InOctober2006,anothersimilarloanwiththesameinstitutionwasobtained.Theloanwasfor$480,000and
hadatermthatexpiredonDecember31,2009.NCBCapitalImpacthasextendedthetermonamonthtomonthbasis
withinterestonlypaymentsbearinganinterestrateof8.25%.ThebalanceoutstandingasofJune30,2010was
$427,130.

LOANIII-InJuly2007,theSchoolconvertedthemanagementfeepayable,loanpayableandtheaccruedinteresttoa
termloanwithVSI(SeeNote7fordetails).Theloanwasfor$1,493,186andhadatermof120months,withinterest
payablemonthlyat7.5%perannumandmaturesonJune2017.

Theleaseholdimprovementsandequipment,servedascollateralfortheNCBCapitalImpactloans.LoansIandIIwere
paidinfullonNovember19,2010.

NOTE 10 – LOAN PAYABLE

In July 2007, the School converted the management fee payable, loan payable and the accrued interest to a term
loan with VSI (See Note 7 for details) . The loan was for $1,493,186 and had a term of 120 months, with interest
payable monthly at 7.5% per annum and matures on June 2019.

Principal maturities of long-term debt are as follows :
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NOTE 5 – DEFERRED FINANCING COST

The school incurred cost of $853,506 related to the Bond offering (See Note 8). The cost are amortized over the
term of the related debt (30 Years) using a straight -line method. Accumulated amortization at June 30, 2013 was
$74,360. Amortization expense costs charged to operations was $28,528 for 2013.

NOTE 6 – RETIREMENT PLANS

Retirement Savings Plan
The School offers a 401(k) plan (the "Plan”) for substantially all of its employees . Employees are eligible for the
plan immediately upon employment and participation in the Plan is voluntary . Employees may contribute up to
15% of their annual compensation to the Plan, limited to a maximum annual amount as set periodically by the
Internal Revenue Service . The School matches the employee contribution 100% up to 4% of the employee’s total
annual compensation . The School’s contribution recognized in the statement of activities was $10,962 for 2013.
The Plan assets are held in a separate trust and are not included in the accompanying financial statements . All
plan assets are held for the exclusive benefit of the Plan’s participants and beneficiaries . The Plan assets are held
in a separate trust and are not included in the accompanying financial statements . All plan assets are held for the
exclusive benefit of the Plan’s participants and beneficiaries . The Principal Financial Group administers the plan
and is the acting custodian of the plan assets .

New York State Teachers' Retirement System
Employees of the School are eligible to participate in the New York State Teachers' Retirement System (NYSTRS) .
The NYSTRS is a defined benefit plan covering teachers in New York State, with pensions calculated based
primarily on the member's years of service and final average salary . Contributions for the year ended June 30,
2013, was based on 11.84%, of participant salaries . The benefits provided to members of the plan are established
by New York State Law and may be amended only by the State Legislature . Pension expense was $380,961 for the
year ended June 30, 2013.

NOTE 3 – PUPIL ENROLLMENT AND OTHER REVENUES FROM GOVERMENT

Under the School’s Charter School Agreement and the Charter School Act, the School is entitled to receive funding
from both State and Federal sources that are available to public schools . These funds include State pupil
enrollment funds and Federal food subsidies and Title I, IIA, IID, IV and V funds. The calculation of the amounts to
be paid to the School under these programs is determined by the State, and is based on complex laws and
regulations, enrollment levels, and economic information related to the home school district of the children
enrolled in the school . If these regulations, some of which are relatively new in the State of New York, were to
change, or other factors included in the calculations were to change, the level of funding that the School receives
could vary significantly .

Amount due from government agencies and included as revenues in the statement of activities, consist of the
following as of June 30, 2013:

AuditsbyFundingSources
TheSchoolparticipatesinanumberofFederalandStateprograms.TheseprogramsrequirethattheSchool
complieswithcertainrequirementoflaws,regulations,contracts,andagreementsapplicabletotheprogramin
whichitparticipates.Allfundsexpendedinconnectionwithgovernmentgrantsandcontractsaresubjecttoaudit
bygovernmentagencies.Whiletheultimateliability,ifany,fromsuchauditsofgovernmentandcontractsby
governmentagenciesispresentlynotdeterminable,itshouldnot,intheopinionofthemanagement,havea
materialeffectonthefinancialpositionorresultofoperations.Accordingly,noprovisionforanysuchliabilitythat
mayresulthasbeenmadeintheaccompanyingfinancialstatements.

NOTE 12 – COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Occupancy Lease
The School has entered into a non-cancelable operating lease for its classroom facilities that expires on June 30,
2019. Future monthly minimum lease payments as of June 30 are as follows :

NOTE 1 – ORGANIZATION

Charter School of Educational Excellence (the “School”) is a New York education corporation incorporated by the
Board of Regents of the University of the State of New York (the "Board of Regents") under Article 56 of the
New York Education Law. The School a non-profit corporation operating from 260 Warburton Avenue, in
Yonkers, New York. The School educates children in a completely nondiscriminatory and secular basis. The
founders and supporters of the School believe that access to a public education of high quality for all children is
the foremost issue. The School was originally chartered during April 2004 and opened with students from
Kindergarten through 4th graders and thereafter added a grade per year through 6th graders . In January 2013,
the School successfully received a full five-year charter renewal from its charter authorizer, the New York State
Education Department that expires in June 2018, with a maximum enrollment of 669 students in grades
Kindergarten through 8th.

NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Accounting
The financial statements have been prepared using the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America . Revenues are recognized when
earned and expenses are recognized when incurred .

Financial Statement Presentation
The net assets of the School and changes therein are classified and reported as follows :

Unrestricted Net Assets - Net assets that are not subject to donor imposed restrictions .

Temporarily Restricted Net Assets - Net assets subject to donor-imposed restrictions that may or will be met,
either by actions of the School and/or the passage of time.

Use of Estimates in the Preparation of Financial Statements
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in The
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported
amounts and disclosures . Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates .

Contributions
The School records contributions received as unrestricted, temporarily restricted, or permanently restricted
support, depending on the existence and/or nature of any donor restrictions . Support that is restricted by the
donor is reported as an increase in unrestricted net assets if the restriction expires in the reporting period in
which the support is recognized . All other donor restricted support is reported as an increase in temporarily or
permanently restricted net assets, depending on the nature of the restriction . When a restriction expires, that
is, when a stipulation time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished, temporarily restricted net
assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the statement of activities as net assets
released from restrictions . All contributions received in the year ended 2013 were unrestricted .

Recognition of Revenue
Government contract revenue is recognized as earned in the period services are provided and costs are
incurred .

Cash and Cash Equivalents
For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, the School considers all highly liquid investments available for
current use with an initial period of three months or less to be cash equivalents .

Audits by Funding Sources
The School participates in a number of Federal and State programs . These programs require the School comply
with certain requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and agreements applicable to the program in which it
participates . All funds expended in connection with government grants and contracts are subject to audit by
government agencies . While the ultimate liability, if any, from such audits of government and contracts by
government agencies is presently not determinable, it should not, in the opinion of the management, have a
material effect on the financial position or results of operations . Accordingly, no provision for such liability that
may result has been made in the accompanying financial statements .

NOTE 13 – CONCENTRATION OF RISK

The School is dependent on various government agencies for funding, and is responsible for meeting the
requirements of such agencies . If the school was to lose students or the related government funding, it could have
a substantial effect on its ability to continue operations .

NOTE 14 – PENDING LITIGATION, CLAIMS, AND ASSESSMENTS

In November of 2011, lawsuits were commenced against the Charter School of Educational Excellence to foreclose
liens filed by subcontractors and material men who were not paid by the Kullman Building Corporation, the
general contractor awarded the contract to construct the Middle School . The lien foreclosure actions, most of
which additionally alleged claims for equitable relief arising out of the identical circumstances were commenced
by two Plaintiffs and six Defendant Lienors seeking damages of $719,826. It is the opinion of management that the
School has defenses against the liens and equitable causes of action, and the School intends to vigorously defend
these lawsuits . As of October 26, 2013, the case is currently pending in Westchester County Supreme Court of
New York State. No amount has been accrued in these financial statements since the outcome of this matter is
uncertain and the amount of liability, if any, cannot be determined .

NOTE 15 – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The School evaluates events occurring after the date of the financial statements to consider whether or not the
impact of such events needs to be reflected or disclosed in the financial statements . Such evaluation is performed
through the date the financial statements are available for issuance, which was October 31, 2013, for these
financial statements .

NOTE 7 – MANAGEMENT FEE

Victory Schools, Inc. ("VSI") d/b/a Victory Education Partners (VEP) manages the operations of the School under a
management agreement entered into by the School and VSI. The agreement was executed on March 30, 2004.
Per the term of the agreement, VSI assumes responsibility for task and functions associated with the educational
services to be provided to the children enrolled as student at the School in accordance with the term of the
Charter and the Charter of Schools Act, subject to the appropriate oversight from the school’s Board of Trustees .

In providing the above services as per the original agreement, VSI was to be paid a management fee in the
amount equal to product of the total full-time equivalent enrollment of students in the Charter School as defined
under Section 119.1 of New York State Commissioner of Education Regulations multiplied . The Per Pupil Fee shall
be increased or decreased each year by the percentage increase or decrease in the Final Adjusted Expense Per
Pupil for charter schools in the Yonkers City school district as calculated by the New York State Education
Department annually .

VSI is entitled to receive the management fees on a bi-monthly basis. Any VSI Fee, or portion thereof, not paid
within (30) days of its due date shall bear interest at an annualized rate of 7.5% per annum on the outstanding
past due amount, provided such past due payments are not as a result of the Yonkers School District’s failure to
timely remit the Adjusted Expense Per Pupil to the Charter School .

Effective July 1, 2010, the School and VSI have formally agreed to amend the management agreement . The new
fee will be $500,000 per year and will increase 4% each year until it expires at the end of the 2013/2014 school
year.

NOTE 8 – LINE OF CREDIT

The School has secured a revolving line of credit from a financial institution in the amount of $350,000. The
interest rate is the financial institution's index rate plus 1% (4.250% as of June 30, 2013). As of June 30, 2013, the
School had drawn down $119,633 on this line.

NOTE 9 – CAPITAL LEASES PAYABLE

On June 24, 2011 and November 8, 2011, the School entered into two capital lease agreements for certain
equipment, furniture and fixtures . The lease payments relating to the equipment, furniture and fixtures have been
capitalized and included as fixed assets on the accompanying financial statements . The leased assets have a cost
of $468,791 and have a thirty -six month terms.

NOTE3–INVESTMENTS

PursuanttotheprovisionsdescribedinStatementofFinancialAccountingStandards("SFAS")No.157,FairValue
Measurements,theSchoolcategorizesitsfinancialinstrumentsintoathree-levelfairvaluehierarchythat
prioritizestheinputstovaluationtechniquesusedtomeasurefairvalueintothreeboardlevels.Thefairvalue
hierarchygivesthehighestprioritytoquotedpricesinactivemarketsforidenticalassetsorliabilities(Level1)and
thelowestprioritytounobservableinputs(Level3).Valuationofassetsandliabilitiestradedinlessactivedealer
orbrokermarketsthathavesignificantobservableinputsareclassifiedasLevel2.Level2valuationsareusually
obtainedfromthird-partypricingservicevaluationsforidenticalorsimilarassets.Iftheinputsusedtomeasure
fairvaluefallwithindifferentlevelsofthehierarchy,thecategorylevelisbasedonthelowestprioritylevelinput
thatissignificanttothefairvaluemeasurementoftheinstrument.

TheSchool'sinvestmentsatJune30,2010consistsofmoneymarketaccounttotaling$7,130,whichisclassifiedas
Level2inthefairvaluehierarchy.

NOTE 11 – BONDS PAYABLE

On November 1, 2010, The Yonkers Economic Development Corporation provided financing through the issuance
of $11,735,000 Tax-Exempt Educational Revenue Bonds (Charter School of Educational Excellence Project) (the
"Series 2010A Bonds") . The Series 2010A Bonds of $4,940,000 bear interest at 6.00% per annum and principal due
at maturity on October 15, 2030. The balance of the Series 2010A Bonds of $6,795,000, bear interest at 6.25% per
annum and principal due at maturity on October 15, 2040.

On November 1, 2010, The Yonkers Economic Development Corporation provided financing through the issuance
of $710,000 in Taxable Educational Revenue Bonds (Charter School of Educational Excellence Project (the "Series
2010B Bonds"), bearing interest rate at 8.00% per annum and principal due at maturity on October 15, 2016.

The proceeds of the Series 2010 bonds are to be used for the following purposes :

1) the construction of educational facilities .
2) paying certain prior indebtedness (NCB Capital Impact Loans I and II)
3) paying certain capital expenditures and capitalized interest during construction .
4) paying Series 2010 Bond issuance costs.
5) fund of a Bond Fund Deposit and Reserve Fund Deposit .

NOTE14–SUBSEQUENTEVENTS

TheSchoolevaluateseventsoccurringafterthedateofthefinancialstatementstoconsiderwhetherornotthe
impactofsucheventsneedstobereflectedordisclosedinthefinancialstatements.Suchevaluationisperformed
throughthedatethefinancialstatementsareavailableforissuance,whichwasOctoberxx,2013,forthese
financialstatements.

NOTE7–LOANSPAYABLE

LOANI-InJuly2005,theSchoolenteredintoa$1,500,000loanpayablewithNCBCapitalImpactfortherenovation,
rehabilitationandconstructionofleaseholdimprovementstothefacilitieswheretheschoolislocated.Theloantermis
forfifteenyearsandbearsinterestat8%perannumandmaturesonApril30,2021.ThebalanceoutstandingatJune
30,2010was$1,239,153.

LOANII-InOctober2006,anothersimilarloanwiththesameinstitutionwasobtained.Theloanwasfor$480,000and
hadatermthatexpiredonDecember31,2009.NCBCapitalImpacthasextendedthetermonamonthtomonthbasis
withinterestonlypaymentsbearinganinterestrateof8.25%.ThebalanceoutstandingasofJune30,2010was
$427,130.

LOANIII-InJuly2007,theSchoolconvertedthemanagementfeepayable,loanpayableandtheaccruedinteresttoa
termloanwithVSI(SeeNote7fordetails).Theloanwasfor$1,493,186andhadatermof120months,withinterest
payablemonthlyat7.5%perannumandmaturesonJune2017.

Theleaseholdimprovementsandequipment,servedascollateralfortheNCBCapitalImpactloans.LoansIandIIwere
paidinfullonNovember19,2010.

NOTE 10 – LOAN PAYABLE

In July 2007, the School converted the management fee payable, loan payable and the accrued interest to a term
loan with VSI (See Note 7 for details) . The loan was for $1,493,186 and had a term of 120 months, with interest
payable monthly at 7.5% per annum and matures on June 2019.

Principal maturities of long-term debt are as follows :

NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)Income Tax StatusThe Organization is a not-for-profit corporation organized under the laws of the State of New York. It is exemptfrom federal income taxes under Section 501 (c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code.Fixed AssetsFixed assets consist of building, leasehold improvements, furniture and equipment and are valued at cost lessaccumulated depreciation . Depreciation is computed on a straight line basis over the estimated useful lives of therelated assets or the term of the lease agreement . Normal replacement and maintenance costs are charged toearnings as incurred, and major renewals and improvements are capitalized . Upon disposition, the cost andrelated accumulated depreciation is removed from the accounts and the resulting gain or loss for the period . TheSchool capitalizes assets with cost of $500 and over. Depreciation is calculated based on the useful lives of theassets as follows : Building and Leasehold Improvements 20 Years, Equipment, Furniture and Fixtures 3 - 10 Years.Functional Allocation of ExpensesExpenses relating to more than one function are allocated to program service and management and general basedon employee time estimates or other appropriate usage factors .Contributed ServicesContributed services that create or enhance nonfinancial assets, or that require specialized skills, are provided byindividuals possessing those skills, and would typically need to be purchased if not provided by donation, arerecorded at fair value in the period received .A number of volunteers have made a contribution of their time to the School to develop academic and otherprograms and to serve on the board of trustees . The value of this contributed time is not reflected in the financialstatements as such services either do not require specialized skills or would not typically be purchased had theynot been provided as donations .NOTE 5 – DEFERRED FINANCING COSTThe school incurred cost of $853,506 related to the Bond offering (See Note 8). The cost are amortized over theterm of the related debt (30 Years) using a straight -line method. Accumulated amortization at June 30, 2013 was$74,360. Amortization expense costs charged to operations was $28,528 for 2013.NOTE 6 – RETIREMENT PLANSRetirement Savings PlanThe School offers a 401(k) plan (the "Plan”) for substantially all of its employees . Employees are eligible for theplan immediately upon employment and participation in the Plan is voluntary . Employees may contribute up to15% of their annual compensation to the Plan, limited to a maximum annual amount as set periodically by theInternal Revenue Service . The School matches the employee contribution 100% up to 4% of the employee’s totalannual compensation . The School’s contribution recognized in the statement of activities was $10,962 for 2013.The Plan assets are held in a separate trust and are not included in the accompanying financial statements . Allplan assets are held for the exclusive benefit of the Plan’s participants and beneficiaries . The Plan assets are heldin a separate trust and are not included in the accompanying financial statements . All plan assets are held for theexclusive benefit of the Plan’s participants and beneficiaries . The Principal Financial Group administers the planand is the acting custodian of the plan assets .New York State Teachers' Retirement SystemEmployees of the School are eligible to participate in the New York State Teachers' Retirement System (NYSTRS) .The NYSTRS is a defined benefit plan covering teachers in New York State, with pensions calculated basedprimarily on the member's years of service and final average salary . Contributions for the year ended June 30,2013, was based on 11.84%, of participant salaries . The benefits provided to members of the plan are establishedby New York State Law and may be amended only by the State Legislature . Pension expense was $380,961 for theyear ended June 30, 2013.NOTE 3 – PUPIL ENROLLMENT AND OTHER REVENUES FROM GOVERMENTUnder the School’s Charter School Agreement and the Charter School Act, the School is entitled to receive fundingfrom both State and Federal sources that are available to public schools . These funds include State pupilenrollment funds and Federal food subsidies and Title I, IIA, IID, IV and V funds. The calculation of the amounts tobe paid to the School under these programs is determined by the State, and is based on complex laws andregulations, enrollment levels, and economic information related to the home school district of the childrenenrolled in the school . If these regulations, some of which are relatively new in the State of New York, were tochange, or other factors included in the calculations were to change, the level of funding that the School receivescould vary significantly .Amount due from government agencies and included as revenues in the statement of activities, consist of thefollowing as of June 30, 2013:

AuditsbyFundingSources
TheSchoolparticipatesinanumberofFederalandStateprograms.TheseprogramsrequirethattheSchool
complieswithcertainrequirementoflaws,regulations,contracts,andagreementsapplicabletotheprogramin
whichitparticipates.Allfundsexpendedinconnectionwithgovernmentgrantsandcontractsaresubjecttoaudit
bygovernmentagencies.Whiletheultimateliability,ifany,fromsuchauditsofgovernmentandcontractsby
governmentagenciesispresentlynotdeterminable,itshouldnot,intheopinionofthemanagement,havea
materialeffectonthefinancialpositionorresultofoperations.Accordingly,noprovisionforanysuchliabilitythat
mayresulthasbeenmadeintheaccompanyingfinancialstatements.

NOTE 12 – COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Occupancy Lease
The School has entered into a non-cancelable operating lease for its classroom facilities that expires on June 30,
2019. Future monthly minimum lease payments as of June 30 are as follows :

NOTE 1 – ORGANIZATIONCharter School of Educational Excellence (the “School”) is a New York education corporation incorporated by theBoard of Regents of the University of the State of New York (the "Board of Regents") under Article 56 of theNew York Education Law. The School a non-profit corporation operating from 260 Warburton Avenue, inYonkers, New York. The School educates children in a completely nondiscriminatory and secular basis. Thefounders and supporters of the School believe that access to a public education of high quality for all children isthe foremost issue. The School was originally chartered during April 2004 and opened with students fromKindergarten through 4th graders and thereafter added a grade per year through 6th graders . In January 2013,the School successfully received a full five-year charter renewal from its charter authorizer, the New York StateEducation Department that expires in June 2018, with a maximum enrollment of 669 students in gradesKindergarten through 8th.NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIESBasis of AccountingThe financial statements have been prepared using the accrual basis of accounting in accordance withaccounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America . Revenues are recognized whenearned and expenses are recognized when incurred .Financial Statement PresentationThe net assets of the School and changes therein are classified and reported as follows :Unrestricted Net Assets - Net assets that are not subject to donor imposed restrictions .Temporarily Restricted Net Assets - Net assets subject to donor-imposed restrictions that may or will be met,either by actions of the School and/or the passage of time.Use of Estimates in the Preparation of Financial StatementsThe preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in TheUnited States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reportedamounts and disclosures . Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates .ContributionsThe School records contributions received as unrestricted, temporarily restricted, or permanently restrictedsupport, depending on the existence and/or nature of any donor restrictions . Support that is restricted by thedonor is reported as an increase in unrestricted net assets if the restriction expires in the reporting period inwhich the support is recognized . All other donor restricted support is reported as an increase in temporarily orpermanently restricted net assets, depending on the nature of the restriction . When a restriction expires, thatis, when a stipulation time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished, temporarily restricted netassets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the statement of activities as net assetsreleased from restrictions . All contributions received in the year ended 2013 were unrestricted .Recognition of RevenueGovernment contract revenue is recognized as earned in the period services are provided and costs areincurred .Cash and Cash EquivalentsFor the purposes of the statement of cash flows, the School considers all highly liquid investments available forcurrent use with an initial period of three months or less to be cash equivalents .

Audits by Funding Sources
The School participates in a number of Federal and State programs . These programs require the School comply
with certain requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and agreements applicable to the program in which it
participates . All funds expended in connection with government grants and contracts are subject to audit by
government agencies . While the ultimate liability, if any, from such audits of government and contracts by
government agencies is presently not determinable, it should not, in the opinion of the management, have a
material effect on the financial position or results of operations . Accordingly, no provision for such liability that
may result has been made in the accompanying financial statements .

NOTE 13 – CONCENTRATION OF RISK

The School is dependent on various government agencies for funding, and is responsible for meeting the
requirements of such agencies . If the school was to lose students or the related government funding, it could have
a substantial effect on its ability to continue operations .

NOTE 14 – PENDING LITIGATION, CLAIMS, AND ASSESSMENTS

In November of 2011, lawsuits were commenced against the Charter School of Educational Excellence to foreclose
liens filed by subcontractors and material men who were not paid by the Kullman Building Corporation, the
general contractor awarded the contract to construct the Middle School . The lien foreclosure actions, most of
which additionally alleged claims for equitable relief arising out of the identical circumstances were commenced
by two Plaintiffs and six Defendant Lienors seeking damages of $719,826. It is the opinion of management that the
School has defenses against the liens and equitable causes of action, and the School intends to vigorously defend
these lawsuits . As of October 26, 2013, the case is currently pending in Westchester County Supreme Court of
New York State. No amount has been accrued in these financial statements since the outcome of this matter is
uncertain and the amount of liability, if any, cannot be determined .

NOTE 15 – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The School evaluates events occurring after the date of the financial statements to consider whether or not the
impact of such events needs to be reflected or disclosed in the financial statements . Such evaluation is performed
through the date the financial statements are available for issuance, which was October 31, 2013, for these
financial statements .

NOTE 7 – MANAGEMENT FEE

Victory Schools, Inc. ("VSI") d/b/a Victory Education Partners (VEP) manages the operations of the School under a
management agreement entered into by the School and VSI. The agreement was executed on March 30, 2004.
Per the term of the agreement, VSI assumes responsibility for task and functions associated with the educational
services to be provided to the children enrolled as student at the School in accordance with the term of the
Charter and the Charter of Schools Act, subject to the appropriate oversight from the school’s Board of Trustees .

In providing the above services as per the original agreement, VSI was to be paid a management fee in the
amount equal to product of the total full-time equivalent enrollment of students in the Charter School as defined
under Section 119.1 of New York State Commissioner of Education Regulations multiplied . The Per Pupil Fee shall
be increased or decreased each year by the percentage increase or decrease in the Final Adjusted Expense Per
Pupil for charter schools in the Yonkers City school district as calculated by the New York State Education
Department annually .

VSI is entitled to receive the management fees on a bi-monthly basis. Any VSI Fee, or portion thereof, not paid
within (30) days of its due date shall bear interest at an annualized rate of 7.5% per annum on the outstanding
past due amount, provided such past due payments are not as a result of the Yonkers School District’s failure to
timely remit the Adjusted Expense Per Pupil to the Charter School .

Effective July 1, 2010, the School and VSI have formally agreed to amend the management agreement . The new
fee will be $500,000 per year and will increase 4% each year until it expires at the end of the 2013/2014 school
year.

NOTE 8 – LINE OF CREDIT

The School has secured a revolving line of credit from a financial institution in the amount of $350,000. The
interest rate is the financial institution's index rate plus 1% (4.250% as of June 30, 2013). As of June 30, 2013, the
School had drawn down $119,633 on this line.

NOTE 9 – CAPITAL LEASES PAYABLE

On June 24, 2011 and November 8, 2011, the School entered into two capital lease agreements for certain
equipment, furniture and fixtures . The lease payments relating to the equipment, furniture and fixtures have been
capitalized and included as fixed assets on the accompanying financial statements . The leased assets have a cost
of $468,791 and have a thirty -six month terms.

NOTE3–INVESTMENTSPursuanttotheprovisionsdescribedinStatementofFinancialAccountingStandards("SFAS")No.157,FairValueMeasurements,theSchoolcategorizesitsfinancialinstrumentsintoathree-levelfairvaluehierarchythatprioritizestheinputstovaluationtechniquesusedtomeasurefairvalueintothreeboardlevels.Thefairvaluehierarchygivesthehighestprioritytoquotedpricesinactivemarketsforidenticalassetsorliabilities(Level1)andthelowestprioritytounobservableinputs(Level3).ValuationofassetsandliabilitiestradedinlessactivedealerorbrokermarketsthathavesignificantobservableinputsareclassifiedasLevel2.Level2valuationsareusuallyobtainedfromthird-partypricingservicevaluationsforidenticalorsimilarassets.Iftheinputsusedtomeasurefairvaluefallwithindifferentlevelsofthehierarchy,thecategorylevelisbasedonthelowestprioritylevelinputthatissignificanttothefairvaluemeasurementoftheinstrument.TheSchool'sinvestmentsatJune30,2010consistsofmoneymarketaccounttotaling$7,130,whichisclassifiedasLevel2inthefairvaluehierarchy.

NOTE 11 – BONDS PAYABLE

On November 1, 2010, The Yonkers Economic Development Corporation provided financing through the issuance
of $11,735,000 Tax-Exempt Educational Revenue Bonds (Charter School of Educational Excellence Project) (the
"Series 2010A Bonds") . The Series 2010A Bonds of $4,940,000 bear interest at 6.00% per annum and principal due
at maturity on October 15, 2030. The balance of the Series 2010A Bonds of $6,795,000, bear interest at 6.25% per
annum and principal due at maturity on October 15, 2040.

On November 1, 2010, The Yonkers Economic Development Corporation provided financing through the issuance
of $710,000 in Taxable Educational Revenue Bonds (Charter School of Educational Excellence Project (the "Series
2010B Bonds"), bearing interest rate at 8.00% per annum and principal due at maturity on October 15, 2016.

The proceeds of the Series 2010 bonds are to be used for the following purposes :

1) the construction of educational facilities .
2) paying certain prior indebtedness (NCB Capital Impact Loans I and II)
3) paying certain capital expenditures and capitalized interest during construction .
4) paying Series 2010 Bond issuance costs.
5) fund of a Bond Fund Deposit and Reserve Fund Deposit .

NOTE14–SUBSEQUENTEVENTS

TheSchoolevaluateseventsoccurringafterthedateofthefinancialstatementstoconsiderwhetherornotthe
impactofsucheventsneedstobereflectedordisclosedinthefinancialstatements.Suchevaluationisperformed
throughthedatethefinancialstatementsareavailableforissuance,whichwasOctoberxx,2013,forthese
financialstatements.

NOTE7–LOANSPAYABLE

LOANI-InJuly2005,theSchoolenteredintoa$1,500,000loanpayablewithNCBCapitalImpactfortherenovation,
rehabilitationandconstructionofleaseholdimprovementstothefacilitieswheretheschoolislocated.Theloantermis
forfifteenyearsandbearsinterestat8%perannumandmaturesonApril30,2021.ThebalanceoutstandingatJune
30,2010was$1,239,153.

LOANII-InOctober2006,anothersimilarloanwiththesameinstitutionwasobtained.Theloanwasfor$480,000and
hadatermthatexpiredonDecember31,2009.NCBCapitalImpacthasextendedthetermonamonthtomonthbasis
withinterestonlypaymentsbearinganinterestrateof8.25%.ThebalanceoutstandingasofJune30,2010was
$427,130.

LOANIII-InJuly2007,theSchoolconvertedthemanagementfeepayable,loanpayableandtheaccruedinteresttoa
termloanwithVSI(SeeNote7fordetails).Theloanwasfor$1,493,186andhadatermof120months,withinterest
payablemonthlyat7.5%perannumandmaturesonJune2017.

Theleaseholdimprovementsandequipment,servedascollateralfortheNCBCapitalImpactloans.LoansIandIIwere
paidinfullonNovember19,2010.
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Year Ending
June 30, Amount

2014 142,430          
2015 152,675          

295,105          
Less Current Portion 142,430          

Long-Term Portion 152,675$        

NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)Income Tax StatusThe Organization is a not-for-profit corporation organized under the laws of the State of New York. It is exemptfrom federal income taxes under Section 501 (c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code.Fixed AssetsFixed assets consist of building, leasehold improvements, furniture and equipment and are valued at cost lessaccumulated depreciation . Depreciation is computed on a straight line basis over the estimated useful lives of therelated assets or the term of the lease agreement . Normal replacement and maintenance costs are charged toearnings as incurred, and major renewals and improvements are capitalized . Upon disposition, the cost andrelated accumulated depreciation is removed from the accounts and the resulting gain or loss for the period . TheSchool capitalizes assets with cost of $500 and over. Depreciation is calculated based on the useful lives of theassets as follows : Building and Leasehold Improvements 20 Years, Equipment, Furniture and Fixtures 3 - 10 Years.Functional Allocation of ExpensesExpenses relating to more than one function are allocated to program service and management and general basedon employee time estimates or other appropriate usage factors .Contributed ServicesContributed services that create or enhance nonfinancial assets, or that require specialized skills, are provided byindividuals possessing those skills, and would typically need to be purchased if not provided by donation, arerecorded at fair value in the period received .A number of volunteers have made a contribution of their time to the School to develop academic and otherprograms and to serve on the board of trustees . The value of this contributed time is not reflected in the financialstatements as such services either do not require specialized skills or would not typically be purchased had theynot been provided as donations .NOTE 5 – DEFERRED FINANCING COSTThe school incurred cost of $853,506 related to the Bond offering (See Note 8). The cost are amortized over theterm of the related debt (30 Years) using a straight -line method. Accumulated amortization at June 30, 2013 was$74,360. Amortization expense costs charged to operations was $28,528 for 2013.NOTE 6 – RETIREMENT PLANSRetirement Savings PlanThe School offers a 401(k) plan (the "Plan”) for substantially all of its employees . Employees are eligible for theplan immediately upon employment and participation in the Plan is voluntary . Employees may contribute up to15% of their annual compensation to the Plan, limited to a maximum annual amount as set periodically by theInternal Revenue Service . The School matches the employee contribution 100% up to 4% of the employee’s totalannual compensation . The School’s contribution recognized in the statement of activities was $10,962 for 2013.The Plan assets are held in a separate trust and are not included in the accompanying financial statements . Allplan assets are held for the exclusive benefit of the Plan’s participants and beneficiaries . The Plan assets are heldin a separate trust and are not included in the accompanying financial statements . All plan assets are held for theexclusive benefit of the Plan’s participants and beneficiaries . The Principal Financial Group administers the planand is the acting custodian of the plan assets .New York State Teachers' Retirement SystemEmployees of the School are eligible to participate in the New York State Teachers' Retirement System (NYSTRS) .The NYSTRS is a defined benefit plan covering teachers in New York State, with pensions calculated basedprimarily on the member's years of service and final average salary . Contributions for the year ended June 30,2013, was based on 11.84%, of participant salaries . The benefits provided to members of the plan are establishedby New York State Law and may be amended only by the State Legislature . Pension expense was $380,961 for theyear ended June 30, 2013.NOTE 3 – PUPIL ENROLLMENT AND OTHER REVENUES FROM GOVERMENTUnder the School’s Charter School Agreement and the Charter School Act, the School is entitled to receive fundingfrom both State and Federal sources that are available to public schools . These funds include State pupilenrollment funds and Federal food subsidies and Title I, IIA, IID, IV and V funds. The calculation of the amounts tobe paid to the School under these programs is determined by the State, and is based on complex laws andregulations, enrollment levels, and economic information related to the home school district of the childrenenrolled in the school . If these regulations, some of which are relatively new in the State of New York, were tochange, or other factors included in the calculations were to change, the level of funding that the School receivescould vary significantly .Amount due from government agencies and included as revenues in the statement of activities, consist of thefollowing as of June 30, 2013:

AuditsbyFundingSources
TheSchoolparticipatesinanumberofFederalandStateprograms.TheseprogramsrequirethattheSchool
complieswithcertainrequirementoflaws,regulations,contracts,andagreementsapplicabletotheprogramin
whichitparticipates.Allfundsexpendedinconnectionwithgovernmentgrantsandcontractsaresubjecttoaudit
bygovernmentagencies.Whiletheultimateliability,ifany,fromsuchauditsofgovernmentandcontractsby
governmentagenciesispresentlynotdeterminable,itshouldnot,intheopinionofthemanagement,havea
materialeffectonthefinancialpositionorresultofoperations.Accordingly,noprovisionforanysuchliabilitythat
mayresulthasbeenmadeintheaccompanyingfinancialstatements.

NOTE 12 – COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Occupancy Lease
The School has entered into a non-cancelable operating lease for its classroom facilities that expires on June 30,
2019. Future monthly minimum lease payments as of June 30 are as follows :

NOTE 1 – ORGANIZATIONCharter School of Educational Excellence (the “School”) is a New York education corporation incorporated by theBoard of Regents of the University of the State of New York (the "Board of Regents") under Article 56 of theNew York Education Law. The School a non-profit corporation operating from 260 Warburton Avenue, inYonkers, New York. The School educates children in a completely nondiscriminatory and secular basis. Thefounders and supporters of the School believe that access to a public education of high quality for all children isthe foremost issue. The School was originally chartered during April 2004 and opened with students fromKindergarten through 4th graders and thereafter added a grade per year through 6th graders . In January 2013,the School successfully received a full five-year charter renewal from its charter authorizer, the New York StateEducation Department that expires in June 2018, with a maximum enrollment of 669 students in gradesKindergarten through 8th.NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIESBasis of AccountingThe financial statements have been prepared using the accrual basis of accounting in accordance withaccounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America . Revenues are recognized whenearned and expenses are recognized when incurred .Financial Statement PresentationThe net assets of the School and changes therein are classified and reported as follows :Unrestricted Net Assets - Net assets that are not subject to donor imposed restrictions .Temporarily Restricted Net Assets - Net assets subject to donor-imposed restrictions that may or will be met,either by actions of the School and/or the passage of time.Use of Estimates in the Preparation of Financial StatementsThe preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in TheUnited States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reportedamounts and disclosures . Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates .ContributionsThe School records contributions received as unrestricted, temporarily restricted, or permanently restrictedsupport, depending on the existence and/or nature of any donor restrictions . Support that is restricted by thedonor is reported as an increase in unrestricted net assets if the restriction expires in the reporting period inwhich the support is recognized . All other donor restricted support is reported as an increase in temporarily orpermanently restricted net assets, depending on the nature of the restriction . When a restriction expires, thatis, when a stipulation time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished, temporarily restricted netassets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the statement of activities as net assetsreleased from restrictions . All contributions received in the year ended 2013 were unrestricted .Recognition of RevenueGovernment contract revenue is recognized as earned in the period services are provided and costs areincurred .Cash and Cash EquivalentsFor the purposes of the statement of cash flows, the School considers all highly liquid investments available forcurrent use with an initial period of three months or less to be cash equivalents .

Audits by Funding Sources
The School participates in a number of Federal and State programs . These programs require the School comply
with certain requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and agreements applicable to the program in which it
participates . All funds expended in connection with government grants and contracts are subject to audit by
government agencies . While the ultimate liability, if any, from such audits of government and contracts by
government agencies is presently not determinable, it should not, in the opinion of the management, have a
material effect on the financial position or results of operations . Accordingly, no provision for such liability that
may result has been made in the accompanying financial statements .

NOTE 13 – CONCENTRATION OF RISK

The School is dependent on various government agencies for funding, and is responsible for meeting the
requirements of such agencies . If the school was to lose students or the related government funding, it could have
a substantial effect on its ability to continue operations .

NOTE 14 – PENDING LITIGATION, CLAIMS, AND ASSESSMENTS

In November of 2011, lawsuits were commenced against the Charter School of Educational Excellence to foreclose
liens filed by subcontractors and material men who were not paid by the Kullman Building Corporation, the
general contractor awarded the contract to construct the Middle School . The lien foreclosure actions, most of
which additionally alleged claims for equitable relief arising out of the identical circumstances were commenced
by two Plaintiffs and six Defendant Lienors seeking damages of $719,826. It is the opinion of management that the
School has defenses against the liens and equitable causes of action, and the School intends to vigorously defend
these lawsuits . As of October 26, 2013, the case is currently pending in Westchester County Supreme Court of
New York State. No amount has been accrued in these financial statements since the outcome of this matter is
uncertain and the amount of liability, if any, cannot be determined .

NOTE 15 – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The School evaluates events occurring after the date of the financial statements to consider whether or not the
impact of such events needs to be reflected or disclosed in the financial statements . Such evaluation is performed
through the date the financial statements are available for issuance, which was October 31, 2013, for these
financial statements .

NOTE 7 – MANAGEMENT FEE

Victory Schools, Inc. ("VSI") d/b/a Victory Education Partners (VEP) manages the operations of the School under a
management agreement entered into by the School and VSI. The agreement was executed on March 30, 2004.
Per the term of the agreement, VSI assumes responsibility for task and functions associated with the educational
services to be provided to the children enrolled as student at the School in accordance with the term of the
Charter and the Charter of Schools Act, subject to the appropriate oversight from the school’s Board of Trustees .

In providing the above services as per the original agreement, VSI was to be paid a management fee in the
amount equal to product of the total full-time equivalent enrollment of students in the Charter School as defined
under Section 119.1 of New York State Commissioner of Education Regulations multiplied . The Per Pupil Fee shall
be increased or decreased each year by the percentage increase or decrease in the Final Adjusted Expense Per
Pupil for charter schools in the Yonkers City school district as calculated by the New York State Education
Department annually .

VSI is entitled to receive the management fees on a bi-monthly basis. Any VSI Fee, or portion thereof, not paid
within (30) days of its due date shall bear interest at an annualized rate of 7.5% per annum on the outstanding
past due amount, provided such past due payments are not as a result of the Yonkers School District’s failure to
timely remit the Adjusted Expense Per Pupil to the Charter School .

Effective July 1, 2010, the School and VSI have formally agreed to amend the management agreement . The new
fee will be $500,000 per year and will increase 4% each year until it expires at the end of the 2013/2014 school
year.

NOTE 8 – LINE OF CREDIT

The School has secured a revolving line of credit from a financial institution in the amount of $350,000. The
interest rate is the financial institution's index rate plus 1% (4.250% as of June 30, 2013). As of June 30, 2013, the
School had drawn down $119,633 on this line.

NOTE 9 – CAPITAL LEASES PAYABLE

On June 24, 2011 and November 8, 2011, the School entered into two capital lease agreements for certain
equipment, furniture and fixtures . The lease payments relating to the equipment, furniture and fixtures have been
capitalized and included as fixed assets on the accompanying financial statements . The leased assets have a cost
of $468,791 and have a thirty -six month terms.

NOTE3–INVESTMENTSPursuanttotheprovisionsdescribedinStatementofFinancialAccountingStandards("SFAS")No.157,FairValueMeasurements,theSchoolcategorizesitsfinancialinstrumentsintoathree-levelfairvaluehierarchythatprioritizestheinputstovaluationtechniquesusedtomeasurefairvalueintothreeboardlevels.Thefairvaluehierarchygivesthehighestprioritytoquotedpricesinactivemarketsforidenticalassetsorliabilities(Level1)andthelowestprioritytounobservableinputs(Level3).ValuationofassetsandliabilitiestradedinlessactivedealerorbrokermarketsthathavesignificantobservableinputsareclassifiedasLevel2.Level2valuationsareusuallyobtainedfromthird-partypricingservicevaluationsforidenticalorsimilarassets.Iftheinputsusedtomeasurefairvaluefallwithindifferentlevelsofthehierarchy,thecategorylevelisbasedonthelowestprioritylevelinputthatissignificanttothefairvaluemeasurementoftheinstrument.TheSchool'sinvestmentsatJune30,2010consistsofmoneymarketaccounttotaling$7,130,whichisclassifiedasLevel2inthefairvaluehierarchy.

NOTE 11 – BONDS PAYABLE

On November 1, 2010, The Yonkers Economic Development Corporation provided financing through the issuance
of $11,735,000 Tax-Exempt Educational Revenue Bonds (Charter School of Educational Excellence Project) (the
"Series 2010A Bonds") . The Series 2010A Bonds of $4,940,000 bear interest at 6.00% per annum and principal due
at maturity on October 15, 2030. The balance of the Series 2010A Bonds of $6,795,000, bear interest at 6.25% per
annum and principal due at maturity on October 15, 2040.

On November 1, 2010, The Yonkers Economic Development Corporation provided financing through the issuance
of $710,000 in Taxable Educational Revenue Bonds (Charter School of Educational Excellence Project (the "Series
2010B Bonds"), bearing interest rate at 8.00% per annum and principal due at maturity on October 15, 2016.

The proceeds of the Series 2010 bonds are to be used for the following purposes :

1) the construction of educational facilities .
2) paying certain prior indebtedness (NCB Capital Impact Loans I and II)
3) paying certain capital expenditures and capitalized interest during construction .
4) paying Series 2010 Bond issuance costs.
5) fund of a Bond Fund Deposit and Reserve Fund Deposit .

NOTE14–SUBSEQUENTEVENTS

TheSchoolevaluateseventsoccurringafterthedateofthefinancialstatementstoconsiderwhetherornotthe
impactofsucheventsneedstobereflectedordisclosedinthefinancialstatements.Suchevaluationisperformed
throughthedatethefinancialstatementsareavailableforissuance,whichwasOctoberxx,2013,forthese
financialstatements.

NOTE7–LOANSPAYABLE

LOANI-InJuly2005,theSchoolenteredintoa$1,500,000loanpayablewithNCBCapitalImpactfortherenovation,
rehabilitationandconstructionofleaseholdimprovementstothefacilitieswheretheschoolislocated.Theloantermis
forfifteenyearsandbearsinterestat8%perannumandmaturesonApril30,2021.ThebalanceoutstandingatJune
30,2010was$1,239,153.

LOANII-InOctober2006,anothersimilarloanwiththesameinstitutionwasobtained.Theloanwasfor$480,000and
hadatermthatexpiredonDecember31,2009.NCBCapitalImpacthasextendedthetermonamonthtomonthbasis
withinterestonlypaymentsbearinganinterestrateof8.25%.ThebalanceoutstandingasofJune30,2010was
$427,130.

LOANIII-InJuly2007,theSchoolconvertedthemanagementfeepayable,loanpayableandtheaccruedinteresttoa
termloanwithVSI(SeeNote7fordetails).Theloanwasfor$1,493,186andhadatermof120months,withinterest
payablemonthlyat7.5%perannumandmaturesonJune2017.

Theleaseholdimprovementsandequipment,servedascollateralfortheNCBCapitalImpactloans.LoansIandIIwere
paidinfullonNovember19,2010.

NOTE 10 – LOAN PAYABLE

In July 2007, the School converted the management fee payable, loan payable and the accrued interest to a term
loan with VSI (See Note 7 for details) . The loan was for $1,493,186 and had a term of 120 months, with interest
payable monthly at 7.5% per annum and matures on June 2019.

Principal maturities of long-term debt are as follows :
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Charter School of Educational Excellence

Notes to the Financial Statements

June 30, 2013

NOTE 5 – DEFERRED FINANCING COST

The school incurred cost of $853,506 related to the Bond offering (See Note 8). The cost are amortized over the
term of the related debt (30 Years) using a straight -line method. Accumulated amortization at June 30, 2013 was
$74,360. Amortization expense costs charged to operations was $28,528 for 2013.

NOTE 6 – RETIREMENT PLANS

Retirement Savings Plan
The School offers a 401(k) plan (the "Plan”) for substantially all of its employees . Employees are eligible for the
plan immediately upon employment and participation in the Plan is voluntary . Employees may contribute up to
15% of their annual compensation to the Plan, limited to a maximum annual amount as set periodically by the
Internal Revenue Service . The School matches the employee contribution 100% up to 4% of the employee’s total
annual compensation . The School’s contribution recognized in the statement of activities was $10,962 for 2013.
The Plan assets are held in a separate trust and are not included in the accompanying financial statements . All
plan assets are held for the exclusive benefit of the Plan’s participants and beneficiaries . The Plan assets are held
in a separate trust and are not included in the accompanying financial statements . All plan assets are held for the
exclusive benefit of the Plan’s participants and beneficiaries . The Principal Financial Group administers the plan
and is the acting custodian of the plan assets .

New York State Teachers' Retirement System
Employees of the School are eligible to participate in the New York State Teachers' Retirement System (NYSTRS) .
The NYSTRS is a defined benefit plan covering teachers in New York State, with pensions calculated based
primarily on the member's years of service and final average salary . Contributions for the year ended June 30,
2013, was based on 11.84%, of participant salaries . The benefits provided to members of the plan are established
by New York State Law and may be amended only by the State Legislature . Pension expense was $380,961 for the
year ended June 30, 2013.

NOTE 3 – PUPIL ENROLLMENT AND OTHER REVENUES FROM GOVERMENT

Under the School’s Charter School Agreement and the Charter School Act, the School is entitled to receive funding
from both State and Federal sources that are available to public schools . These funds include State pupil
enrollment funds and Federal food subsidies and Title I, IIA, IID, IV and V funds. The calculation of the amounts to
be paid to the School under these programs is determined by the State, and is based on complex laws and
regulations, enrollment levels, and economic information related to the home school district of the children
enrolled in the school . If these regulations, some of which are relatively new in the State of New York, were to
change, or other factors included in the calculations were to change, the level of funding that the School receives
could vary significantly .

Amount due from government agencies and included as revenues in the statement of activities, consist of the
following as of June 30, 2013:

AuditsbyFundingSources
TheSchoolparticipatesinanumberofFederalandStateprograms.TheseprogramsrequirethattheSchool
complieswithcertainrequirementoflaws,regulations,contracts,andagreementsapplicabletotheprogramin
whichitparticipates.Allfundsexpendedinconnectionwithgovernmentgrantsandcontractsaresubjecttoaudit
bygovernmentagencies.Whiletheultimateliability,ifany,fromsuchauditsofgovernmentandcontractsby
governmentagenciesispresentlynotdeterminable,itshouldnot,intheopinionofthemanagement,havea
materialeffectonthefinancialpositionorresultofoperations.Accordingly,noprovisionforanysuchliabilitythat
mayresulthasbeenmadeintheaccompanyingfinancialstatements.

NOTE 12 – COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Occupancy Lease
The School has entered into a non-cancelable operating lease for its classroom facilities that expires on June 30,
2019. Future monthly minimum lease payments as of June 30 are as follows :

NOTE 1 – ORGANIZATION

Charter School of Educational Excellence (the “School”) is a New York education corporation incorporated by the
Board of Regents of the University of the State of New York (the "Board of Regents") under Article 56 of the
New York Education Law. The School a non-profit corporation operating from 260 Warburton Avenue, in
Yonkers, New York. The School educates children in a completely nondiscriminatory and secular basis. The
founders and supporters of the School believe that access to a public education of high quality for all children is
the foremost issue. The School was originally chartered during April 2004 and opened with students from
Kindergarten through 4th graders and thereafter added a grade per year through 6th graders . In January 2013,
the School successfully received a full five-year charter renewal from its charter authorizer, the New York State
Education Department that expires in June 2018, with a maximum enrollment of 669 students in grades
Kindergarten through 8th.

NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Accounting
The financial statements have been prepared using the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America . Revenues are recognized when
earned and expenses are recognized when incurred .

Financial Statement Presentation
The net assets of the School and changes therein are classified and reported as follows :

Unrestricted Net Assets - Net assets that are not subject to donor imposed restrictions .

Temporarily Restricted Net Assets - Net assets subject to donor-imposed restrictions that may or will be met,
either by actions of the School and/or the passage of time.

Use of Estimates in the Preparation of Financial Statements
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in The
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported
amounts and disclosures . Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates .

Contributions
The School records contributions received as unrestricted, temporarily restricted, or permanently restricted
support, depending on the existence and/or nature of any donor restrictions . Support that is restricted by the
donor is reported as an increase in unrestricted net assets if the restriction expires in the reporting period in
which the support is recognized . All other donor restricted support is reported as an increase in temporarily or
permanently restricted net assets, depending on the nature of the restriction . When a restriction expires, that
is, when a stipulation time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished, temporarily restricted net
assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the statement of activities as net assets
released from restrictions . All contributions received in the year ended 2013 were unrestricted .

Recognition of Revenue
Government contract revenue is recognized as earned in the period services are provided and costs are
incurred .

Cash and Cash Equivalents
For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, the School considers all highly liquid investments available for
current use with an initial period of three months or less to be cash equivalents .

Audits by Funding Sources
The School participates in a number of Federal and State programs . These programs require the School comply
with certain requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and agreements applicable to the program in which it
participates . All funds expended in connection with government grants and contracts are subject to audit by
government agencies . While the ultimate liability, if any, from such audits of government and contracts by
government agencies is presently not determinable, it should not, in the opinion of the management, have a
material effect on the financial position or results of operations . Accordingly, no provision for such liability that
may result has been made in the accompanying financial statements .

NOTE 13 – CONCENTRATION OF RISK

The School is dependent on various government agencies for funding, and is responsible for meeting the
requirements of such agencies . If the school was to lose students or the related government funding, it could have
a substantial effect on its ability to continue operations .

NOTE 14 – PENDING LITIGATION, CLAIMS, AND ASSESSMENTS

In November of 2011, lawsuits were commenced against the Charter School of Educational Excellence to foreclose
liens filed by subcontractors and material men who were not paid by the Kullman Building Corporation, the
general contractor awarded the contract to construct the Middle School . The lien foreclosure actions, most of
which additionally alleged claims for equitable relief arising out of the identical circumstances were commenced
by two Plaintiffs and six Defendant Lienors seeking damages of $719,826. It is the opinion of management that the
School has defenses against the liens and equitable causes of action, and the School intends to vigorously defend
these lawsuits . As of October 26, 2013, the case is currently pending in Westchester County Supreme Court of
New York State. No amount has been accrued in these financial statements since the outcome of this matter is
uncertain and the amount of liability, if any, cannot be determined .

NOTE 15 – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The School evaluates events occurring after the date of the financial statements to consider whether or not the
impact of such events needs to be reflected or disclosed in the financial statements . Such evaluation is performed
through the date the financial statements are available for issuance, which was October 31, 2013, for these
financial statements .

NOTE 7 – MANAGEMENT FEE

Victory Schools, Inc. ("VSI") d/b/a Victory Education Partners (VEP) manages the operations of the School under a
management agreement entered into by the School and VSI. The agreement was executed on March 30, 2004.
Per the term of the agreement, VSI assumes responsibility for task and functions associated with the educational
services to be provided to the children enrolled as student at the School in accordance with the term of the
Charter and the Charter of Schools Act, subject to the appropriate oversight from the school’s Board of Trustees .

In providing the above services as per the original agreement, VSI was to be paid a management fee in the
amount equal to product of the total full-time equivalent enrollment of students in the Charter School as defined
under Section 119.1 of New York State Commissioner of Education Regulations multiplied . The Per Pupil Fee shall
be increased or decreased each year by the percentage increase or decrease in the Final Adjusted Expense Per
Pupil for charter schools in the Yonkers City school district as calculated by the New York State Education
Department annually .

VSI is entitled to receive the management fees on a bi-monthly basis. Any VSI Fee, or portion thereof, not paid
within (30) days of its due date shall bear interest at an annualized rate of 7.5% per annum on the outstanding
past due amount, provided such past due payments are not as a result of the Yonkers School District’s failure to
timely remit the Adjusted Expense Per Pupil to the Charter School .

Effective July 1, 2010, the School and VSI have formally agreed to amend the management agreement . The new
fee will be $500,000 per year and will increase 4% each year until it expires at the end of the 2013/2014 school
year.

NOTE 8 – LINE OF CREDIT

The School has secured a revolving line of credit from a financial institution in the amount of $350,000. The
interest rate is the financial institution's index rate plus 1% (4.250% as of June 30, 2013). As of June 30, 2013, the
School had drawn down $119,633 on this line.

NOTE 9 – CAPITAL LEASES PAYABLE

On June 24, 2011 and November 8, 2011, the School entered into two capital lease agreements for certain
equipment, furniture and fixtures . The lease payments relating to the equipment, furniture and fixtures have been
capitalized and included as fixed assets on the accompanying financial statements . The leased assets have a cost
of $468,791 and have a thirty -six month terms.

NOTE3–INVESTMENTS

PursuanttotheprovisionsdescribedinStatementofFinancialAccountingStandards("SFAS")No.157,FairValue
Measurements,theSchoolcategorizesitsfinancialinstrumentsintoathree-levelfairvaluehierarchythat
prioritizestheinputstovaluationtechniquesusedtomeasurefairvalueintothreeboardlevels.Thefairvalue
hierarchygivesthehighestprioritytoquotedpricesinactivemarketsforidenticalassetsorliabilities(Level1)and
thelowestprioritytounobservableinputs(Level3).Valuationofassetsandliabilitiestradedinlessactivedealer
orbrokermarketsthathavesignificantobservableinputsareclassifiedasLevel2.Level2valuationsareusually
obtainedfromthird-partypricingservicevaluationsforidenticalorsimilarassets.Iftheinputsusedtomeasure
fairvaluefallwithindifferentlevelsofthehierarchy,thecategorylevelisbasedonthelowestprioritylevelinput
thatissignificanttothefairvaluemeasurementoftheinstrument.

TheSchool'sinvestmentsatJune30,2010consistsofmoneymarketaccounttotaling$7,130,whichisclassifiedas
Level2inthefairvaluehierarchy.

NOTE 11 – BONDS PAYABLE

On November 1, 2010, The Yonkers Economic Development Corporation provided financing through the issuance
of $11,735,000 Tax-Exempt Educational Revenue Bonds (Charter School of Educational Excellence Project) (the
"Series 2010A Bonds") . The Series 2010A Bonds of $4,940,000 bear interest at 6.00% per annum and principal due
at maturity on October 15, 2030. The balance of the Series 2010A Bonds of $6,795,000, bear interest at 6.25% per
annum and principal due at maturity on October 15, 2040.

On November 1, 2010, The Yonkers Economic Development Corporation provided financing through the issuance
of $710,000 in Taxable Educational Revenue Bonds (Charter School of Educational Excellence Project (the "Series
2010B Bonds"), bearing interest rate at 8.00% per annum and principal due at maturity on October 15, 2016.

The proceeds of the Series 2010 bonds are to be used for the following purposes :

1) the construction of educational facilities .
2) paying certain prior indebtedness (NCB Capital Impact Loans I and II)
3) paying certain capital expenditures and capitalized interest during construction .
4) paying Series 2010 Bond issuance costs.
5) fund of a Bond Fund Deposit and Reserve Fund Deposit .

NOTE14–SUBSEQUENTEVENTS

TheSchoolevaluateseventsoccurringafterthedateofthefinancialstatementstoconsiderwhetherornotthe
impactofsucheventsneedstobereflectedordisclosedinthefinancialstatements.Suchevaluationisperformed
throughthedatethefinancialstatementsareavailableforissuance,whichwasOctoberxx,2013,forthese
financialstatements.

NOTE7–LOANSPAYABLE

LOANI-InJuly2005,theSchoolenteredintoa$1,500,000loanpayablewithNCBCapitalImpactfortherenovation,
rehabilitationandconstructionofleaseholdimprovementstothefacilitieswheretheschoolislocated.Theloantermis
forfifteenyearsandbearsinterestat8%perannumandmaturesonApril30,2021.ThebalanceoutstandingatJune
30,2010was$1,239,153.

LOANII-InOctober2006,anothersimilarloanwiththesameinstitutionwasobtained.Theloanwasfor$480,000and
hadatermthatexpiredonDecember31,2009.NCBCapitalImpacthasextendedthetermonamonthtomonthbasis
withinterestonlypaymentsbearinganinterestrateof8.25%.ThebalanceoutstandingasofJune30,2010was
$427,130.

LOANIII-InJuly2007,theSchoolconvertedthemanagementfeepayable,loanpayableandtheaccruedinteresttoa
termloanwithVSI(SeeNote7fordetails).Theloanwasfor$1,493,186andhadatermof120months,withinterest
payablemonthlyat7.5%perannumandmaturesonJune2017.

Theleaseholdimprovementsandequipment,servedascollateralfortheNCBCapitalImpactloans.LoansIandIIwere
paidinfullonNovember19,2010.

NOTE 10 – LOAN PAYABLE

In July 2007, the School converted the management fee payable, loan payable and the accrued interest to a term
loan with VSI (See Note 7 for details) . The loan was for $1,493,186 and had a term of 120 months, with interest
payable monthly at 7.5% per annum and matures on June 2019.

Principal maturities of long-term debt are as follows :

Year Ending
June 30, Amount

2014 132,850          
2015 143,662          
2016 155,354          
2017 167,997          
2018 181,670          

Thereafter 196,456          
977,989          

Less Current Portion 132,850          

Long-Term Portion 845,139$        

NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)Income Tax StatusThe Organization is a not-for-profit corporation organized under the laws of the State of New York. It is exemptfrom federal income taxes under Section 501 (c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code.Fixed AssetsFixed assets consist of building, leasehold improvements, furniture and equipment and are valued at cost lessaccumulated depreciation . Depreciation is computed on a straight line basis over the estimated useful lives of therelated assets or the term of the lease agreement . Normal replacement and maintenance costs are charged toearnings as incurred, and major renewals and improvements are capitalized . Upon disposition, the cost andrelated accumulated depreciation is removed from the accounts and the resulting gain or loss for the period . TheSchool capitalizes assets with cost of $500 and over. Depreciation is calculated based on the useful lives of theassets as follows : Building and Leasehold Improvements 20 Years, Equipment, Furniture and Fixtures 3 - 10 Years.Functional Allocation of ExpensesExpenses relating to more than one function are allocated to program service and management and general basedon employee time estimates or other appropriate usage factors .Contributed ServicesContributed services that create or enhance nonfinancial assets, or that require specialized skills, are provided byindividuals possessing those skills, and would typically need to be purchased if not provided by donation, arerecorded at fair value in the period received .A number of volunteers have made a contribution of their time to the School to develop academic and otherprograms and to serve on the board of trustees . The value of this contributed time is not reflected in the financialstatements as such services either do not require specialized skills or would not typically be purchased had theynot been provided as donations .NOTE 5 – DEFERRED FINANCING COSTThe school incurred cost of $853,506 related to the Bond offering (See Note 8). The cost are amortized over theterm of the related debt (30 Years) using a straight -line method. Accumulated amortization at June 30, 2013 was$74,360. Amortization expense costs charged to operations was $28,528 for 2013.NOTE 6 – RETIREMENT PLANSRetirement Savings PlanThe School offers a 401(k) plan (the "Plan”) for substantially all of its employees . Employees are eligible for theplan immediately upon employment and participation in the Plan is voluntary . Employees may contribute up to15% of their annual compensation to the Plan, limited to a maximum annual amount as set periodically by theInternal Revenue Service . The School matches the employee contribution 100% up to 4% of the employee’s totalannual compensation . The School’s contribution recognized in the statement of activities was $10,962 for 2013.The Plan assets are held in a separate trust and are not included in the accompanying financial statements . Allplan assets are held for the exclusive benefit of the Plan’s participants and beneficiaries . The Plan assets are heldin a separate trust and are not included in the accompanying financial statements . All plan assets are held for theexclusive benefit of the Plan’s participants and beneficiaries . The Principal Financial Group administers the planand is the acting custodian of the plan assets .New York State Teachers' Retirement SystemEmployees of the School are eligible to participate in the New York State Teachers' Retirement System (NYSTRS) .The NYSTRS is a defined benefit plan covering teachers in New York State, with pensions calculated basedprimarily on the member's years of service and final average salary . Contributions for the year ended June 30,2013, was based on 11.84%, of participant salaries . The benefits provided to members of the plan are establishedby New York State Law and may be amended only by the State Legislature . Pension expense was $380,961 for theyear ended June 30, 2013.NOTE 3 – PUPIL ENROLLMENT AND OTHER REVENUES FROM GOVERMENTUnder the School’s Charter School Agreement and the Charter School Act, the School is entitled to receive fundingfrom both State and Federal sources that are available to public schools . These funds include State pupilenrollment funds and Federal food subsidies and Title I, IIA, IID, IV and V funds. The calculation of the amounts tobe paid to the School under these programs is determined by the State, and is based on complex laws andregulations, enrollment levels, and economic information related to the home school district of the childrenenrolled in the school . If these regulations, some of which are relatively new in the State of New York, were tochange, or other factors included in the calculations were to change, the level of funding that the School receivescould vary significantly .Amount due from government agencies and included as revenues in the statement of activities, consist of thefollowing as of June 30, 2013:

AuditsbyFundingSources
TheSchoolparticipatesinanumberofFederalandStateprograms.TheseprogramsrequirethattheSchool
complieswithcertainrequirementoflaws,regulations,contracts,andagreementsapplicabletotheprogramin
whichitparticipates.Allfundsexpendedinconnectionwithgovernmentgrantsandcontractsaresubjecttoaudit
bygovernmentagencies.Whiletheultimateliability,ifany,fromsuchauditsofgovernmentandcontractsby
governmentagenciesispresentlynotdeterminable,itshouldnot,intheopinionofthemanagement,havea
materialeffectonthefinancialpositionorresultofoperations.Accordingly,noprovisionforanysuchliabilitythat
mayresulthasbeenmadeintheaccompanyingfinancialstatements.

NOTE 1 – ORGANIZATIONCharter School of Educational Excellence (the “School”) is a New York education corporation incorporated by theBoard of Regents of the University of the State of New York (the "Board of Regents") under Article 56 of theNew York Education Law. The School a non-profit corporation operating from 260 Warburton Avenue, inYonkers, New York. The School educates children in a completely nondiscriminatory and secular basis. Thefounders and supporters of the School believe that access to a public education of high quality for all children isthe foremost issue. The School was originally chartered during April 2004 and opened with students fromKindergarten through 4th graders and thereafter added a grade per year through 6th graders . In January 2013,the School successfully received a full five-year charter renewal from its charter authorizer, the New York StateEducation Department that expires in June 2018, with a maximum enrollment of 669 students in gradesKindergarten through 8th.NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIESBasis of AccountingThe financial statements have been prepared using the accrual basis of accounting in accordance withaccounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America . Revenues are recognized whenearned and expenses are recognized when incurred .Financial Statement PresentationThe net assets of the School and changes therein are classified and reported as follows :Unrestricted Net Assets - Net assets that are not subject to donor imposed restrictions .Temporarily Restricted Net Assets - Net assets subject to donor-imposed restrictions that may or will be met,either by actions of the School and/or the passage of time.Use of Estimates in the Preparation of Financial StatementsThe preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in TheUnited States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reportedamounts and disclosures . Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates .ContributionsThe School records contributions received as unrestricted, temporarily restricted, or permanently restrictedsupport, depending on the existence and/or nature of any donor restrictions . Support that is restricted by thedonor is reported as an increase in unrestricted net assets if the restriction expires in the reporting period inwhich the support is recognized . All other donor restricted support is reported as an increase in temporarily orpermanently restricted net assets, depending on the nature of the restriction . When a restriction expires, thatis, when a stipulation time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished, temporarily restricted netassets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the statement of activities as net assetsreleased from restrictions . All contributions received in the year ended 2013 were unrestricted .Recognition of RevenueGovernment contract revenue is recognized as earned in the period services are provided and costs areincurred .Cash and Cash EquivalentsFor the purposes of the statement of cash flows, the School considers all highly liquid investments available forcurrent use with an initial period of three months or less to be cash equivalents .

Audits by Funding Sources
The School participates in a number of Federal and State programs . These programs require the School comply
with certain requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and agreements applicable to the program in which it
participates . All funds expended in connection with government grants and contracts are subject to audit by
government agencies . While the ultimate liability, if any, from such audits of government and contracts by
government agencies is presently not determinable, it should not, in the opinion of the management, have a
material effect on the financial position or results of operations . Accordingly, no provision for such liability that
may result has been made in the accompanying financial statements .

NOTE 13 – CONCENTRATION OF RISK

The School is dependent on various government agencies for funding, and is responsible for meeting the
requirements of such agencies . If the school was to lose students or the related government funding, it could have
a substantial effect on its ability to continue operations .

NOTE 14 – PENDING LITIGATION, CLAIMS, AND ASSESSMENTS

In November of 2011, lawsuits were commenced against the Charter School of Educational Excellence to foreclose
liens filed by subcontractors and material men who were not paid by the Kullman Building Corporation, the
general contractor awarded the contract to construct the Middle School . The lien foreclosure actions, most of
which additionally alleged claims for equitable relief arising out of the identical circumstances were commenced
by two Plaintiffs and six Defendant Lienors seeking damages of $719,826. It is the opinion of management that the
School has defenses against the liens and equitable causes of action, and the School intends to vigorously defend
these lawsuits . As of October 26, 2013, the case is currently pending in Westchester County Supreme Court of
New York State. No amount has been accrued in these financial statements since the outcome of this matter is
uncertain and the amount of liability, if any, cannot be determined .

NOTE 15 – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The School evaluates events occurring after the date of the financial statements to consider whether or not the
impact of such events needs to be reflected or disclosed in the financial statements . Such evaluation is performed
through the date the financial statements are available for issuance, which was October 31, 2013, for these
financial statements .

NOTE 7 – MANAGEMENT FEEVictory Schools, Inc. ("VSI") d/b/a Victory Education Partners (VEP) manages the operations of the School under amanagement agreement entered into by the School and VSI. The agreement was executed on March 30, 2004.Per the term of the agreement, VSI assumes responsibility for task and functions associated with the educationalservices to be provided to the children enrolled as student at the School in accordance with the term of theCharter and the Charter of Schools Act, subject to the appropriate oversight from the school’s Board of Trustees .In providing the above services as per the original agreement, VSI was to be paid a management fee in theamount equal to product of the total full-time equivalent enrollment of students in the Charter School as definedunder Section 119.1 of New York State Commissioner of Education Regulations multiplied . The Per Pupil Fee shallbe increased or decreased each year by the percentage increase or decrease in the Final Adjusted Expense PerPupil for charter schools in the Yonkers City school district as calculated by the New York State EducationDepartment annually .VSI is entitled to receive the management fees on a bi-monthly basis. Any VSI Fee, or portion thereof, not paidwithin (30) days of its due date shall bear interest at an annualized rate of 7.5% per annum on the outstandingpast due amount, provided such past due payments are not as a result of the Yonkers School District’s failure totimely remit the Adjusted Expense Per Pupil to the Charter School .Effective July 1, 2010, the School and VSI have formally agreed to amend the management agreement . The newfee will be $500,000 per year and will increase 4% each year until it expires at the end of the 2013/2014 schoolyear.NOTE 8 – LINE OF CREDITThe School has secured a revolving line of credit from a financial institution in the amount of $350,000. Theinterest rate is the financial institution's index rate plus 1% (4.250% as of June 30, 2013). As of June 30, 2013, theSchool had drawn down $119,633 on this line.NOTE 9 – CAPITAL LEASES PAYABLEOn June 24, 2011 and November 8, 2011, the School entered into two capital lease agreements for certainequipment, furniture and fixtures . The lease payments relating to the equipment, furniture and fixtures have beencapitalized and included as fixed assets on the accompanying financial statements . The leased assets have a costof $468,791 and have a thirty -six month terms. NOTE3–INVESTMENTSPursuanttotheprovisionsdescribedinStatementofFinancialAccountingStandards("SFAS")No.157,FairValueMeasurements,theSchoolcategorizesitsfinancialinstrumentsintoathree-levelfairvaluehierarchythatprioritizestheinputstovaluationtechniquesusedtomeasurefairvalueintothreeboardlevels.Thefairvaluehierarchygivesthehighestprioritytoquotedpricesinactivemarketsforidenticalassetsorliabilities(Level1)andthelowestprioritytounobservableinputs(Level3).ValuationofassetsandliabilitiestradedinlessactivedealerorbrokermarketsthathavesignificantobservableinputsareclassifiedasLevel2.Level2valuationsareusuallyobtainedfromthird-partypricingservicevaluationsforidenticalorsimilarassets.Iftheinputsusedtomeasurefairvaluefallwithindifferentlevelsofthehierarchy,thecategorylevelisbasedonthelowestprioritylevelinputthatissignificanttothefairvaluemeasurementoftheinstrument.TheSchool'sinvestmentsatJune30,2010consistsofmoneymarketaccounttotaling$7,130,whichisclassifiedasLevel2inthefairvaluehierarchy.

NOTE 11 – BONDS PAYABLE

On November 1, 2010, The Yonkers Economic Development Corporation provided financing through the issuance
of $11,735,000 Tax-Exempt Educational Revenue Bonds (Charter School of Educational Excellence Project) (the
"Series 2010A Bonds") . The Series 2010A Bonds of $4,940,000 bear interest at 6.00% per annum and principal due
at maturity on October 15, 2030. The balance of the Series 2010A Bonds of $6,795,000, bear interest at 6.25% per
annum and principal due at maturity on October 15, 2040.

On November 1, 2010, The Yonkers Economic Development Corporation provided financing through the issuance
of $710,000 in Taxable Educational Revenue Bonds (Charter School of Educational Excellence Project (the "Series
2010B Bonds"), bearing interest rate at 8.00% per annum and principal due at maturity on October 15, 2016.

The proceeds of the Series 2010 bonds are to be used for the following purposes :

1) the construction of educational facilities .
2) paying certain prior indebtedness (NCB Capital Impact Loans I and II)
3) paying certain capital expenditures and capitalized interest during construction .
4) paying Series 2010 Bond issuance costs.
5) fund of a Bond Fund Deposit and Reserve Fund Deposit .

NOTE14–SUBSEQUENTEVENTS

TheSchoolevaluateseventsoccurringafterthedateofthefinancialstatementstoconsiderwhetherornotthe
impactofsucheventsneedstobereflectedordisclosedinthefinancialstatements.Suchevaluationisperformed
throughthedatethefinancialstatementsareavailableforissuance,whichwasOctoberxx,2013,forthese
financialstatements.

NOTE7–LOANSPAYABLE

LOANI-InJuly2005,theSchoolenteredintoa$1,500,000loanpayablewithNCBCapitalImpactfortherenovation,
rehabilitationandconstructionofleaseholdimprovementstothefacilitieswheretheschoolislocated.Theloantermis
forfifteenyearsandbearsinterestat8%perannumandmaturesonApril30,2021.ThebalanceoutstandingatJune
30,2010was$1,239,153.

LOANII-InOctober2006,anothersimilarloanwiththesameinstitutionwasobtained.Theloanwasfor$480,000and
hadatermthatexpiredonDecember31,2009.NCBCapitalImpacthasextendedthetermonamonthtomonthbasis
withinterestonlypaymentsbearinganinterestrateof8.25%.ThebalanceoutstandingasofJune30,2010was
$427,130.

LOANIII-InJuly2007,theSchoolconvertedthemanagementfeepayable,loanpayableandtheaccruedinteresttoa
termloanwithVSI(SeeNote7fordetails).Theloanwasfor$1,493,186andhadatermof120months,withinterest
payablemonthlyat7.5%perannumandmaturesonJune2017.

Theleaseholdimprovementsandequipment,servedascollateralfortheNCBCapitalImpactloans.LoansIandIIwere
paidinfullonNovember19,2010.

NOTE 10 – LOAN PAYABLE

In July 2007, the School converted the management fee payable, loan payable and the accrued interest to a term
loan with VSI (See Note 7 for details) . The loan was for $1,493,186 and had a term of 120 months, with interest
payable monthly at 7.5% per annum and matures on June 2019.

Principal maturities of long-term debt are as follows :

(10)

NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)Income Tax StatusThe Organization is a not-for-profit corporation organized under the laws of the State of New York. It is exemptfrom federal income taxes under Section 501 (c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code.Fixed AssetsFixed assets consist of building, leasehold improvements, furniture and equipment and are valued at cost lessaccumulated depreciation . Depreciation is computed on a straight line basis over the estimated useful lives of therelated assets or the term of the lease agreement . Normal replacement and maintenance costs are charged toearnings as incurred, and major renewals and improvements are capitalized . Upon disposition, the cost andrelated accumulated depreciation is removed from the accounts and the resulting gain or loss for the period . TheSchool capitalizes assets with cost of $500 and over. Depreciation is calculated based on the useful lives of theassets as follows : Building and Leasehold Improvements 20 Years, Equipment, Furniture and Fixtures 3 - 10 Years.Functional Allocation of ExpensesExpenses relating to more than one function are allocated to program service and management and general basedon employee time estimates or other appropriate usage factors .Contributed ServicesContributed services that create or enhance nonfinancial assets, or that require specialized skills, are provided byindividuals possessing those skills, and would typically need to be purchased if not provided by donation, arerecorded at fair value in the period received .A number of volunteers have made a contribution of their time to the School to develop academic and otherprograms and to serve on the board of trustees . The value of this contributed time is not reflected in the financialstatements as such services either do not require specialized skills or would not typically be purchased had theynot been provided as donations .NOTE 5 – DEFERRED FINANCING COSTThe school incurred cost of $853,506 related to the Bond offering (See Note 8). The cost are amortized over theterm of the related debt (30 Years) using a straight -line method. Accumulated amortization at June 30, 2013 was$74,360. Amortization expense costs charged to operations was $28,528 for 2013.NOTE 6 – RETIREMENT PLANSRetirement Savings PlanThe School offers a 401(k) plan (the "Plan”) for substantially all of its employees . Employees are eligible for theplan immediately upon employment and participation in the Plan is voluntary . Employees may contribute up to15% of their annual compensation to the Plan, limited to a maximum annual amount as set periodically by theInternal Revenue Service . The School matches the employee contribution 100% up to 4% of the employee’s totalannual compensation . The School’s contribution recognized in the statement of activities was $10,962 for 2013.The Plan assets are held in a separate trust and are not included in the accompanying financial statements . Allplan assets are held for the exclusive benefit of the Plan’s participants and beneficiaries . The Plan assets are heldin a separate trust and are not included in the accompanying financial statements . All plan assets are held for theexclusive benefit of the Plan’s participants and beneficiaries . The Principal Financial Group administers the planand is the acting custodian of the plan assets .New York State Teachers' Retirement SystemEmployees of the School are eligible to participate in the New York State Teachers' Retirement System (NYSTRS) .The NYSTRS is a defined benefit plan covering teachers in New York State, with pensions calculated basedprimarily on the member's years of service and final average salary . Contributions for the year ended June 30,2013, was based on 11.84%, of participant salaries . The benefits provided to members of the plan are establishedby New York State Law and may be amended only by the State Legislature . Pension expense was $380,961 for theyear ended June 30, 2013.NOTE 3 – PUPIL ENROLLMENT AND OTHER REVENUES FROM GOVERMENTUnder the School’s Charter School Agreement and the Charter School Act, the School is entitled to receive fundingfrom both State and Federal sources that are available to public schools . These funds include State pupilenrollment funds and Federal food subsidies and Title I, IIA, IID, IV and V funds. The calculation of the amounts tobe paid to the School under these programs is determined by the State, and is based on complex laws andregulations, enrollment levels, and economic information related to the home school district of the childrenenrolled in the school . If these regulations, some of which are relatively new in the State of New York, were tochange, or other factors included in the calculations were to change, the level of funding that the School receivescould vary significantly .Amount due from government agencies and included as revenues in the statement of activities, consist of thefollowing as of June 30, 2013:

AuditsbyFundingSources
TheSchoolparticipatesinanumberofFederalandStateprograms.TheseprogramsrequirethattheSchool
complieswithcertainrequirementoflaws,regulations,contracts,andagreementsapplicabletotheprogramin
whichitparticipates.Allfundsexpendedinconnectionwithgovernmentgrantsandcontractsaresubjecttoaudit
bygovernmentagencies.Whiletheultimateliability,ifany,fromsuchauditsofgovernmentandcontractsby
governmentagenciesispresentlynotdeterminable,itshouldnot,intheopinionofthemanagement,havea
materialeffectonthefinancialpositionorresultofoperations.Accordingly,noprovisionforanysuchliabilitythat
mayresulthasbeenmadeintheaccompanyingfinancialstatements.

NOTE 12 – COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Occupancy Lease
The School has entered into a non-cancelable operating lease for its classroom facilities that expires on June 30,
2019. Future monthly minimum lease payments as of June 30 are as follows :

NOTE 1 – ORGANIZATIONCharter School of Educational Excellence (the “School”) is a New York education corporation incorporated by theBoard of Regents of the University of the State of New York (the "Board of Regents") under Article 56 of theNew York Education Law. The School a non-profit corporation operating from 260 Warburton Avenue, inYonkers, New York. The School educates children in a completely nondiscriminatory and secular basis. Thefounders and supporters of the School believe that access to a public education of high quality for all children isthe foremost issue. The School was originally chartered during April 2004 and opened with students fromKindergarten through 4th graders and thereafter added a grade per year through 6th graders . In January 2013,the School successfully received a full five-year charter renewal from its charter authorizer, the New York StateEducation Department that expires in June 2018, with a maximum enrollment of 669 students in gradesKindergarten through 8th.NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIESBasis of AccountingThe financial statements have been prepared using the accrual basis of accounting in accordance withaccounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America . Revenues are recognized whenearned and expenses are recognized when incurred .Financial Statement PresentationThe net assets of the School and changes therein are classified and reported as follows :Unrestricted Net Assets - Net assets that are not subject to donor imposed restrictions .Temporarily Restricted Net Assets - Net assets subject to donor-imposed restrictions that may or will be met,either by actions of the School and/or the passage of time.Use of Estimates in the Preparation of Financial StatementsThe preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in TheUnited States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reportedamounts and disclosures . Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates .ContributionsThe School records contributions received as unrestricted, temporarily restricted, or permanently restrictedsupport, depending on the existence and/or nature of any donor restrictions . Support that is restricted by thedonor is reported as an increase in unrestricted net assets if the restriction expires in the reporting period inwhich the support is recognized . All other donor restricted support is reported as an increase in temporarily orpermanently restricted net assets, depending on the nature of the restriction . When a restriction expires, thatis, when a stipulation time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished, temporarily restricted netassets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the statement of activities as net assetsreleased from restrictions . All contributions received in the year ended 2013 were unrestricted .Recognition of RevenueGovernment contract revenue is recognized as earned in the period services are provided and costs areincurred .Cash and Cash EquivalentsFor the purposes of the statement of cash flows, the School considers all highly liquid investments available forcurrent use with an initial period of three months or less to be cash equivalents .

Audits by Funding Sources
The School participates in a number of Federal and State programs . These programs require the School comply
with certain requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and agreements applicable to the program in which it
participates . All funds expended in connection with government grants and contracts are subject to audit by
government agencies . While the ultimate liability, if any, from such audits of government and contracts by
government agencies is presently not determinable, it should not, in the opinion of the management, have a
material effect on the financial position or results of operations . Accordingly, no provision for such liability that
may result has been made in the accompanying financial statements .

NOTE 13 – CONCENTRATION OF RISK

The School is dependent on various government agencies for funding, and is responsible for meeting the
requirements of such agencies . If the school was to lose students or the related government funding, it could have
a substantial effect on its ability to continue operations .

NOTE 14 – PENDING LITIGATION, CLAIMS, AND ASSESSMENTS

In November of 2011, lawsuits were commenced against the Charter School of Educational Excellence to foreclose
liens filed by subcontractors and material men who were not paid by the Kullman Building Corporation, the
general contractor awarded the contract to construct the Middle School . The lien foreclosure actions, most of
which additionally alleged claims for equitable relief arising out of the identical circumstances were commenced
by two Plaintiffs and six Defendant Lienors seeking damages of $719,826. It is the opinion of management that the
School has defenses against the liens and equitable causes of action, and the School intends to vigorously defend
these lawsuits . As of October 26, 2013, the case is currently pending in Westchester County Supreme Court of
New York State. No amount has been accrued in these financial statements since the outcome of this matter is
uncertain and the amount of liability, if any, cannot be determined .

NOTE 15 – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The School evaluates events occurring after the date of the financial statements to consider whether or not the
impact of such events needs to be reflected or disclosed in the financial statements . Such evaluation is performed
through the date the financial statements are available for issuance, which was October 31, 2013, for these
financial statements .

NOTE 7 – MANAGEMENT FEEVictory Schools, Inc. ("VSI") d/b/a Victory Education Partners (VEP) manages the operations of the School under amanagement agreement entered into by the School and VSI. The agreement was executed on March 30, 2004.Per the term of the agreement, VSI assumes responsibility for task and functions associated with the educationalservices to be provided to the children enrolled as student at the School in accordance with the term of theCharter and the Charter of Schools Act, subject to the appropriate oversight from the school’s Board of Trustees .In providing the above services as per the original agreement, VSI was to be paid a management fee in theamount equal to product of the total full-time equivalent enrollment of students in the Charter School as definedunder Section 119.1 of New York State Commissioner of Education Regulations multiplied . The Per Pupil Fee shallbe increased or decreased each year by the percentage increase or decrease in the Final Adjusted Expense PerPupil for charter schools in the Yonkers City school district as calculated by the New York State EducationDepartment annually .VSI is entitled to receive the management fees on a bi-monthly basis. Any VSI Fee, or portion thereof, not paidwithin (30) days of its due date shall bear interest at an annualized rate of 7.5% per annum on the outstandingpast due amount, provided such past due payments are not as a result of the Yonkers School District’s failure totimely remit the Adjusted Expense Per Pupil to the Charter School .Effective July 1, 2010, the School and VSI have formally agreed to amend the management agreement . The newfee will be $500,000 per year and will increase 4% each year until it expires at the end of the 2013/2014 schoolyear.NOTE 8 – LINE OF CREDITThe School has secured a revolving line of credit from a financial institution in the amount of $350,000. Theinterest rate is the financial institution's index rate plus 1% (4.250% as of June 30, 2013). As of June 30, 2013, theSchool had drawn down $119,633 on this line.NOTE 9 – CAPITAL LEASES PAYABLEOn June 24, 2011 and November 8, 2011, the School entered into two capital lease agreements for certainequipment, furniture and fixtures . The lease payments relating to the equipment, furniture and fixtures have beencapitalized and included as fixed assets on the accompanying financial statements . The leased assets have a costof $468,791 and have a thirty -six month terms. NOTE3–INVESTMENTSPursuanttotheprovisionsdescribedinStatementofFinancialAccountingStandards("SFAS")No.157,FairValueMeasurements,theSchoolcategorizesitsfinancialinstrumentsintoathree-levelfairvaluehierarchythatprioritizestheinputstovaluationtechniquesusedtomeasurefairvalueintothreeboardlevels.Thefairvaluehierarchygivesthehighestprioritytoquotedpricesinactivemarketsforidenticalassetsorliabilities(Level1)andthelowestprioritytounobservableinputs(Level3).ValuationofassetsandliabilitiestradedinlessactivedealerorbrokermarketsthathavesignificantobservableinputsareclassifiedasLevel2.Level2valuationsareusuallyobtainedfromthird-partypricingservicevaluationsforidenticalorsimilarassets.Iftheinputsusedtomeasurefairvaluefallwithindifferentlevelsofthehierarchy,thecategorylevelisbasedonthelowestprioritylevelinputthatissignificanttothefairvaluemeasurementoftheinstrument.TheSchool'sinvestmentsatJune30,2010consistsofmoneymarketaccounttotaling$7,130,whichisclassifiedasLevel2inthefairvaluehierarchy.

NOTE 11 – BONDS PAYABLE

On November 1, 2010, The Yonkers Economic Development Corporation provided financing through the issuance
of $11,735,000 Tax-Exempt Educational Revenue Bonds (Charter School of Educational Excellence Project) (the
"Series 2010A Bonds") . The Series 2010A Bonds of $4,940,000 bear interest at 6.00% per annum and principal due
at maturity on October 15, 2030. The balance of the Series 2010A Bonds of $6,795,000, bear interest at 6.25% per
annum and principal due at maturity on October 15, 2040.

On November 1, 2010, The Yonkers Economic Development Corporation provided financing through the issuance
of $710,000 in Taxable Educational Revenue Bonds (Charter School of Educational Excellence Project (the "Series
2010B Bonds"), bearing interest rate at 8.00% per annum and principal due at maturity on October 15, 2016.

The proceeds of the Series 2010 bonds are to be used for the following purposes :

1) the construction of educational facilities .
2) paying certain prior indebtedness (NCB Capital Impact Loans I and II)
3) paying certain capital expenditures and capitalized interest during construction .
4) paying Series 2010 Bond issuance costs.
5) fund of a Bond Fund Deposit and Reserve Fund Deposit .

NOTE14–SUBSEQUENTEVENTS

TheSchoolevaluateseventsoccurringafterthedateofthefinancialstatementstoconsiderwhetherornotthe
impactofsucheventsneedstobereflectedordisclosedinthefinancialstatements.Suchevaluationisperformed
throughthedatethefinancialstatementsareavailableforissuance,whichwasOctoberxx,2013,forthese
financialstatements.

NOTE7–LOANSPAYABLE

LOANI-InJuly2005,theSchoolenteredintoa$1,500,000loanpayablewithNCBCapitalImpactfortherenovation,
rehabilitationandconstructionofleaseholdimprovementstothefacilitieswheretheschoolislocated.Theloantermis
forfifteenyearsandbearsinterestat8%perannumandmaturesonApril30,2021.ThebalanceoutstandingatJune
30,2010was$1,239,153.

LOANII-InOctober2006,anothersimilarloanwiththesameinstitutionwasobtained.Theloanwasfor$480,000and
hadatermthatexpiredonDecember31,2009.NCBCapitalImpacthasextendedthetermonamonthtomonthbasis
withinterestonlypaymentsbearinganinterestrateof8.25%.ThebalanceoutstandingasofJune30,2010was
$427,130.

LOANIII-InJuly2007,theSchoolconvertedthemanagementfeepayable,loanpayableandtheaccruedinteresttoa
termloanwithVSI(SeeNote7fordetails).Theloanwasfor$1,493,186andhadatermof120months,withinterest
payablemonthlyat7.5%perannumandmaturesonJune2017.

Theleaseholdimprovementsandequipment,servedascollateralfortheNCBCapitalImpactloans.LoansIandIIwere
paidinfullonNovember19,2010.
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NOTE 5 – DEFERRED FINANCING COST

The school incurred cost of $853,506 related to the Bond offering (See Note 8). The cost are amortized over the
term of the related debt (30 Years) using a straight -line method. Accumulated amortization at June 30, 2013 was
$74,360. Amortization expense costs charged to operations was $28,528 for 2013.

NOTE 6 – RETIREMENT PLANS

Retirement Savings Plan
The School offers a 401(k) plan (the "Plan”) for substantially all of its employees . Employees are eligible for the
plan immediately upon employment and participation in the Plan is voluntary . Employees may contribute up to
15% of their annual compensation to the Plan, limited to a maximum annual amount as set periodically by the
Internal Revenue Service . The School matches the employee contribution 100% up to 4% of the employee’s total
annual compensation . The School’s contribution recognized in the statement of activities was $10,962 for 2013.
The Plan assets are held in a separate trust and are not included in the accompanying financial statements . All
plan assets are held for the exclusive benefit of the Plan’s participants and beneficiaries . The Plan assets are held
in a separate trust and are not included in the accompanying financial statements . All plan assets are held for the
exclusive benefit of the Plan’s participants and beneficiaries . The Principal Financial Group administers the plan
and is the acting custodian of the plan assets .

New York State Teachers' Retirement System
Employees of the School are eligible to participate in the New York State Teachers' Retirement System (NYSTRS) .
The NYSTRS is a defined benefit plan covering teachers in New York State, with pensions calculated based
primarily on the member's years of service and final average salary . Contributions for the year ended June 30,
2013, was based on 11.84%, of participant salaries . The benefits provided to members of the plan are established
by New York State Law and may be amended only by the State Legislature . Pension expense was $380,961 for the
year ended June 30, 2013.

NOTE 3 – PUPIL ENROLLMENT AND OTHER REVENUES FROM GOVERMENT

Under the School’s Charter School Agreement and the Charter School Act, the School is entitled to receive funding
from both State and Federal sources that are available to public schools . These funds include State pupil
enrollment funds and Federal food subsidies and Title I, IIA, IID, IV and V funds. The calculation of the amounts to
be paid to the School under these programs is determined by the State, and is based on complex laws and
regulations, enrollment levels, and economic information related to the home school district of the children
enrolled in the school . If these regulations, some of which are relatively new in the State of New York, were to
change, or other factors included in the calculations were to change, the level of funding that the School receives
could vary significantly .

Amount due from government agencies and included as revenues in the statement of activities, consist of the
following as of June 30, 2013:

AuditsbyFundingSources
TheSchoolparticipatesinanumberofFederalandStateprograms.TheseprogramsrequirethattheSchool
complieswithcertainrequirementoflaws,regulations,contracts,andagreementsapplicabletotheprogramin
whichitparticipates.Allfundsexpendedinconnectionwithgovernmentgrantsandcontractsaresubjecttoaudit
bygovernmentagencies.Whiletheultimateliability,ifany,fromsuchauditsofgovernmentandcontractsby
governmentagenciesispresentlynotdeterminable,itshouldnot,intheopinionofthemanagement,havea
materialeffectonthefinancialpositionorresultofoperations.Accordingly,noprovisionforanysuchliabilitythat
mayresulthasbeenmadeintheaccompanyingfinancialstatements.

NOTE 12 – COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Occupancy Lease
The School has entered into a non-cancelable operating lease for its classroom facilities that expires on June 30,
2019. Future monthly minimum lease payments as of June 30 are as follows :

NOTE 1 – ORGANIZATION

Charter School of Educational Excellence (the “School”) is a New York education corporation incorporated by the
Board of Regents of the University of the State of New York (the "Board of Regents") under Article 56 of the
New York Education Law. The School a non-profit corporation operating from 260 Warburton Avenue, in
Yonkers, New York. The School educates children in a completely nondiscriminatory and secular basis. The
founders and supporters of the School believe that access to a public education of high quality for all children is
the foremost issue. The School was originally chartered during April 2004 and opened with students from
Kindergarten through 4th graders and thereafter added a grade per year through 6th graders . In January 2013,
the School successfully received a full five-year charter renewal from its charter authorizer, the New York State
Education Department that expires in June 2018, with a maximum enrollment of 669 students in grades
Kindergarten through 8th.

NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Accounting
The financial statements have been prepared using the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America . Revenues are recognized when
earned and expenses are recognized when incurred .

Financial Statement Presentation
The net assets of the School and changes therein are classified and reported as follows :

Unrestricted Net Assets - Net assets that are not subject to donor imposed restrictions .

Temporarily Restricted Net Assets - Net assets subject to donor-imposed restrictions that may or will be met,
either by actions of the School and/or the passage of time.

Use of Estimates in the Preparation of Financial Statements
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in The
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported
amounts and disclosures . Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates .

Contributions
The School records contributions received as unrestricted, temporarily restricted, or permanently restricted
support, depending on the existence and/or nature of any donor restrictions . Support that is restricted by the
donor is reported as an increase in unrestricted net assets if the restriction expires in the reporting period in
which the support is recognized . All other donor restricted support is reported as an increase in temporarily or
permanently restricted net assets, depending on the nature of the restriction . When a restriction expires, that
is, when a stipulation time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished, temporarily restricted net
assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the statement of activities as net assets
released from restrictions . All contributions received in the year ended 2013 were unrestricted .

Recognition of Revenue
Government contract revenue is recognized as earned in the period services are provided and costs are
incurred .

Cash and Cash Equivalents
For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, the School considers all highly liquid investments available for
current use with an initial period of three months or less to be cash equivalents .

Audits by Funding Sources
The School participates in a number of Federal and State programs . These programs require the School comply
with certain requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and agreements applicable to the program in which it
participates . All funds expended in connection with government grants and contracts are subject to audit by
government agencies . While the ultimate liability, if any, from such audits of government and contracts by
government agencies is presently not determinable, it should not, in the opinion of the management, have a
material effect on the financial position or results of operations . Accordingly, no provision for such liability that
may result has been made in the accompanying financial statements .

NOTE 13 – CONCENTRATION OF RISK

The School is dependent on various government agencies for funding, and is responsible for meeting the
requirements of such agencies . If the school was to lose students or the related government funding, it could have
a substantial effect on its ability to continue operations .

NOTE 14 – PENDING LITIGATION, CLAIMS, AND ASSESSMENTS

In November of 2011, lawsuits were commenced against the Charter School of Educational Excellence to foreclose
liens filed by subcontractors and material men who were not paid by the Kullman Building Corporation, the
general contractor awarded the contract to construct the Middle School . The lien foreclosure actions, most of
which additionally alleged claims for equitable relief arising out of the identical circumstances were commenced
by two Plaintiffs and six Defendant Lienors seeking damages of $719,826. It is the opinion of management that the
School has defenses against the liens and equitable causes of action, and the School intends to vigorously defend
these lawsuits . As of October 26, 2013, the case is currently pending in Westchester County Supreme Court of
New York State. No amount has been accrued in these financial statements since the outcome of this matter is
uncertain and the amount of liability, if any, cannot be determined .

NOTE 15 – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The School evaluates events occurring after the date of the financial statements to consider whether or not the
impact of such events needs to be reflected or disclosed in the financial statements . Such evaluation is performed
through the date the financial statements are available for issuance, which was October 31, 2013, for these
financial statements .

NOTE 7 – MANAGEMENT FEE

Victory Schools, Inc. ("VSI") d/b/a Victory Education Partners (VEP) manages the operations of the School under a
management agreement entered into by the School and VSI. The agreement was executed on March 30, 2004.
Per the term of the agreement, VSI assumes responsibility for task and functions associated with the educational
services to be provided to the children enrolled as student at the School in accordance with the term of the
Charter and the Charter of Schools Act, subject to the appropriate oversight from the school’s Board of Trustees .

In providing the above services as per the original agreement, VSI was to be paid a management fee in the
amount equal to product of the total full-time equivalent enrollment of students in the Charter School as defined
under Section 119.1 of New York State Commissioner of Education Regulations multiplied . The Per Pupil Fee shall
be increased or decreased each year by the percentage increase or decrease in the Final Adjusted Expense Per
Pupil for charter schools in the Yonkers City school district as calculated by the New York State Education
Department annually .

VSI is entitled to receive the management fees on a bi-monthly basis. Any VSI Fee, or portion thereof, not paid
within (30) days of its due date shall bear interest at an annualized rate of 7.5% per annum on the outstanding
past due amount, provided such past due payments are not as a result of the Yonkers School District’s failure to
timely remit the Adjusted Expense Per Pupil to the Charter School .

Effective July 1, 2010, the School and VSI have formally agreed to amend the management agreement . The new
fee will be $500,000 per year and will increase 4% each year until it expires at the end of the 2013/2014 school
year.

NOTE 8 – LINE OF CREDIT

The School has secured a revolving line of credit from a financial institution in the amount of $350,000. The
interest rate is the financial institution's index rate plus 1% (4.250% as of June 30, 2013). As of June 30, 2013, the
School had drawn down $119,633 on this line.

NOTE 9 – CAPITAL LEASES PAYABLE

On June 24, 2011 and November 8, 2011, the School entered into two capital lease agreements for certain
equipment, furniture and fixtures . The lease payments relating to the equipment, furniture and fixtures have been
capitalized and included as fixed assets on the accompanying financial statements . The leased assets have a cost
of $468,791 and have a thirty -six month terms.

NOTE3–INVESTMENTS

PursuanttotheprovisionsdescribedinStatementofFinancialAccountingStandards("SFAS")No.157,FairValue
Measurements,theSchoolcategorizesitsfinancialinstrumentsintoathree-levelfairvaluehierarchythat
prioritizestheinputstovaluationtechniquesusedtomeasurefairvalueintothreeboardlevels.Thefairvalue
hierarchygivesthehighestprioritytoquotedpricesinactivemarketsforidenticalassetsorliabilities(Level1)and
thelowestprioritytounobservableinputs(Level3).Valuationofassetsandliabilitiestradedinlessactivedealer
orbrokermarketsthathavesignificantobservableinputsareclassifiedasLevel2.Level2valuationsareusually
obtainedfromthird-partypricingservicevaluationsforidenticalorsimilarassets.Iftheinputsusedtomeasure
fairvaluefallwithindifferentlevelsofthehierarchy,thecategorylevelisbasedonthelowestprioritylevelinput
thatissignificanttothefairvaluemeasurementoftheinstrument.

TheSchool'sinvestmentsatJune30,2010consistsofmoneymarketaccounttotaling$7,130,whichisclassifiedas
Level2inthefairvaluehierarchy.

NOTE 11 – BONDS PAYABLE

On November 1, 2010, The Yonkers Economic Development Corporation provided financing through the issuance
of $11,735,000 Tax-Exempt Educational Revenue Bonds (Charter School of Educational Excellence Project) (the
"Series 2010A Bonds") . The Series 2010A Bonds of $4,940,000 bear interest at 6.00% per annum and principal due
at maturity on October 15, 2030. The balance of the Series 2010A Bonds of $6,795,000, bear interest at 6.25% per
annum and principal due at maturity on October 15, 2040.

On November 1, 2010, The Yonkers Economic Development Corporation provided financing through the issuance
of $710,000 in Taxable Educational Revenue Bonds (Charter School of Educational Excellence Project (the "Series
2010B Bonds"), bearing interest rate at 8.00% per annum and principal due at maturity on October 15, 2016.

The proceeds of the Series 2010 bonds are to be used for the following purposes :

1) the construction of educational facilities .
2) paying certain prior indebtedness (NCB Capital Impact Loans I and II)
3) paying certain capital expenditures and capitalized interest during construction .
4) paying Series 2010 Bond issuance costs.
5) fund of a Bond Fund Deposit and Reserve Fund Deposit .

NOTE14–SUBSEQUENTEVENTS

TheSchoolevaluateseventsoccurringafterthedateofthefinancialstatementstoconsiderwhetherornotthe
impactofsucheventsneedstobereflectedordisclosedinthefinancialstatements.Suchevaluationisperformed
throughthedatethefinancialstatementsareavailableforissuance,whichwasOctoberxx,2013,forthese
financialstatements.

NOTE7–LOANSPAYABLE

LOANI-InJuly2005,theSchoolenteredintoa$1,500,000loanpayablewithNCBCapitalImpactfortherenovation,
rehabilitationandconstructionofleaseholdimprovementstothefacilitieswheretheschoolislocated.Theloantermis
forfifteenyearsandbearsinterestat8%perannumandmaturesonApril30,2021.ThebalanceoutstandingatJune
30,2010was$1,239,153.

LOANII-InOctober2006,anothersimilarloanwiththesameinstitutionwasobtained.Theloanwasfor$480,000and
hadatermthatexpiredonDecember31,2009.NCBCapitalImpacthasextendedthetermonamonthtomonthbasis
withinterestonlypaymentsbearinganinterestrateof8.25%.ThebalanceoutstandingasofJune30,2010was
$427,130.

LOANIII-InJuly2007,theSchoolconvertedthemanagementfeepayable,loanpayableandtheaccruedinteresttoa
termloanwithVSI(SeeNote7fordetails).Theloanwasfor$1,493,186andhadatermof120months,withinterest
payablemonthlyat7.5%perannumandmaturesonJune2017.

Theleaseholdimprovementsandequipment,servedascollateralfortheNCBCapitalImpactloans.LoansIandIIwere
paidinfullonNovember19,2010.

NOTE 10 – LOAN PAYABLE

In July 2007, the School converted the management fee payable, loan payable and the accrued interest to a term
loan with VSI (See Note 7 for details) . The loan was for $1,493,186 and had a term of 120 months, with interest
payable monthly at 7.5% per annum and matures on June 2019.

Principal maturities of long-term debt are as follows :

Year Ending
June 30, Amount

2014 284,597          
2015 293,135          
2016 301,929          
2017 310,987          
2018 320,317          

Thereafter 329,926          
1,840,891       

NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)Income Tax StatusThe Organization is a not-for-profit corporation organized under the laws of the State of New York. It is exemptfrom federal income taxes under Section 501 (c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code.Fixed AssetsFixed assets consist of building, leasehold improvements, furniture and equipment and are valued at cost lessaccumulated depreciation . Depreciation is computed on a straight line basis over the estimated useful lives of therelated assets or the term of the lease agreement . Normal replacement and maintenance costs are charged toearnings as incurred, and major renewals and improvements are capitalized . Upon disposition, the cost andrelated accumulated depreciation is removed from the accounts and the resulting gain or loss for the period . TheSchool capitalizes assets with cost of $500 and over. Depreciation is calculated based on the useful lives of theassets as follows : Building and Leasehold Improvements 20 Years, Equipment, Furniture and Fixtures 3 - 10 Years.Functional Allocation of ExpensesExpenses relating to more than one function are allocated to program service and management and general basedon employee time estimates or other appropriate usage factors .Contributed ServicesContributed services that create or enhance nonfinancial assets, or that require specialized skills, are provided byindividuals possessing those skills, and would typically need to be purchased if not provided by donation, arerecorded at fair value in the period received .A number of volunteers have made a contribution of their time to the School to develop academic and otherprograms and to serve on the board of trustees . The value of this contributed time is not reflected in the financialstatements as such services either do not require specialized skills or would not typically be purchased had theynot been provided as donations .NOTE 5 – DEFERRED FINANCING COSTThe school incurred cost of $853,506 related to the Bond offering (See Note 8). The cost are amortized over theterm of the related debt (30 Years) using a straight -line method. Accumulated amortization at June 30, 2013 was$74,360. Amortization expense costs charged to operations was $28,528 for 2013.NOTE 6 – RETIREMENT PLANSRetirement Savings PlanThe School offers a 401(k) plan (the "Plan”) for substantially all of its employees . Employees are eligible for theplan immediately upon employment and participation in the Plan is voluntary . Employees may contribute up to15% of their annual compensation to the Plan, limited to a maximum annual amount as set periodically by theInternal Revenue Service . The School matches the employee contribution 100% up to 4% of the employee’s totalannual compensation . The School’s contribution recognized in the statement of activities was $10,962 for 2013.The Plan assets are held in a separate trust and are not included in the accompanying financial statements . Allplan assets are held for the exclusive benefit of the Plan’s participants and beneficiaries . The Plan assets are heldin a separate trust and are not included in the accompanying financial statements . All plan assets are held for theexclusive benefit of the Plan’s participants and beneficiaries . The Principal Financial Group administers the planand is the acting custodian of the plan assets .New York State Teachers' Retirement SystemEmployees of the School are eligible to participate in the New York State Teachers' Retirement System (NYSTRS) .The NYSTRS is a defined benefit plan covering teachers in New York State, with pensions calculated basedprimarily on the member's years of service and final average salary . Contributions for the year ended June 30,2013, was based on 11.84%, of participant salaries . The benefits provided to members of the plan are establishedby New York State Law and may be amended only by the State Legislature . Pension expense was $380,961 for theyear ended June 30, 2013.NOTE 3 – PUPIL ENROLLMENT AND OTHER REVENUES FROM GOVERMENTUnder the School’s Charter School Agreement and the Charter School Act, the School is entitled to receive fundingfrom both State and Federal sources that are available to public schools . These funds include State pupilenrollment funds and Federal food subsidies and Title I, IIA, IID, IV and V funds. The calculation of the amounts tobe paid to the School under these programs is determined by the State, and is based on complex laws andregulations, enrollment levels, and economic information related to the home school district of the childrenenrolled in the school . If these regulations, some of which are relatively new in the State of New York, were tochange, or other factors included in the calculations were to change, the level of funding that the School receivescould vary significantly .Amount due from government agencies and included as revenues in the statement of activities, consist of thefollowing as of June 30, 2013:

AuditsbyFundingSources
TheSchoolparticipatesinanumberofFederalandStateprograms.TheseprogramsrequirethattheSchool
complieswithcertainrequirementoflaws,regulations,contracts,andagreementsapplicabletotheprogramin
whichitparticipates.Allfundsexpendedinconnectionwithgovernmentgrantsandcontractsaresubjecttoaudit
bygovernmentagencies.Whiletheultimateliability,ifany,fromsuchauditsofgovernmentandcontractsby
governmentagenciesispresentlynotdeterminable,itshouldnot,intheopinionofthemanagement,havea
materialeffectonthefinancialpositionorresultofoperations.Accordingly,noprovisionforanysuchliabilitythat
mayresulthasbeenmadeintheaccompanyingfinancialstatements.

NOTE 12 – COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Occupancy Lease
The School has entered into a non-cancelable operating lease for its classroom facilities that expires on June 30,
2019. Future monthly minimum lease payments as of June 30 are as follows :

NOTE 1 – ORGANIZATIONCharter School of Educational Excellence (the “School”) is a New York education corporation incorporated by theBoard of Regents of the University of the State of New York (the "Board of Regents") under Article 56 of theNew York Education Law. The School a non-profit corporation operating from 260 Warburton Avenue, inYonkers, New York. The School educates children in a completely nondiscriminatory and secular basis. Thefounders and supporters of the School believe that access to a public education of high quality for all children isthe foremost issue. The School was originally chartered during April 2004 and opened with students fromKindergarten through 4th graders and thereafter added a grade per year through 6th graders . In January 2013,the School successfully received a full five-year charter renewal from its charter authorizer, the New York StateEducation Department that expires in June 2018, with a maximum enrollment of 669 students in gradesKindergarten through 8th.NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIESBasis of AccountingThe financial statements have been prepared using the accrual basis of accounting in accordance withaccounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America . Revenues are recognized whenearned and expenses are recognized when incurred .Financial Statement PresentationThe net assets of the School and changes therein are classified and reported as follows :Unrestricted Net Assets - Net assets that are not subject to donor imposed restrictions .Temporarily Restricted Net Assets - Net assets subject to donor-imposed restrictions that may or will be met,either by actions of the School and/or the passage of time.Use of Estimates in the Preparation of Financial StatementsThe preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in TheUnited States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reportedamounts and disclosures . Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates .ContributionsThe School records contributions received as unrestricted, temporarily restricted, or permanently restrictedsupport, depending on the existence and/or nature of any donor restrictions . Support that is restricted by thedonor is reported as an increase in unrestricted net assets if the restriction expires in the reporting period inwhich the support is recognized . All other donor restricted support is reported as an increase in temporarily orpermanently restricted net assets, depending on the nature of the restriction . When a restriction expires, thatis, when a stipulation time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished, temporarily restricted netassets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the statement of activities as net assetsreleased from restrictions . All contributions received in the year ended 2013 were unrestricted .Recognition of RevenueGovernment contract revenue is recognized as earned in the period services are provided and costs areincurred .Cash and Cash EquivalentsFor the purposes of the statement of cash flows, the School considers all highly liquid investments available forcurrent use with an initial period of three months or less to be cash equivalents .

Audits by Funding Sources
The School participates in a number of Federal and State programs . These programs require the School comply
with certain requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and agreements applicable to the program in which it
participates . All funds expended in connection with government grants and contracts are subject to audit by
government agencies . While the ultimate liability, if any, from such audits of government and contracts by
government agencies is presently not determinable, it should not, in the opinion of the management, have a
material effect on the financial position or results of operations . Accordingly, no provision for such liability that
may result has been made in the accompanying financial statements .

NOTE 13 – CONCENTRATION OF RISK

The School is dependent on various government agencies for funding, and is responsible for meeting the
requirements of such agencies . If the school was to lose students or the related government funding, it could have
a substantial effect on its ability to continue operations .

NOTE 14 – PENDING LITIGATION, CLAIMS, AND ASSESSMENTS

In November of 2011, lawsuits were commenced against the Charter School of Educational Excellence to foreclose
liens filed by subcontractors and material men who were not paid by the Kullman Building Corporation, the
general contractor awarded the contract to construct the Middle School . The lien foreclosure actions, most of
which additionally alleged claims for equitable relief arising out of the identical circumstances were commenced
by two Plaintiffs and six Defendant Lienors seeking damages of $719,826. It is the opinion of management that the
School has defenses against the liens and equitable causes of action, and the School intends to vigorously defend
these lawsuits . As of October 26, 2013, the case is currently pending in Westchester County Supreme Court of
New York State. No amount has been accrued in these financial statements since the outcome of this matter is
uncertain and the amount of liability, if any, cannot be determined .

NOTE 15 – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The School evaluates events occurring after the date of the financial statements to consider whether or not the
impact of such events needs to be reflected or disclosed in the financial statements . Such evaluation is performed
through the date the financial statements are available for issuance, which was October 31, 2013, for these
financial statements .

NOTE 7 – MANAGEMENT FEEVictory Schools, Inc. ("VSI") d/b/a Victory Education Partners (VEP) manages the operations of the School under amanagement agreement entered into by the School and VSI. The agreement was executed on March 30, 2004.Per the term of the agreement, VSI assumes responsibility for task and functions associated with the educationalservices to be provided to the children enrolled as student at the School in accordance with the term of theCharter and the Charter of Schools Act, subject to the appropriate oversight from the school’s Board of Trustees .In providing the above services as per the original agreement, VSI was to be paid a management fee in theamount equal to product of the total full-time equivalent enrollment of students in the Charter School as definedunder Section 119.1 of New York State Commissioner of Education Regulations multiplied . The Per Pupil Fee shallbe increased or decreased each year by the percentage increase or decrease in the Final Adjusted Expense PerPupil for charter schools in the Yonkers City school district as calculated by the New York State EducationDepartment annually .VSI is entitled to receive the management fees on a bi-monthly basis. Any VSI Fee, or portion thereof, not paidwithin (30) days of its due date shall bear interest at an annualized rate of 7.5% per annum on the outstandingpast due amount, provided such past due payments are not as a result of the Yonkers School District’s failure totimely remit the Adjusted Expense Per Pupil to the Charter School .Effective July 1, 2010, the School and VSI have formally agreed to amend the management agreement . The newfee will be $500,000 per year and will increase 4% each year until it expires at the end of the 2013/2014 schoolyear.NOTE 8 – LINE OF CREDITThe School has secured a revolving line of credit from a financial institution in the amount of $350,000. Theinterest rate is the financial institution's index rate plus 1% (4.250% as of June 30, 2013). As of June 30, 2013, theSchool had drawn down $119,633 on this line.NOTE 9 – CAPITAL LEASES PAYABLEOn June 24, 2011 and November 8, 2011, the School entered into two capital lease agreements for certainequipment, furniture and fixtures . The lease payments relating to the equipment, furniture and fixtures have beencapitalized and included as fixed assets on the accompanying financial statements . The leased assets have a costof $468,791 and have a thirty -six month terms. NOTE3–INVESTMENTSPursuanttotheprovisionsdescribedinStatementofFinancialAccountingStandards("SFAS")No.157,FairValueMeasurements,theSchoolcategorizesitsfinancialinstrumentsintoathree-levelfairvaluehierarchythatprioritizestheinputstovaluationtechniquesusedtomeasurefairvalueintothreeboardlevels.Thefairvaluehierarchygivesthehighestprioritytoquotedpricesinactivemarketsforidenticalassetsorliabilities(Level1)andthelowestprioritytounobservableinputs(Level3).ValuationofassetsandliabilitiestradedinlessactivedealerorbrokermarketsthathavesignificantobservableinputsareclassifiedasLevel2.Level2valuationsareusuallyobtainedfromthird-partypricingservicevaluationsforidenticalorsimilarassets.Iftheinputsusedtomeasurefairvaluefallwithindifferentlevelsofthehierarchy,thecategorylevelisbasedonthelowestprioritylevelinputthatissignificanttothefairvaluemeasurementoftheinstrument.TheSchool'sinvestmentsatJune30,2010consistsofmoneymarketaccounttotaling$7,130,whichisclassifiedasLevel2inthefairvaluehierarchy.NOTE 11 – BONDS PAYABLEOn November 1, 2010, The Yonkers Economic Development Corporation provided financing through the issuanceof $11,735,000 Tax-Exempt Educational Revenue Bonds (Charter School of Educational Excellence Project) (the"Series 2010A Bonds") . The Series 2010A Bonds of $4,940,000 bear interest at 6.00% per annum and principal dueat maturity on October 15, 2030. The balance of the Series 2010A Bonds of $6,795,000, bear interest at 6.25% perannum and principal due at maturity on October 15, 2040.On November 1, 2010, The Yonkers Economic Development Corporation provided financing through the issuanceof $710,000 in Taxable Educational Revenue Bonds (Charter School of Educational Excellence Project (the "Series2010B Bonds"), bearing interest rate at 8.00% per annum and principal due at maturity on October 15, 2016.The proceeds of the Series 2010 bonds are to be used for the following purposes :

1) the construction of educational facilities .
2) paying certain prior indebtedness (NCB Capital Impact Loans I and II)
3) paying certain capital expenditures and capitalized interest during construction .
4) paying Series 2010 Bond issuance costs.
5) fund of a Bond Fund Deposit and Reserve Fund Deposit .

NOTE14–SUBSEQUENTEVENTS

TheSchoolevaluateseventsoccurringafterthedateofthefinancialstatementstoconsiderwhetherornotthe
impactofsucheventsneedstobereflectedordisclosedinthefinancialstatements.Suchevaluationisperformed
throughthedatethefinancialstatementsareavailableforissuance,whichwasOctoberxx,2013,forthese
financialstatements.

NOTE7–LOANSPAYABLELOANI-InJuly2005,theSchoolenteredintoa$1,500,000loanpayablewithNCBCapitalImpactfortherenovation,rehabilitationandconstructionofleaseholdimprovementstothefacilitieswheretheschoolislocated.Theloantermisforfifteenyearsandbearsinterestat8%perannumandmaturesonApril30,2021.ThebalanceoutstandingatJune30,2010was$1,239,153.LOANII-InOctober2006,anothersimilarloanwiththesameinstitutionwasobtained.Theloanwasfor$480,000andhadatermthatexpiredonDecember31,2009.NCBCapitalImpacthasextendedthetermonamonthtomonthbasiswithinterestonlypaymentsbearinganinterestrateof8.25%.ThebalanceoutstandingasofJune30,2010was$427,130.LOANIII-InJuly2007,theSchoolconvertedthemanagementfeepayable,loanpayableandtheaccruedinteresttoatermloanwithVSI(SeeNote7fordetails).Theloanwasfor$1,493,186andhadatermof120months,withinterestpayablemonthlyat7.5%perannumandmaturesonJune2017.Theleaseholdimprovementsandequipment,servedascollateralfortheNCBCapitalImpactloans.LoansIandIIwerepaidinfullonNovember19,2010.NOTE 10 – LOAN PAYABLEIn July 2007, the School converted the management fee payable, loan payable and the accrued interest to a termloan with VSI (See Note 7 for details) . The loan was for $1,493,186 and had a term of 120 months, with interestpayable monthly at 7.5% per annum and matures on June 2019.Principal maturities of long-term debt are as follows :
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NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)Income Tax StatusThe Organization is a not-for-profit corporation organized under the laws of the State of New York. It is exemptfrom federal income taxes under Section 501 (c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code.Fixed AssetsFixed assets consist of building, leasehold improvements, furniture and equipment and are valued at cost lessaccumulated depreciation . Depreciation is computed on a straight line basis over the estimated useful lives of therelated assets or the term of the lease agreement . Normal replacement and maintenance costs are charged toearnings as incurred, and major renewals and improvements are capitalized . Upon disposition, the cost andrelated accumulated depreciation is removed from the accounts and the resulting gain or loss for the period . TheSchool capitalizes assets with cost of $500 and over. Depreciation is calculated based on the useful lives of theassets as follows : Building and Leasehold Improvements 20 Years, Equipment, Furniture and Fixtures 3 - 10 Years.Functional Allocation of ExpensesExpenses relating to more than one function are allocated to program service and management and general basedon employee time estimates or other appropriate usage factors .Contributed ServicesContributed services that create or enhance nonfinancial assets, or that require specialized skills, are provided byindividuals possessing those skills, and would typically need to be purchased if not provided by donation, arerecorded at fair value in the period received .A number of volunteers have made a contribution of their time to the School to develop academic and otherprograms and to serve on the board of trustees . The value of this contributed time is not reflected in the financialstatements as such services either do not require specialized skills or would not typically be purchased had theynot been provided as donations .NOTE 5 – DEFERRED FINANCING COSTThe school incurred cost of $853,506 related to the Bond offering (See Note 8). The cost are amortized over theterm of the related debt (30 Years) using a straight -line method. Accumulated amortization at June 30, 2013 was$74,360. Amortization expense costs charged to operations was $28,528 for 2013.NOTE 6 – RETIREMENT PLANSRetirement Savings PlanThe School offers a 401(k) plan (the "Plan”) for substantially all of its employees . Employees are eligible for theplan immediately upon employment and participation in the Plan is voluntary . Employees may contribute up to15% of their annual compensation to the Plan, limited to a maximum annual amount as set periodically by theInternal Revenue Service . The School matches the employee contribution 100% up to 4% of the employee’s totalannual compensation . The School’s contribution recognized in the statement of activities was $10,962 for 2013.The Plan assets are held in a separate trust and are not included in the accompanying financial statements . Allplan assets are held for the exclusive benefit of the Plan’s participants and beneficiaries . The Plan assets are heldin a separate trust and are not included in the accompanying financial statements . All plan assets are held for theexclusive benefit of the Plan’s participants and beneficiaries . The Principal Financial Group administers the planand is the acting custodian of the plan assets .New York State Teachers' Retirement SystemEmployees of the School are eligible to participate in the New York State Teachers' Retirement System (NYSTRS) .The NYSTRS is a defined benefit plan covering teachers in New York State, with pensions calculated basedprimarily on the member's years of service and final average salary . Contributions for the year ended June 30,2013, was based on 11.84%, of participant salaries . The benefits provided to members of the plan are establishedby New York State Law and may be amended only by the State Legislature . Pension expense was $380,961 for theyear ended June 30, 2013.NOTE 3 – PUPIL ENROLLMENT AND OTHER REVENUES FROM GOVERMENTUnder the School’s Charter School Agreement and the Charter School Act, the School is entitled to receive fundingfrom both State and Federal sources that are available to public schools . These funds include State pupilenrollment funds and Federal food subsidies and Title I, IIA, IID, IV and V funds. The calculation of the amounts tobe paid to the School under these programs is determined by the State, and is based on complex laws andregulations, enrollment levels, and economic information related to the home school district of the childrenenrolled in the school . If these regulations, some of which are relatively new in the State of New York, were tochange, or other factors included in the calculations were to change, the level of funding that the School receivescould vary significantly .Amount due from government agencies and included as revenues in the statement of activities, consist of thefollowing as of June 30, 2013:

AuditsbyFundingSources
TheSchoolparticipatesinanumberofFederalandStateprograms.TheseprogramsrequirethattheSchool
complieswithcertainrequirementoflaws,regulations,contracts,andagreementsapplicabletotheprogramin
whichitparticipates.Allfundsexpendedinconnectionwithgovernmentgrantsandcontractsaresubjecttoaudit
bygovernmentagencies.Whiletheultimateliability,ifany,fromsuchauditsofgovernmentandcontractsby
governmentagenciesispresentlynotdeterminable,itshouldnot,intheopinionofthemanagement,havea
materialeffectonthefinancialpositionorresultofoperations.Accordingly,noprovisionforanysuchliabilitythat
mayresulthasbeenmadeintheaccompanyingfinancialstatements.

NOTE 1 – ORGANIZATIONCharter School of Educational Excellence (the “School”) is a New York education corporation incorporated by theBoard of Regents of the University of the State of New York (the "Board of Regents") under Article 56 of theNew York Education Law. The School a non-profit corporation operating from 260 Warburton Avenue, inYonkers, New York. The School educates children in a completely nondiscriminatory and secular basis. Thefounders and supporters of the School believe that access to a public education of high quality for all children isthe foremost issue. The School was originally chartered during April 2004 and opened with students fromKindergarten through 4th graders and thereafter added a grade per year through 6th graders . In January 2013,the School successfully received a full five-year charter renewal from its charter authorizer, the New York StateEducation Department that expires in June 2018, with a maximum enrollment of 669 students in gradesKindergarten through 8th.NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIESBasis of AccountingThe financial statements have been prepared using the accrual basis of accounting in accordance withaccounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America . Revenues are recognized whenearned and expenses are recognized when incurred .Financial Statement PresentationThe net assets of the School and changes therein are classified and reported as follows :Unrestricted Net Assets - Net assets that are not subject to donor imposed restrictions .Temporarily Restricted Net Assets - Net assets subject to donor-imposed restrictions that may or will be met,either by actions of the School and/or the passage of time.Use of Estimates in the Preparation of Financial StatementsThe preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in TheUnited States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reportedamounts and disclosures . Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates .ContributionsThe School records contributions received as unrestricted, temporarily restricted, or permanently restrictedsupport, depending on the existence and/or nature of any donor restrictions . Support that is restricted by thedonor is reported as an increase in unrestricted net assets if the restriction expires in the reporting period inwhich the support is recognized . All other donor restricted support is reported as an increase in temporarily orpermanently restricted net assets, depending on the nature of the restriction . When a restriction expires, thatis, when a stipulation time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished, temporarily restricted netassets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the statement of activities as net assetsreleased from restrictions . All contributions received in the year ended 2013 were unrestricted .Recognition of RevenueGovernment contract revenue is recognized as earned in the period services are provided and costs areincurred .Cash and Cash EquivalentsFor the purposes of the statement of cash flows, the School considers all highly liquid investments available forcurrent use with an initial period of three months or less to be cash equivalents .

Audits by Funding Sources
The School participates in a number of Federal and State programs . These programs require the School comply
with certain requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and agreements applicable to the program in which it
participates . All funds expended in connection with government grants and contracts are subject to audit by
government agencies . While the ultimate liability, if any, from such audits of government and contracts by
government agencies is presently not determinable, it should not, in the opinion of the management, have a
material effect on the financial position or results of operations . Accordingly, no provision for such liability that
may result has been made in the accompanying financial statements .

NOTE 13 – CONCENTRATION OF RISK

The School is dependent on various government agencies for funding, and is responsible for meeting the
requirements of such agencies . If the school was to lose students or the related government funding, it could have
a substantial effect on its ability to continue operations .

NOTE 14 – PENDING LITIGATION, CLAIMS, AND ASSESSMENTS

In November of 2011, lawsuits were commenced against the Charter School of Educational Excellence to foreclose
liens filed by subcontractors and material men who were not paid by the Kullman Building Corporation, the
general contractor awarded the contract to construct the Middle School . The lien foreclosure actions, most of
which additionally alleged claims for equitable relief arising out of the identical circumstances were commenced
by two Plaintiffs and six Defendant Lienors seeking damages of $719,826. It is the opinion of management that the
School has defenses against the liens and equitable causes of action, and the School intends to vigorously defend
these lawsuits . As of October 26, 2013, the case is currently pending in Westchester County Supreme Court of
New York State. No amount has been accrued in these financial statements since the outcome of this matter is
uncertain and the amount of liability, if any, cannot be determined .

NOTE 15 – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The School evaluates events occurring after the date of the financial statements to consider whether or not the
impact of such events needs to be reflected or disclosed in the financial statements . Such evaluation is performed
through the date the financial statements are available for issuance, which was October 31, 2013, for these
financial statements .

NOTE 7 – MANAGEMENT FEEVictory Schools, Inc. ("VSI") d/b/a Victory Education Partners (VEP) manages the operations of the School under amanagement agreement entered into by the School and VSI. The agreement was executed on March 30, 2004.Per the term of the agreement, VSI assumes responsibility for task and functions associated with the educationalservices to be provided to the children enrolled as student at the School in accordance with the term of theCharter and the Charter of Schools Act, subject to the appropriate oversight from the school’s Board of Trustees .In providing the above services as per the original agreement, VSI was to be paid a management fee in theamount equal to product of the total full-time equivalent enrollment of students in the Charter School as definedunder Section 119.1 of New York State Commissioner of Education Regulations multiplied . The Per Pupil Fee shallbe increased or decreased each year by the percentage increase or decrease in the Final Adjusted Expense PerPupil for charter schools in the Yonkers City school district as calculated by the New York State EducationDepartment annually .VSI is entitled to receive the management fees on a bi-monthly basis. Any VSI Fee, or portion thereof, not paidwithin (30) days of its due date shall bear interest at an annualized rate of 7.5% per annum on the outstandingpast due amount, provided such past due payments are not as a result of the Yonkers School District’s failure totimely remit the Adjusted Expense Per Pupil to the Charter School .Effective July 1, 2010, the School and VSI have formally agreed to amend the management agreement . The newfee will be $500,000 per year and will increase 4% each year until it expires at the end of the 2013/2014 schoolyear.NOTE 8 – LINE OF CREDITThe School has secured a revolving line of credit from a financial institution in the amount of $350,000. Theinterest rate is the financial institution's index rate plus 1% (4.250% as of June 30, 2013). As of June 30, 2013, theSchool had drawn down $119,633 on this line.NOTE 9 – CAPITAL LEASES PAYABLEOn June 24, 2011 and November 8, 2011, the School entered into two capital lease agreements for certainequipment, furniture and fixtures . The lease payments relating to the equipment, furniture and fixtures have beencapitalized and included as fixed assets on the accompanying financial statements . The leased assets have a costof $468,791 and have a thirty -six month terms. NOTE3–INVESTMENTSPursuanttotheprovisionsdescribedinStatementofFinancialAccountingStandards("SFAS")No.157,FairValueMeasurements,theSchoolcategorizesitsfinancialinstrumentsintoathree-levelfairvaluehierarchythatprioritizestheinputstovaluationtechniquesusedtomeasurefairvalueintothreeboardlevels.Thefairvaluehierarchygivesthehighestprioritytoquotedpricesinactivemarketsforidenticalassetsorliabilities(Level1)andthelowestprioritytounobservableinputs(Level3).ValuationofassetsandliabilitiestradedinlessactivedealerorbrokermarketsthathavesignificantobservableinputsareclassifiedasLevel2.Level2valuationsareusuallyobtainedfromthird-partypricingservicevaluationsforidenticalorsimilarassets.Iftheinputsusedtomeasurefairvaluefallwithindifferentlevelsofthehierarchy,thecategorylevelisbasedonthelowestprioritylevelinputthatissignificanttothefairvaluemeasurementoftheinstrument.TheSchool'sinvestmentsatJune30,2010consistsofmoneymarketaccounttotaling$7,130,whichisclassifiedasLevel2inthefairvaluehierarchy.

NOTE14–SUBSEQUENTEVENTS

TheSchoolevaluateseventsoccurringafterthedateofthefinancialstatementstoconsiderwhetherornotthe
impactofsucheventsneedstobereflectedordisclosedinthefinancialstatements.Suchevaluationisperformed
throughthedatethefinancialstatementsareavailableforissuance,whichwasOctoberxx,2013,forthese
financialstatements.

NOTE7–LOANSPAYABLELOANI-InJuly2005,theSchoolenteredintoa$1,500,000loanpayablewithNCBCapitalImpactfortherenovation,rehabilitationandconstructionofleaseholdimprovementstothefacilitieswheretheschoolislocated.Theloantermisforfifteenyearsandbearsinterestat8%perannumandmaturesonApril30,2021.ThebalanceoutstandingatJune30,2010was$1,239,153.LOANII-InOctober2006,anothersimilarloanwiththesameinstitutionwasobtained.Theloanwasfor$480,000andhadatermthatexpiredonDecember31,2009.NCBCapitalImpacthasextendedthetermonamonthtomonthbasiswithinterestonlypaymentsbearinganinterestrateof8.25%.ThebalanceoutstandingasofJune30,2010was$427,130.LOANIII-InJuly2007,theSchoolconvertedthemanagementfeepayable,loanpayableandtheaccruedinteresttoatermloanwithVSI(SeeNote7fordetails).Theloanwasfor$1,493,186andhadatermof120months,withinterestpayablemonthlyat7.5%perannumandmaturesonJune2017.Theleaseholdimprovementsandequipment,servedascollateralfortheNCBCapitalImpactloans.LoansIandIIwerepaidinfullonNovember19,2010.NOTE 10 – LOAN PAYABLEIn July 2007, the School converted the management fee payable, loan payable and the accrued interest to a termloan with VSI (See Note 7 for details) . The loan was for $1,493,186 and had a term of 120 months, with interestpayable monthly at 7.5% per annum and matures on June 2019.Principal maturities of long-term debt are as follows :
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Regular Special Total Support 
Education Education Programs Services Total

Personnel Service Costs
Administrative Staff Personnel 566,176$           -$                        566,176$           -$                     566,176$        
Instructional Personnel 2,734,835          84,513               2,819,348          -                       2,819,348       
Non-Instructional Personnel -                          -                          -                          146,439          146,439          
    Total Personnel Costs 3,301,011          84,513               3,385,524          146,439          3,531,963       

Fringe Benefits 416,624             10,666               427,290             18,482            445,772          
Payroll Taxes 317,703             8,134                  325,837             14,094            339,931          
Retirement Benefits 366,295             9,378                  375,673             16,250            391,923          

Total Personnel and Related Expenses 4,401,633          112,691             4,514,324          195,265          4,709,589       
  

Operating Expenses   
Management Fee -                          -                          -                          540,800          540,800          
Legal -                          -                          -                          24,168            24,168             
Consultants 47,348               1,212                  48,560               2,100               50,660             
Student Services 392,309             10,044               402,353             17,404            419,757          
Insurance 68,528               1,754                  70,282               49,071            119,353          
Supplies and Materials 131,605             3,369                  134,974             5,838               140,812          
Technology 41,888               1,073                  42,961               1,858               44,819             
Occupancy 295,456             7,564                  303,020             13,107            316,127          
Utilities 139,009             3,559                  142,568             6,167               148,735          
Staff Development 151,135             3,869                  155,004             6,705               161,709          
Marketing and Recruitment 4,805                 123                     4,928                 213                  5,141               
Auditing Fees -                          -                          -                          17,500            17,500             
Office Expenses 68,371               1,750                  70,121               3,033               73,154             
Maintenance and Repairs 397,224             10,170               407,394             17,622            425,016          
Equipment and Furnishings 137,498             3,520                  141,018             6,100               147,118          
Transportation 273,348             6,998                  280,346             12,126            292,472          
Amortization 26,663               683                     27,346               1,184               28,530             
Depreciation 757,928             19,405               777,333             33,622            810,955          
Interest Expense 858,235             21,973               880,208             38,073            918,281          
Other Expenses 71,644               1,834                  73,478               3,180               76,658             

Total Operating Expenses 3,862,994          98,900               3,961,894          799,871          4,761,765       
  

TOTAL EXPENSES 8,264,627$       211,591$           8,476,218$       995,136$        9,471,354$     

 

Charter School of Educational Excellence

Schedule of Functional Expenses

For the year ended June 30, 2013
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Charter School of Educational Excellence

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

and Accompanying Notes

For the year ended June 30, 2013
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FEDERAL GRANTOR/
PASS-THROUGH FEDERAL
GRANTOR/PROGRAM TITLE CFDA FEDERAL

NUMBER EXPENDITURES

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

TITLE I GRANTS TO LOCAL EDUCATIONAL AGENCIES 84.010 273,583$          
Pass - Through from the New York State
Education Department

IMPROVING TEACHER QUALITY STATE GRANTS 84.367
Pass - Through from the New York State
Education Department 18,700              

SPECIAL EDUCATION GRANTS TO STATES 84.027
Pass - Through from the New York State
Education Department 8,696                

TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION 300,979            

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE (USDA)

SCHOOL BREAKFAST PROGRAM 10.553
Pass - Through from the New York State
Education Department 123,216            

NATIONAL SCHOOL LUNCH PROGRAM 10.555
Pass - Through from the New York State
Education Department 218,564            

TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE (USDA) 341,780            

TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 642,759$         

Charter School of Educational Excellence

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

For the year ended June 30, 2013
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See accompanying notes and independent auditors' report.



Charter School of Educational Excellence

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

For the year ended June 30, 2013

NOTE 1 – BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant activity of Charter
School of Educational Excellence , under programs of the federal government for the year ended June 30,
2013. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Office of
Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit
Organizations . Because the schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of Charter School of
Educational Excellence, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net assets,
or cash flows of the entity .

NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting . Such expenditures are
recognized following the cost principles contained in OMB Circular A-122, Cost Principles for Non-profit
Organizations , wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement .
Pass-through entity identifying numbers are presented where available .

(16)(16)



Charter School of Educational Excellence

Summary Schedule of Prior Year Audit Findings

For the year ended June 30, 2013

Section II – Financial Statement Findings

There were no reported findings for the year ended June 30, 2012.

Section III – Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

There were no reported findings for the year ended June 30, 2012.

(17)(17)



To the Board of Trustees of

Charter School of Educational Excellence

Yonkers, New York

Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements

Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and On

Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

586 Route 304, New City, NY 10956
845-638-3113 |       845-638-4817

445 Park Ave, 9th Fl, New York, NY 10022
212-734-0395 |       212-734-0954

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States, the financial statements of Charter School of Educational Excellence (a nonprofit organization) which comprise the
statement of financial position as of June 30, 2013 and the related statements of activities, and cash flows for the year then
ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated October 31, 2013.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Charter School of Educational Excellence 's
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of Charter School of Educational Excellence ’s internal control . Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization’s internal control .
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the
normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A
material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility
that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely
basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material
weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance .
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was not
designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies . Given these
limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses .
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified .

Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Charter School of Educational Excellence's financial statements are free
of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement
amounts . However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly,
we do not express such an opinion . The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards .

w w w . c p a t r u s t . c o m

Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results of that
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the organization’s internal control or on compliance . This report is
an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the organization’s
internal control and compliance . Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose .

w w w . c p a t r u s t . c o m

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States, the financial statements of Charter School of Educational Excellence (a nonprofit organization) which comprise the
statement of financial position as of June 30, 2013 and the related statements of activities, and cash flows for the year then
ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated October 31, 2013.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Charter School of Educational Excellence 's
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of Charter School of Educational Excellence ’s internal control . Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization’s internal control .
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the
normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A
material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility
that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely
basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material
weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance .
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was not
designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies . Given these
limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses .
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified .

Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Charter School of Educational Excellence's financial statements are free
of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement
amounts . However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly,
we do not express such an opinion . The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards .

w w w . c p a t r u s t . c o m

Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results of that
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the organization’s internal control or on compliance . This report is
an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the organization’s
internal control and compliance . Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose .
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Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results of that
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the organization’s internal control or on compliance . This report is
an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the organization’s
internal control and compliance . Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose .



New City, New York

October 31,  2013

586 Route 304, New City, NY 10956845-638-3113 |       845-638-4817445 Park Ave, 9th Fl, New York, NY 10022212-734-0395 |       212-734-0954
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We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standardsapplicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the UnitedStates, the financial statements of Charter School of Educational Excellence (a nonprofit organization) which comprise thestatement of financial position as of June 30, 2013 and the related statements of activities, and cash flows for the year thenended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated October 31, 2013.Internal Control over Financial ReportingIn planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Charter School of Educational Excellence 'sinternal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in thecircumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing anopinion on the effectiveness of Charter School of Educational Excellence ’s internal control . Accordingly, we do not express anopinion on the effectiveness of the Organization’s internal control .A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in thenormal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. Amaterial weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibilitythat a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timelybasis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a materialweakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance .Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was notdesigned to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies . Given theselimitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses .However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified .Compliance and Other MattersAs part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Charter School of Educational Excellence's financial statements are freeof material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grantagreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statementamounts . However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly,we do not express such an opinion . The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that arerequired to be reported under Government Auditing Standards .

Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results of that
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the organization’s internal control or on compliance . This report is
an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the organization’s
internal control and compliance . Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose .

586 Route 304, New City, NY 10956845-638-3113 |       845-638-4817445 Park Ave, 9th Fl, New York, NY 10022212-734-0395 |       212-734-0954We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standardsapplicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the UnitedStates, the financial statements of Charter School of Educational Excellence (a nonprofit organization) which comprise thestatement of financial position as of June 30, 2013 and the related statements of activities, and cash flows for the year thenended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated October 31, 2013.Internal Control over Financial ReportingIn planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Charter School of Educational Excellence 'sinternal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in thecircumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing anopinion on the effectiveness of Charter School of Educational Excellence ’s internal control . Accordingly, we do not express anopinion on the effectiveness of the Organization’s internal control .A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in thenormal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. Amaterial weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibilitythat a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timelybasis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a materialweakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance .Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was notdesigned to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies . Given theselimitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses .However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified .Compliance and Other MattersAs part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Charter School of Educational Excellence's financial statements are freeof material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grantagreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statementamounts . However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly,we do not express such an opinion . The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that arerequired to be reported under Government Auditing Standards .
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586 Route 304, New City, NY 10956845-638-3113 |       845-638-4817445 Park Ave, 9th Fl, New York, NY 10022212-734-0395 |       212-734-0954We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standardsapplicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the UnitedStates, the financial statements of Charter School of Educational Excellence (a nonprofit organization) which comprise thestatement of financial position as of June 30, 2013 and the related statements of activities, and cash flows for the year thenended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated October 31, 2013.Internal Control over Financial ReportingIn planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Charter School of Educational Excellence 'sinternal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in thecircumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing anopinion on the effectiveness of Charter School of Educational Excellence ’s internal control . Accordingly, we do not express anopinion on the effectiveness of the Organization’s internal control .A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in thenormal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. Amaterial weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibilitythat a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timelybasis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a materialweakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance .Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was notdesigned to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies . Given theselimitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses .However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified .Compliance and Other MattersAs part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Charter School of Educational Excellence's financial statements are freeof material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grantagreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statementamounts . However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly,we do not express such an opinion . The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that arerequired to be reported under Government Auditing Standards .
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To the Board of Trustees of

Charter School of Educational Excellence

Yonkers, New York

Direct and Material Effect on Each Major Program and on Internal Control

Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance With Requirements That Could Have a

Over Compliance in Accordance with OMB Circular A-133

586 Route 304, New City, NY 10956
845-638-3113 |       845-638-4817

445 Park Ave, 9th Fl, New York, NY 10022
212-734-0395 |       212-734-0954

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program
We have audited Charter School of Educational Excellence’s compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in
the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of Charter School of
Educational Excellence's major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2013. Charter School of Educational Excellence’s
major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to its
federal programs .

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Charter School of Educational Excellence’s major federal
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America ; the standards applicable to financial
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States ; and OMB Circular A-
133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations . Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred . An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Charter School of Educational Excellence’s compliance with those
requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances .

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program . However,
our audit does not provide a legal determination of Charter School of Educational Excellence’s compliance .

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program
In our opinion, Charter School of Educational Excellence complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year
ended June 30, 2013.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance
Management of Charter School of Educational Excellence is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control
over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of
compliance, we considered Charter School of Educational Excellence’s internal control over compliance with the types of
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program
and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance . Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of Charter School of Educational Excellence’s internal control over compliance .

w w w . c p a t r u s t . c o m

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance .

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies . We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material
weaknesses . However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified .

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control
over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of OMB Circular A-133. Accordingly, this report is not
suitable for any other purpose .

w w w . c p a t r u s t . c o m

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program
We have audited Charter School of Educational Excellence’s compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in
the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of Charter School of
Educational Excellence's major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2013. Charter School of Educational Excellence’s
major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to its
federal programs .

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Charter School of Educational Excellence’s major federal
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America ; the standards applicable to financial
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States ; and OMB Circular A-
133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations . Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred . An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Charter School of Educational Excellence’s compliance with those
requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances .

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program . However,
our audit does not provide a legal determination of Charter School of Educational Excellence’s compliance .

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program
In our opinion, Charter School of Educational Excellence complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year
ended June 30, 2013.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance
Management of Charter School of Educational Excellence is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control
over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of
compliance, we considered Charter School of Educational Excellence’s internal control over compliance with the types of
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program
and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance . Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of Charter School of Educational Excellence’s internal control over compliance .

w w w . c p a t r u s t . c o m

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance .

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies . We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material
weaknesses . However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified .

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control
over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of OMB Circular A-133. Accordingly, this report is not
suitable for any other purpose .
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A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance .

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies . We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material
weaknesses . However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified .

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control
over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of OMB Circular A-133. Accordingly, this report is not
suitable for any other purpose .
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Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal ProgramWe have audited Charter School of Educational Excellence’s compliance with the types of compliance requirements described inthe OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of Charter School ofEducational Excellence's major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2013. Charter School of Educational Excellence’smajor federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings andquestioned costs.Management’s ResponsibilityManagement is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to itsfederal programs .Auditor’s ResponsibilityOur responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Charter School of Educational Excellence’s major federalprograms based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliancein accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America ; the standards applicable to financialaudits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States ; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations . Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that weplan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliancerequirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred . An auditincludes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Charter School of Educational Excellence’s compliance with thoserequirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances .We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program . However,our audit does not provide a legal determination of Charter School of Educational Excellence’s compliance .Opinion on Each Major Federal ProgramIn our opinion, Charter School of Educational Excellence complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliancerequirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the yearended June 30, 2013.Report on Internal Control over ComplianceManagement of Charter School of Educational Excellence is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal controlover compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit ofcompliance, we considered Charter School of Educational Excellence’s internal control over compliance with the types ofrequirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing proceduresthat are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal programand to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose ofexpressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance . Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on theeffectiveness of Charter School of Educational Excellence’s internal control over compliance .

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance .

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies . We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material
weaknesses . However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified .

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control
over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of OMB Circular A-133. Accordingly, this report is not
suitable for any other purpose .

586 Route 304, New City, NY 10956845-638-3113 |       845-638-4817445 Park Ave, 9th Fl, New York, NY 10022212-734-0395 |       212-734-0954Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal ProgramWe have audited Charter School of Educational Excellence’s compliance with the types of compliance requirements described inthe OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of Charter School ofEducational Excellence's major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2013. Charter School of Educational Excellence’smajor federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings andquestioned costs.Management’s ResponsibilityManagement is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to itsfederal programs .Auditor’s ResponsibilityOur responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Charter School of Educational Excellence’s major federalprograms based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliancein accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America ; the standards applicable to financialaudits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States ; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations . Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that weplan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliancerequirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred . An auditincludes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Charter School of Educational Excellence’s compliance with thoserequirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances .We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program . However,our audit does not provide a legal determination of Charter School of Educational Excellence’s compliance .Opinion on Each Major Federal ProgramIn our opinion, Charter School of Educational Excellence complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliancerequirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the yearended June 30, 2013.Report on Internal Control over ComplianceManagement of Charter School of Educational Excellence is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal controlover compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit ofcompliance, we considered Charter School of Educational Excellence’s internal control over compliance with the types ofrequirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing proceduresthat are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal programand to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose ofexpressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance . Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on theeffectiveness of Charter School of Educational Excellence’s internal control over compliance .

w w w . c p a t r u s t . c o m
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Section I - Summary of Auditor's Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued: Unqualified
Internal control over financial reporting:

Material weakness(es) identified? _____  Yes _____  No
Significant deficiency(ies) identified? _____  Yes _____  None reported

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? _____  Yes _____  No

Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs:
Material weakness(es) identified? _____  Yes _____  No
Significant deficiency(ies) identified? _____  Yes _____  None reported

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance
   for major programs: Unqualified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to
   be reported in accordance with section 510(a) of
   Circular A-133? _____  Yes _____  No

Identification of major programs:

Charter School of Educational Excellence

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

For the year ended June 30, 2013

(22)

Identification of major programs:

CFDA Number Name of Federal Program or Cluster:

10.553 SCHOOL BREAKFAST PROGRAM
10.555 NATIONAL SCHOOL LUNCH PROGRAM

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between 
   type A and type B programs: $300,000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? Yes

Section II - Financial Statement Findings

The audit revealed no findings nor questioned costs.

Section III - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

The audit revealed no findings nor questioned costs.

(22)
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Appendix E: Disclosure of Financial Interest Form
Created Monday, July 08, 2013
Updated Tuesday, July 30, 2013

Page 1

662300860862 CS-EDUC EXCELLENCE

An Appendix E: Disclosure of Financial Interest Form must be completed for each active
Trustee who served on the charter school's Board of Trustees during the 2012-13 school
year. Trustees are at times difficult to track down in the summber months. Trustees may
complete and submit at their leisure (but before the deadline) their individual form at:
http://fluidsurveys.com/surveys/vickie-smith/appendix-e-disclosure-of-financial-interest-form/.  

Trustees who are technologically advanced may complete the survey using their smartphones or
other mobile devices by downloading the this bar code link to the
survey http://fluidsurveys.com/account/surveys/210748/publish/qrcode/. (Make sure you have
the bar code application reader on your phone).

If a Trustee is unable to complete the form by the deadline (i.e, out of the country), the school is
responsible for submitting the information required on the form for that individual trustee.  

Just send the links via email today to your Trustees requesting that they each complete their
form as soon as possible.

Thank you.

Yes, each member of the school's Board of Trustees has received a link to the Disclosure of
Financial Interest Form.

Yes

Thank you.

http://fluidsurveys.com/surveys/vickie-smith/appendix-e-disclosure-of-financial-interest-form/
http://fluidsurveys.com/account/surveys/210748/publish/qrcode/
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Appendix F: BOT Membership Table
Created Monday, July 08, 2013
Updated Wednesday, July 31, 2013

Page 1

662300860862 CS-EDUC EXCELLENCE

1. Current Board Member Information
Full Name of
Individual
Trustees

Position on
Board (Officer
or Rep).

Voting
Member

Area of Expertise &/or
Additional Role

Terms Served & Length
(include date of election
and expiration)

Committe
e
affiliation
s

1 Eduardo
LaGuerre

Chair/Presiden
t

Yes Executive Committee,
Academic Committee, Finance
Committee, Facilities
Committee

2005-present

2 Sobeida Cruz Member Yes Academic Committee, Finance
Committee

2005-present

3 Nadine
Burns-Lyons

Secretary Yes Executive Committee 2005-present

4 Carol Russo Member Yes Academic Committee 2007-present

5 Carlos
Medina

Member Yes Finance Committee 2007-present

6 Jim Killoran Treasurer Yes Executive Committee, Finance
Committee

2010-present

7 James Siegel,
Esq.

Member Yes Academic Committee 2009-present

8 Miguel Perez Parent Rep No June 2013

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

2. Total Number of Members Joining Board during the 2012-13 school year

1



Page 2

3. Total Number of Members Departing the Board during the 2012-13 school year

1

4. According to the School's by-laws, what is the maximum number of trustees that may
comprise the governing board?

7-11

5. How many times did the Board meet during the 2012-13 school year?

11

6. How many times will the Board meet during the 2013-14 school year?

11

Thank you.



















































































Associated Supermarket 529 Broadway Yonkers New York
Assyrian Church of the East 171 Buena Vista Avenue Yonkers New York
Bethany Chapel 55 Greenvale Avenue Yonkers New York
Bright Horizons 7 Odell Plaza Yonkers New York
Catholic Charities in Yonkers 204 Hawthorne Avenue Yonkers New York
Christian Love Tabernacle 5 Manor House Square Yonkers New York
Greyston Family Inn 68 Warburton Avenue Yonkers New York
Grocery Corp 15 Caryl Avenue Yonkers New York
Horizon Food of Yonkers 1025 Saw Mill River Road Yonkers New York
Lincoln Park Jewish Center 311 Central Park Avenue Yonkers New York
Little Branches Day Care 50 Woodward Avenue Yonkers New York
Pathmark 1757 Central Park Avenue Yonkers New York
Queens Daughter Day Care 73 Buena Vista Avenue Yonkers New York
ShopRite 25 Prospect Street Yonkers New York
St. Peter's Church 91 Ludlow Street Yonkers New York
Stew Leonard's 1 Stew Leonard Drive Yonkers New York
Whitney Young Day Care 356 Nepperhan Avenue Yonkers New York
YMCA 17 Riverdale Avenue Yonkers New York
Yonkers Child Day Care Center 98 Locust Hill Avenue Yonkers New York
YWCA 87 South Broadway Yonkers New York

The newspapers where we posted the announcement was Pluma Libre, Westchester Hispano and Yonker’s Rising.



10701 914-233-5175
10701 914-423-2847
10703 914-969-6137
10703 914-376-3241
10701 914-476-2000
10705 914-969-3244
10701 914-965-4467
10701 914-966-1505
10703 914-375-4700
10701 914-376-7200
10704 914-375-2570
10701 914-376-5429
10701 914-969-4491
10701 914-376-5429
10701 914-963-0822
10710 914-961-5055
10701 914-378-1473
10701 914-969-6137
10701 914-423-3804
10701 914-963-0640

The newspapers where we posted the announcement was Pluma Libre, Westchester Hispano and Yonker’s Rising.



Required Form: Appendix E - Disclosure of Financial Interest
Form
Created Wednesday, July 31, 2013
Updated Wednesday, August 28, 2013
http://fluidsurveys.com/surveys/vickie-smith/appendix-e-disclosure-of-financial-interest-form/6e81b5195c7ba210168e15bb82b9e1c528e022b5/

Page 1

Please open the link to this form using Google Chrome as your browser. Doing so will
allow you to input your signature on page 2 of the form. Thank you.

1. Trustee Name:

Sobeida Cruz

2. Charter School Name:

Charter School of Educational Excellence

3. Charter Authorizer:

Board of Regents

4. *Your Home Address:
Variable Response

4. *Your Home Address: | Street Address

4. *Your Home Address: | City/State

4. *Your Home Address: | Zip

5. *Your Business Address
Variable Response

5. *Your Business Address | Street Address

5. *Your Business Address | City/State

5. *Your Business Address | Zip

6. *Daytime Phone Number:

7. *E-mail Address:



8. Select all positions you held on Board:

(check all that apply)

•  Other, please specify...: Trustee

9. Are you a trustee and also an employee of the school?

No

10. Are you a trustee and an employee or agent of the management company or
institutional partner of the charter school?

No



Page 2

13. Have you or any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with
you in your house had an interest in or engaged in a transaction with the charter school
during the time you have served on the board, and in the six-month period prior to such
service? 

No

14. Are you a member, director, officer or employee of an organization formally
partnered with school that is doing business with the charter school and in which such
entity, during your tenure as a trustee, you and/or your immediate family member or
person living in your house had a financial interest or relationship?

No

Signature of Trustee 



Required Form: Appendix E - Disclosure of Financial Interest
Form
Created Thursday, August 01, 2013

http://fluidsurveys.com/surveys/vickie-smith/appendix-e-disclosure-of-financial-interest-form/b244a27bc4b752a706d3f11eb7922c5330befcc5/

Page 1

Please open the link to this form using Google Chrome as your browser. Doing so will
allow you to input your signature on page 2 of the form. Thank you.

1. Trustee Name:

James Killoran

2. Charter School Name:

Charter School of Educational Excellence

3. Charter Authorizer:

Board of Regents

4. *Your Home Address:
Variable Response

4. *Your Home Address: | Street Address

4. *Your Home Address: | City/State

4. *Your Home Address: | Zip

5. *Your Business Address
Variable Response

5. *Your Business Address | Street Address

5. *Your Business Address | City/State

5. *Your Business Address | Zip

6. *Daytime Phone Number:

7. *E-mail Address:



8. Select all positions you held on Board:

(check all that apply)

•  Treasurer

9. Are you a trustee and also an employee of the school?

Yes

9a. If YES, please provide a description of the position you hold and your
responsibilities, your salary and your start date in the next 

Variable Response

[TEMP.0] 9a. If YES, please provide a description of the position you hold and your
responsibilities, your salary and your start date in the next | Position Held

treasurer

[TEMP.1] 9a. If YES, please provide a description of the position you hold and your
responsibilities, your salary and your start date in the next | Responsibilities

oversite of finances

[TEMP.2] 9a. If YES, please provide a description of the position you hold and your
responsibilities, your salary and your start date in the next | Salary

0 dollars

[TEMP.3] 9a. If YES, please provide a description of the position you hold and your
responsibilities, your salary and your start date in the next | Start Date

2012

10. Are you a trustee and an employee or agent of the management company or
institutional partner of the charter school?

No
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13. Have you or any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with
you in your house had an interest in or engaged in a transaction with the charter school
during the time you have served on the board, and in the six-month period prior to such
service? 

No

14. Are you a member, director, officer or employee of an organization formally
partnered with school that is doing business with the charter school and in which such
entity, during your tenure as a trustee, you and/or your immediate family member or
person living in your house had a financial interest or relationship?

No

Signature of Trustee 



Required Form: Appendix E - Disclosure of Financial Interest
Form
Created Friday, July 26, 2013
Updated Wednesday, August 28, 2013
http://fluidsurveys.com/surveys/vickie-smith/appendix-e-disclosure-of-financial-interest-form/95d60b412da9734325300b811844b18875d3a0db/

Page 1

Please open the link to this form using Google Chrome as your browser. Doing so will
allow you to input your signature on page 2 of the form. Thank you.

1. Trustee Name:

Eduardo LaGuerre

2. Charter School Name:

Charter School of Educational Excellence

3. Charter Authorizer:

Board of Regents

4. *Your Home Address:
Variable Response

4. *Your Home Address: | Street Address

4. *Your Home Address: | Zip

5. *Your Business Address
Variable Response

5. *Your Business Address | Street Address

5. *Your Business Address | Zip

6. *Daytime Phone Number:

7. *E-mail Address:



8. Select all positions you held on Board:

(check all that apply)

•  Chair/President

9. Are you a trustee and also an employee of the school?

No

10. Are you a trustee and an employee or agent of the management company or
institutional partner of the charter school?

No
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13. Have you or any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with
you in your house had an interest in or engaged in a transaction with the charter school
during the time you have served on the board, and in the six-month period prior to such
service? 

No

14. Are you a member, director, officer or employee of an organization formally
partnered with school that is doing business with the charter school and in which such
entity, during your tenure as a trustee, you and/or your immediate family member or
person living in your house had a financial interest or relationship?

No

Signature of Trustee 



Required Form: Appendix E - Disclosure of Financial Interest
Form
Created Sunday, July 14, 2013
Updated Wednesday, August 28, 2013
http://fluidsurveys.com/surveys/vickie-smith/appendix-e-disclosure-of-financial-interest-form/181d62946fe7084f2f48d84e60bf32434b356cca/

Page 1

Please open the link to this form using Google Chrome as your browser. Doing so will
allow you to input your signature on page 2 of the form. Thank you.

1. Trustee Name:

Carol Russo

2. Charter School Name:

Charter School of Educational Excellence

3. Charter Authorizer:

Board of Regents

4. *Your Home Address:
Variable Response

4. *Your Home Address: | Street Address

4. *Your Home Address: | City/State

4. *Your Home Address: | Zip

5. *Your Business Address
Variable Response

5. *Your Business Address | Street Address

5. *Your Business Address | City/State

5. *Your Business Address | Zip

6. *Daytime Phone Number:

7. *E-mail Address:



8. Select all positions you held on Board:

(check all that apply)

(No response)

9. Are you a trustee and also an employee of the school?

No

10. Are you a trustee and an employee or agent of the management company or
institutional partner of the charter school?

No
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13. Have you or any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with
you in your house had an interest in or engaged in a transaction with the charter school
during the time you have served on the board, and in the six-month period prior to such
service? 

No

14. Are you a member, director, officer or employee of an organization formally
partnered with school that is doing business with the charter school and in which such
entity, during your tenure as a trustee, you and/or your immediate family member or
person living in your house had a financial interest or relationship?

No

Signature of Trustee 



Required Form: Appendix E - Disclosure of Financial Interest
Form
Created Monday, July 08, 2013
Updated Wednesday, August 28, 2013
http://fluidsurveys.com/surveys/vickie-smith/appendix-e-disclosure-of-financial-interest-form/1a11f7f64b54a23e132df2416e103b52065201f0/

Page 1

Please open the link to this form using Google Chrome as your browser. Doing so will
allow you to input your signature on page 2 of the form. Thank you.

1. Trustee Name:

James E. Siegel

2. Charter School Name:

Charter School of Educational Excellence

3. Charter Authorizer:

Board of Regents

4. *Your Home Address:
Variable Response

4. *Your Home Address: | Street Address

4. *Your Home Address: | City/State

4. *Your Home Address: | Zip

5. *Your Business Address
Variable Response

5. *Your Business Address | Street Address

5. *Your Business Address | City/State

5. *Your Business Address | Zip

6. *Daytime Phone Number:



7. *E-mail Address:

8. Select all positions you held on Board:

(check all that apply)

(No response)

9. Are you a trustee and also an employee of the school?

No

10. Are you a trustee and an employee or agent of the management company or
institutional partner of the charter school?

No
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13. Have you or any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with
you in your house had an interest in or engaged in a transaction with the charter school
during the time you have served on the board, and in the six-month period prior to such
service? 

Yes

13a. Identify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that you
or any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with you in your
house held or engaged in with the charter school during the time you have served on the
board, and in the six-month period prior to such service. If there has been no such
financial interest or transaction, write None. Please note that if you answered Yes to
Question 2-4 above, you need not disclose again your employment status, salary, etc.

Date(s) of
Transactions

Nature of Financial
Interest/Transactio
n

Steps Taken to Avoid Conflict of
Interest (e.g., did not vote, did not
participate in discussion)

Name of Person Holding
Interest and Relationship
to You

1 more than 3
years

Mother is a
consultant to the
school

recuse myself from any issues regaring
my mother

Alice Siegel

2 (No
response)

(No response) (No response) (No response)

3 (No
response)

(No response) (No response) (No response)

4 (No
response)

(No response) (No response) (No response)

5 (No
response)

(No response) (No response) (No response)

14. Are you a member, director, officer or employee of an organization formally
partnered with school that is doing business with the charter school and in which such
entity, during your tenure as a trustee, you and/or your immediate family member or
person living in your house had a financial interest or relationship?

No

Signature of Trustee 
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To the Board of Trustees of

Charter School of Educational Excellence

Yonkers, New York

New City, New York

November 9,  2012

Independent Auditors' Report

 586 Route 304, New City, NY 10956 
 845-638-3113 |       845-638-4817 

 
 445 Park Ave, 9th Fl, New York, NY 10022 

 212-734-0395 |       212-734-0954 

 

w w w . c p a t r u s t . c o m  

We have audited the accompanying statement of financial position of Charter School of Educational Excellence as of June 30, 
2012, and the related statements of activities and cash flows for the year then ended. These financial statements are the 
responsibility of the Organization's management.  Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based 
on our audit.    
  
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted of The United States of America and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the 
United States.  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free of material misstatement.  An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the 
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.  An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and 
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.  We believe that 
our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 
  
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Charter 
School of Educational Excellence as of June 30, 2012, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended, 
in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
  
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 9, 2012, on our 
consideration of  Charter School of Educational Excellence's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.  The purpose of that 
report is an describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that 
testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.  That report is an integral 
part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results 
of our audit. 
  
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements. The schedule of functional 
expenses on page 12 is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. The 
schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of 
Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and is not a required 
part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been 
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, 
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the 
financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material 
respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 



ASSETS

Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 182,556$        
Cash - Construction, Restricted and Debt Service Accounts 1,762,343       
Due from Government Agencies (Note 3) 531,223          
Prepaid Expenses 24,528             

Total Current Assets 2,500,650       

Fixed Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation of $1,774,854) (Note 4) 13,136,313     

Other Assets
Security Deposits 24,567             
Deferred Financing Cost, Net (Note 5) 807,674          

Total Other Assets 832,241          

Total Assets 16,469,204$   

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses 509,928$        
Accrued Payroll and Related Expenses 658,032          
Unearned Revenue 7,492               
Accrued Interest Bond Interest 162,060          
Line of Credit (Note 8) 350,062          
Capital Leases Payable, Current Portion (Note 9) 161,917          
Loan Payable, Current Portion (Note 10) 122,851          

Total Current Liabilities 1,972,342       

Long-Term Liabilities
Capital Leases Payable, Net of Current Portion (Note 9) 306,874          
Loan Payable, Net of Current Portion (Note 10) 977,989          
Bonds Payable (Note 11) 12,445,000     

Total Long-Term Liabilities 13,729,863     

Total Liabilities 15,702,205     

Net Assets
Unrestricted Net Assets 766,999          

Total Net Assets 766,999          

Total Liabilities and Net Assets 16,469,204$   

Charter School of Educational Excellence

Statement of Financial Position

June 30, 2012

(2)

See accompanying notes and independent auditors' report.



Temporarily

PUBLIC SUPPORT AND REVENUE Unrestricted  Restricted  Total

 Resident Student Enrollment 8,052,507$     -$                     8,052,507$     
Food Service -                       422,591          422,591          
Federal Funding -                       334,148          334,148          
State Funding -                       40,380             40,380             
Grant / Contributions 99,714             -                       99,714             
Interest Income 1,378               -                       1,378               

Total Public Support and Revenue 8,153,599       797,119          8,950,718       

Net Assets Released From Restrictions 797,119          (797,119)         -                       

Total Support and Revenue 8,950,718       -                       8,950,718       

EXPENSES

Program Services
Regular Education 6,598,549       -                       6,598,549       
Special Education 208,495          -                       208,495          

6,807,044       -                       6,807,044       
Supporting Services

Management and General 1,250,358       -                       1,250,358       

Total Expenses 8,057,402       -                       8,057,402       

Change in Net Assets 893,316          -                       893,316          

Net Assets (Deficit), Beginning of Year (126,317)         -                       (126,317)         
  
Net Assets, End of Year                                 766,999$        -$                     766,999$        

Charter School of Educational Excellence

Statement of Activities

For the year ended June 30, 2012

(3)

See accompanying notes and independent auditors' report.



CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Change in Net Assets 893,316$           
Adjustments to Reconcile Change in Net Assets to

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities:
Depreciation and Amortization 504,524             

Changes in Assets and Liabilities
(Increase) / Decrease in:

Due from Government Agencies (276,609)            
Prepaid Expenses 47,743               

Increase / (Decrease) in:
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses 153,449             
Accrued Payroll and Related Expenses 188,646             
Unearned Revenue (27,649)              

Total Adjustments 590,104             
 
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 1,483,420          

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchases of Fixed Assets (4,972,719)        

Net Cash Used In Investing Activities (4,972,719)        

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Advances on Line of Credit 350,062             
Payments of Capital Lease Obligation 468,791             
Payments of Loans Payable (113,606)            

Net Cash Provided By Financing Activities 705,247             

NET DECREASE IN CASH (2,784,052)        

CASH - BEGINNING OF YEAR 4,728,951          

CASH - END OF YEAR 1,944,899$       

Supplemental Disclosures:
Cash paid during the year for interest 965,057$           

Schedule of Noncash Investing and Financing Activities
Fixed Assets Acquired through Capital Lease Obligations 468,791$           

Charter School of Educational Excellence

Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended June 30, 2012

(4)

See accompanying notes and independent auditors' report.



Charter School of Educational Excellence

Notes to the Financial Statements

June 30, 2012

NOTE 1 - ORGANIZATION 
 
Charter School of Educational Excellence (the “School”) is a New York education corporation incorporated by the 
Board of Regents of the University of the State of New York (the "Board of Regents") under Article 56 of the 
New York Education Law. The School a non-profit corporation operating from 260 Warburton Avenue, in 
Yonkers, New York. The School educates children in a completely nondiscriminatory and secular basis. The 
founders and supporters of the School believe that access to a public education of high quality for all children is 
the foremost issue. The School was originally chartered during April 2004 and opened with students from 
Kindergarten through 4th graders and thereafter added a grade per year through 6th graders. In January 2009, 
the School successfully received a renewal of its charter from its charter authorizer, the New York State 
Education Department that expires in January 2014.  In April 2010, the charter authorizer approved the addition 
of 7th grade for the school year beginning September 2010 and an 8th grade for the school year beginning 
September 2011.  The revised charter authorization expands the enrollment to 669 students. 
 
NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
Basis of Accounting  
The financial statements have been prepared using the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.  Revenues are recognized when 
earned and expenses are recognized when incurred. 
 
Financial Statement Presentation  
The net assets of the School and changes therein are classified and reported as follows: 
 
Unrestricted Net Assets - Net assets that are not subject to donor imposed restrictions. 
 
Temporarily Restricted Net Assets - Net assets subject to donor-imposed restrictions that may or will be met, 
either by actions of the School and/or the passage of time. 
  
Use of Estimates in the Preparation of Financial Statements 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in The 
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported 
amounts and disclosures.  Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates. 
  
Contributions 
The School records contributions received as unrestricted, temporarily restricted, or permanently restricted 
support, depending on the existence and/or nature of any donor restrictions.  Support that is restricted by the 
donor is reported as an increase in unrestricted net assets if the restriction expires in the reporting period in 
which the support is recognized.  All other donor restricted support is reported as an increase in temporarily or 
permanently restricted net assets, depending on the nature of the restriction.  When a restriction expires, that 
is, when a stipulation time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished, temporarily restricted net 
assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the statement of activities as net assets 
released from restrictions.  All contributions received in the year ended 2012 were unrestricted. 
   
Recognition of Revenue 
Government contract revenue is recognized as earned in the period services are provided and costs are 
incurred. 
  
 Cash and Cash Equivalents 
For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, the School considers all highly liquid investments available for 
current use with an initial period of three months or less to be cash equivalents.  
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Charter School of Educational Excellence

Notes to the Financial Statements

June 30, 2012

Resident Student Enrollment 360,617$        
Federal Funding 120,831          
State Funding 49,775             

531,223$        

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
Income Tax Status 
The Organization is a not-for-profit corporation organized under the laws of the State of New York. It is exempt 
from federal income taxes under Section 501 (c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. 
 
Fixed Assets 
Fixed assets consist of builing, leasehold improvements, furniture and equipment and are valued at cost less 
accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is computed on a straight line basis over the estimated useful lives of the 
related assets or the term of the lease agreement. Normal replacement and maintenance costs are charged to 
earnings as incurred, and major renewals and improvements are capitalized. Upon disposition, the cost and 
related accumulated depreciation is removed from the accounts and the resulting gain or loss for the period. The 
School capitalizes assets with cost of $500 and over. Depreciation is calculated based on the useful lives of the 
assets as follows: Building and Leasehold Improvements 20 Years, Equipment, Furniture and Fixtures 3 - 10 Years. 
  
Functional Allocation of Expenses 
Expenses relating to more than one function are allocated to program service and management and general based 
on employee time estimates or other appropriate usage factors.  
 
Contributed Services 
Contributed services that create or enhance nonfinancial assets, or that require specialized skills, are provided by 
individuals possessing those skills, and would typically need to be purchased if not provided by donation, are 
recorded at fair value in the period received.   
 
A number of volunteers have made a contribution of their time to the School to develop academic and other 
programs and to serve on the board of trustees.  The value of this contributed time is not reflected in the financial 
statements as such services either do not require specialized skills or would not typically be purchased had they 
not been provided as donations. 
 

NOTE 3 – PUPIL ENROLLMENT AND OTHER REVENUES FROM GOVERMENT 
  
Under the School’s Charter School Agreement and the Charter School Act, the School is entitled to receive funding 
from both State and Federal sources that are available to public schools. These funds include State pupil 
enrollment funds and Federal food subsidies and Title I, IIA, IID, IV and V funds. The calculation of the amounts to 
be paid to the School under these programs is determined by the State, and is based on complex laws and 
regulations, enrollment levels, and economic information related to the home school district of the children 
enrolled in the school. If these regulations, some of which are relatively new in the State of New York, were to 
change, or other factors included in the calculations were to change, the level of funding that the School receives 
could vary significantly.  
 
Amount due from government agencies and included as revenues in the statement of activities, consist of the 
following as of June 30, 2011: 
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Charter School of Educational Excellence

Notes to the Financial Statements

June 30, 2012

NOTE 4 - FIXED ASSETS

Fixed assets consist of the following:

Building 10,926,895$   
Leasehold Improvements 3,146,287       
Equipment, Furniture and Fixtures 837,985          

14,911,167
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (1,774,854)      

Total Fixed Assets 13,136,313$   

NOTE 5 – DEFERRED FINANCING COST 
 
The school incurred cost of $853,506 related to the Bond offering (See Note 8). The cost are amortized over the 
term of the related debt (30 Years) using a straight-line method. Accumulated amortization at June 30, 2012 was 
$45,882.  Amortization expense costs charged to operations was $28,450 for 2012.  
 
NOTE 6 – RETIREMENT PLANS 
  
Retirement Savings Plan 
The School offers a 401(k) plan (the "Plan”) for substantially all of its employees. Employees are eligible for the 
plan immediately upon employment and participation in the Plan is voluntary. Employees may contribute up to 
15% of their annual compensation to the Plan, limited to a maximum annual amount as set periodically by the 
Internal Revenue Service.  The School matches the employee contribution 100% up to 4% of the employee’s total 
annual compensation.  The School’s contribution recognized in the statement of activities was $19,705 for 2012.  
The Plan assets are held in a separate trust and are not included in the accompanying financial statements.  All 
plan assets are held for the exclusive benefit of the Plan’s participants and beneficiaries.  The Plan assets are held 
in a separate trust and are not included in the accompanying financial statements.  All plan assets are held for the 
exclusive benefit of the Plan’s participants and beneficiaries.  The Principal Financial Group administers the plan 
and is the acting custodian of the plan assets. 
 
New York State Teachers' Retirement System 
Employees of the School are eligible to participate in the New York State Teachers' Retirement System (NYSTRS). 
The NYSTRS is a defined benefit plan covering teachers in New York State, with pensions calculated based 
primarily on the member's years of service and final average salary. Contributions for the year ended June 30, 
2012, was based on 11.11%, of participant salaries. The benefits provided to members of the plan are established 
by New York State Law and may be amended only by the State Legislature. Pension expense was $216,000 for the 
year ended June 30, 2012. 
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Charter School of Educational Excellence

Notes to the Financial Statements

June 30, 2012

Year Ending
June 30, Amount

2013 161,917$        
2014 154,199          
2015 152,675          

468,791          
Less Current Portion 161,917          

Long-Term Portion 306,874$        

NOTE 7 – MANAGEMENT FEE  
 
Victory Schools, Inc. ("VSI") manages the operations of the School under a management agreement entered into 
by the School and VSI.  The agreement was executed on March 30, 2004.  Per the term of the agreement, VSI 
assumes responsibility for task and functions associated with the educational services to be provided to the 
children enrolled as student at the School in accordance with the term of the Charter and the Charter of Schools 
Act, subject to the appropriate oversight from the school’s Board of Trustees.  
  
In providing the above services as per the original agreement, VSI was to be paid a management fee in the 
amount equal to product of the total full-time equivalent enrollment of students in the Charter School as defined 
under Section 119.1 of New York State Commissioner of Education Regulations multiplied. The Per Pupil Fee shall 
be increased or decreased each year by the percentage increase or decrease in the Final Adjusted Expense Per 
Pupil for charter schools in the Yonkers City school district as calculated by the New York State Education 
Department annually. 
 
 VSI is entitled to receive the management fees on a bi-monthly basis. Any VSI Fee, or portion thereof, not paid 
within (30) days of its due date shall bear interest at an annualized rate of 7.5% per annum on the outstanding 
past due amount, provided such past due payments are not as a result of the Yonkers School District’s failure to 
timely remit the Adjusted Expense Per Pupil to the Charter School.   
 
Effective July 1, 2010, the School and VSI have formally agreed to amend the management agreement.  The new 
fee will be $500,000 per year and will increase 4% each year until it expires at the end of the 2013/2014 school 
year. 
 
NOTE 8 - LINE OF CREDIT 
 
The School has secured a revolving line of credit  from a financial institution in the amount of $350,000. The 
interest rate is the financial institution's index rate plus 1% (4.250% as of June 30, 2012). As of June 30, 2012, the 
School had drawn down $350,062 on this line. 
 
NOTE 9 - CAPITAL LEASES PAYABLE  
 
On June 24, 2011 and November 8, 2011, the School entered into two capital lease agreements for certain 
equipment, furniture and fixtures. The lease payments relating to the equipment, furniture and fixtures have been 
capitalized and included as fixed assets on the accompanying financial statements. The leased assets have a cost 
of $468,791 and have a thirty-six month terms. 
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Charter School of Educational Excellence

Notes to the Financial Statements

June 30, 2012

Year Ending
June 30, Amount

2013 122,851$        
2014 132,850          
2015 143,662          
2016 155,354          
2017 167,998          

Thereafter 378,125          
1,100,840       

Less Current Portion 122,851          

Long-Term Portion 977,989$        

NOTE 11 – BONDS PAYABLE 
  
On November 1, 2010, The Yonkers Economic Development Corporation provided financing through the issuance 
of $11,735,000 Tax-Exempt Educational Revenue Bonds (Charter School of Educational Excellence Project) (the 
"Series 2010A Bonds"). The Series 2010A Bonds of $4,940,000 bear interest at 6.00% per annum and principal due 
at maturity on October 15, 2030. The balance of the Series 2010A Bonds of $6,795,000, bear interest at 6.25% per 
annum and principal due at maturity on October 15, 2040. 
 
On November 1, 2010, The Yonkers Economic Development Corporation provided financing through the issuance 
of $710,000 in Taxable Educational Revenue Bonds (Charter School of Educational Excellence Project (the "Series 
2010B Bonds"), bearing interest rate at 8.00% per annum and principal due at maturity on October 15, 2016. 
 
The proceeds of the Series 2010 bonds are to be used for the following purposes: 
 
1) the construction of educational facilities. 
2) paying certain prior indebtedness (NCB Capital Impact Loans I and II) 
3) paying certain capital expenditures and capitalized interest during contruction. 
4)paying Series 2010 Bond issuance costs. 
5) fund of a Bond Fund Deposit and Reserve Fund Deposit. 

NOTE 10 – LOAN PAYABLE 
  
In July 2007, the School converted the management fee payable, loan payable and the accrued interest to a term 
loan with VSI (See Note 7 for details).  The loan was for $1,493,186 and had a term of 120 months, with interest 
payable monthly at 7.5% per annum and matures on June 2017. 
 
Principal maturities of long-term debt are as follows: 
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Charter School of Educational Excellence

Notes to the Financial Statements

June 30, 2012

Year Ending
June 30, Amount

2013 276,312$        
2014 284,592          
2015 293,136          
2016 301,932          
2017 310,992          

Audits by Funding Sources 
The School participates in a number of Federal and State programs. These programs require that the School 
complies with certain requirement of laws, regulations, contracts, and agreements applicable to the program in 
which it participates. All funds expended in connection with government grants and contracts are subject to audit 
by government agencies. While the ultimate liability, if any, from such audits of government and contracts by 
government agencies is presently not determinable, it should not, in the opinion of the management, have a 
material  effect on the financial position or result of operations. Accordingly, no provision for any such liability that 
may result has been made in the accompanying financial statements. 

NOTE 12 – COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 
 
Occupancy Lease 
The School has entered into a non-cancelable operating lease for its classroom facilities that expires on June 30, 
2019.  Future monthly  minimum lease payments as of June 30 are as follows: 

NOTE 13 – CONCENTRATION OF RISK 
  
The School is dependent on various government agencies for funding, and is responsible for meeting the 
requirements of such agencies. If the school was to lose students or the related government funding, it could have 
a substantial effect on its ability to continue operations. 

NOTE 14 – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 
  
The School evaluates events occurring after the date of the financial statements to consider whether or not the 
impact of such events needs to be reflected or disclosed in the financial statements.  Such evaluation is performed 
through the date the financial statements are available for issuance, which was November 9, 2012, for these 
financial statements. 
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Regular Special Total Support 
Education Education Programs Services Total

Personnel Service Costs
Administrative Staff Personnel 422,669$           -$                        422,669$           -$                     422,669$        
Instructional Personnel 2,081,557          79,125               2,160,682          -                       2,160,682       
Non-Instructional Personnel 43                       3                         46                       279,287          279,333          
    Total Personnel Costs 2,504,269          79,128               2,583,397          279,287          2,862,684       

Fringe Benefits 358,003             11,312               369,315             39,926            409,241          
Payroll Taxes 256,509             8,105                  264,614             28,607            293,221          
Retirement Benefits 206,194             6,515                  212,709             22,996            235,705          

Total Personnel and Related Expenses 3,324,975          105,060             3,430,035          370,816          3,800,851       
  

Operating Expenses   
Management Fee -                          -                          -                          520,000          520,000          
Legal -                          -                          -                          5,845               5,845               
Consultants 26,165               827                     26,992               2,918               29,910             
Student Services 327,041             10,334               337,375             -                       337,375          
Insurance 56,344               1,780                  58,124               60,318            118,442          
Supplies and Materials 170,191             5,378                  175,569             18,980            194,549          
Technology 39,383               1,244                  40,627               4,392               45,019             
Occupancy 356,013             11,249               367,262             39,704            406,966          
Utilities 104,728             3,309                  108,037             11,680            119,717          
Staff Development 115,700             3,656                  119,356             12,903            132,259          
Marketing and Recruitment 1,471                 46                       1,517                 164                  1,681               
Auditing Fees -                          -                          -                          15,000            15,000             
Office Expenses 39,844               1,259                  41,103               4,444               45,547             
Maintenance and Repairs 193,723             6,121                  199,844             21,605            221,449          
Equipment and Furnishings 118,237             3,736                  121,973             13,186            135,159          
Transportation 394,054             12,451               406,505             -                       406,505          
Amortization 24,888               786                     25,674               2,776               28,450             
Depreciation 416,468             13,159               429,627             46,446            476,073          
Interest Expense 844,230             26,675               870,905             94,152            965,057          
Other Expenses 45,094               1,425                  46,519               5,029               51,548             

Total Operating Expenses 3,273,574          103,435             3,377,009          879,542          4,256,551       
  

TOTAL EXPENSES 6,598,549$       208,495$           6,807,044$       1,250,358$     8,057,402$     

 

Charter School of Educational Excellence

Schedule of Functional Expenses

For the year ended June 30, 2012
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Charter School of Educational Excellence

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

and Accompanying Notes

For the year ended June 30, 2012

(13)



FEDERAL GRANTOR/
PASS-THROUGH FEDERAL
GRANTOR/PROGRAM TITLE CFDA FEDERAL

NUMBER EXPENDITURES

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

TITLE I GRANTS TO LOCAL EDUCATIONAL AGENCIES 84.010 306,141$          
Pass - Through from the New York State
Education Department

IMPROVING TEACHER QUALITY STATE GRANTS 84.367
Pass - Through from the New York State
Education Department 18,326              

SPECIAL EDUCATION GRANTS TO STATES 84.027
Pass - Through from the New York State
Education Department 9,681                

TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION 334,148            

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE (USDA)

SCHOOL BREAKFAST PROGRAM 10.553
Pass - Through from the New York State
Education Department 126,674            

NATIONAL SCHOOL LUNCH PROGRAM 10.555
Pass - Through from the New York State
Education Department 259,606            

TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE (USDA) 386,280            

TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 720,428$         

Charter School of Educational Excellence

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

For the year ended June 30, 2012
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Charter School of Educational Excellence

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

For the year ended June 30, 2012

NOTE 1 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION 
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant activity of Charter 
School of Educational Excellence, under programs of the federal government for the year ended June 30, 
2012.  The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Office of 
Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit 
Organizations. Because the schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of Charter School of 
Educational Excellence, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net assets, 
or cash flows of the entity. 
  
NOTE 2—SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such expenditures are 
recognized following the cost principles contained in OMB Circular A-122, Cost Principles for Non-profit 
Organizations, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.  
Pass-through entity identifying numbers are presented where available. 
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Charter School of Educational Excellence

Summary Schedule of Prior Year Audit Findings

For the year ended June 30, 2012

Section II – Financial Statement Findings 
 
Finding 2011-1 
 
Statement of Condition:  
The student files tested did not have all the required documentation.  Out of the forty-three files tested, 
twelve were in full compliance and thirty-one had partial acceptable documentation.   
 
Recommendation: 
Enforce quality review procedures and oversight to sendure that each file maintained by the charter school is 
adequately supported by required documentation and in compliance with New York State Education 
Departmetn guidelines.  
 
Current Status: 
The school has implemented procedures that will help ensure that all student files have required 
documentation.  
 
Section III – Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs 
 
There were no reported findings for the year ended June 30, 2011. 
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To the Board of Trustees of

Charter School of Educational Excellence

Yonkers, New York

New City, New York

November 9,  2012

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and On Compliance

and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed

Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

 586 Route 304, New City, NY 10956 
 845-638-3113 |       845-638-4817 

 
 445 Park Ave, 9th Fl, New York, NY 10022 

 212-734-0395 |       212-734-0954 

 

w w w . c p a t r u s t . c o m  

We have audited the financial statements of Charter School of Educational Excellence as of and for the year ended June 30, 2012, 
and have issued our report thereon dated November 9, 2012. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. 
 
Internal Control over Financial Reporting  
Management of Charter School of Educational Excellence is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control 
over financial reporting. In planning and performing our audit, we considered Charter School of Educational Excellence's  internal 
conrol over financial reporting as a basis for designing our audting procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the 
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Charter School of Educational 
Excellence's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Charter 
School of Educational Excellence's internal control over financial reporting.  
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the 
normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material 
weakness is a deficiency, or combination of  deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a 
material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. 
 
Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that might be deficiencies, 
significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that 
we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.   
 
Compliance and Other Matters  
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Charter School of Educational Excellence's financial statements are free 
of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant 
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement 
amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, 
we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are 
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 
 
This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, Board of Trustees, others within the entity, the New 
York City Department of Education, the Charter Schools Institute of the State University of New York, and federal awarding 
agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 
 



To the Board of Trustees of

Charter School of Educational Excellence

Yonkers, New York

Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance With Requirements That Could  Have a Direct

and Material Effect on Each Major Program and on Internal Control

Over Compliance in Accordance with OMB Circular A-133

 586 Route 304, New City, NY 10956 
 845-638-3113 |       845-638-4817 

 
 445 Park Ave, 9th Fl, New York, NY 10022 

 212-734-0395 |       212-734-0954 

 

w w w . c p a t r u s t . c o m  

Compliance  
We have audited Charter School of Educational Excellence's compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in 
the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material efffect on each of Charter School of 
Educational Excellence's  major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2012.  Charter School of Educational Excellence's 
major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and 
questioned costs.  Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of its major 
federal programs is the responsibility of Charter School of Educational Excellence's management.  Our responsibility is to express 
an opinion on Charter School of Educational Excellence's compliance based on our audit. 
  
We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the  United States of America; 
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the 
United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations.  Those standards and 
OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance 
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal 
program occurred.  An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Charter School of Educational Excellence's  
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.  We 
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.  Our audit does not provide a legal determination of Charter 
School of Educational Excellence's compliance with those requirements. 
 
In our opinion, Charter School of Educational Excellence complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements 
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 
2012. 
 
Internal Control over Compliance  
Management of Charter School of Educational Excellence is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control 
over compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to federal programs.  In planning and 
performing our audit, we considered Charter School of Educational Excellence's internal control over compliance with the 
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program to determine the auditing procedures for the 
purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with 
OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance.  
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of  Charter School of Educational Excellence's internal control over 
compliance. 
 
A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis.  A material weakness in internal 
control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a 
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be 
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.  
 



New City, New York

November 9,  2012

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section 
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be deficiences, significant 
deficiencies or material weaknesses.  We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to 
be material weaknesses, as defined above.  
 
This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, Board of Trustees, others within the entity, the New 
York City Department of Education, the Charter Schools Institute of the State University of New York, and federal awarding 
agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 



Section I - Summary of Auditor's Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued: Unqualified
Internal control over financial reporting:

Material weakness(es) identified? _____  Yes _____  No
Significant deficiency(ies) identified? _____  Yes _____  None reported

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? _____  Yes _____  No

Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs:
Material weakness(es) identified? _____  Yes _____  No
Significant deficiency(ies) identified? _____  Yes _____  None reported

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance
   for major programs: Unqualified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to
   be reported in accordance with section 510(a) of
   Circular A-133? _____  Yes _____  No

Identification of major programs:

CFDA Number Name of Federal Program or Cluster:

84.010 TITLE I GRANTS TO LOCAL EDUCATIONAL AGENCIES
10.553 SCHOOL BREAKFAST PROGRAM
10.555 NATIONAL SCHOOL LUNCH PROGRAM

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between 
   type A and type B programs: $300,000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? No

Section II - Financial Statement Findings

The audit revealed no findings nor questioned costs.

Section III - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

The audit revealed no findings nor questioned costs.

Charter School of Educational Excellence

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

For the year ended June 30, 2012
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